# MURDER BY ATOMIC SUICIDE

Technical And Spiritual Disclosure Of The Secrets Of How, Why, What, Where, When And Who Of The Universe And Its Functional Projections

PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL. IV



# BY

# VIOLINIO GERMAIN

Sz.

ENTORGOS CERES HATONN/ATON

"Jharma"

A PHOENIX JOURNAL

# MURDER BY ATOMIC SUICIDE

Technical And Spiritual Disclosure Of The Secrets Of How, Why, What, Where, When And Who Of The Universe And Its Functional Projections

# PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL. IV



BY

VIOLINIO GERMAIN

&

# GYEORGOS CERES HATONN/ATON

"dharma" A PHOENIX JOURNAL

## COPYRIGHT POSITION STATEMENT AND DISCLAIMER

The Phoenix Journals are intended as a "real time" commentary on current events, how current events relate to past events and the relationships of both to the physical and spiritual destinies of mankind.

All of history, as we now know it, has been revised, rewritten, twisted and tweaked by selfishly motivated men to achieve and maintain control over other men. When one can understand that everything is comprised of "energy" and that even physical matter is "coalesced" energy, and that all energy emanates from God's thought, one can accept the idea that the successful focusing of millions of minds on one expected happening will cause it to happen.

If the many prophecies made over thousands of years are accepted, these are the "end times" (specifically the year 2000, the second millennium, etc.). That would put us in the "sorting" period and only a few short years from the finish line. God has said that in the end-times would come the WORD--to the four corners of the world--so that each could decide his/her own course toward, or away from, divinity--based upon TRUTH.

So, God sends His Hosts--Messengers--to present that TRUTH. This is the way in which He chooses to present it, through the Phoenix Journals. Thus, these journals are Truth, which cannot be copyrighted; they are compilations of information already available on Earth, researched and compiled by others (some, no doubt, for this purpose) which should not be copyrighted. Therefore, these journals are not copyrighted (except *SIPAPU ODYSSEY* which is "fiction").

The first sixty or so journals were published by America West Publishing which elected to indicate that a copyright had been applied for on the theory that the ISBN number (so necessary for booksellers) was dependent upon the copyright. Commander Hatonn, the primary author and compiler, insisted that no copyrights be applied for and, to our knowledge, none were.

If the Truth is to reach the four corners of the world, it must be freely passed on. It is hoped that each reader will feel free to do that, keeping it in context, of course.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# <u>CHAPTER</u>

### PAGE

|     |         |        |       |        |     |     |         |       |         |        | <b>Spiritual</b> |
|-----|---------|--------|-------|--------|-----|-----|---------|-------|---------|--------|------------------|
| Dis | closure | • Of ' | The S | ecrets | Of  | How | Why,    | What, | Where,  | When . | And Who          |
| Of  | The     | Univ   | /erse | And    | Its | Fu  | nctiona | l Pro | ections | PI     | <u>LEIADES</u>   |
| CO  | NNEC    | TIO    | OV V  | L. IV  |     |     |         |       |         |        |                  |

## ISBN 0-922356-47-5

First Edition Printed by America West Publishers, 1991

Published by

AMERICA WEST PUBLISHERS P.O. Box 986 Tehachapi, CA. 93581 1-805 822-9655

Printed in the United States of America 10987654321

| EARTH IS DYING CELL FROM SUN              | 41   |
|---|------|
| FLAME                                     | 42   |
| CHAPTER 3                                 |      |
| FRIDAY, JUNE 28, 1991                     | 48   |
| GERMAIN TO CONTINUE                       |      |
| SPEAKING OF RADIOACTIVE SUICIDE           |      |
| THE SUPREME MYSTERY OF LIFE AND DEATH     | 51   |
| CHAPTER 4                                 | 55   |
| MONDAY, JULY 1, 1991                      | 55   |
| HOW RADIOACTIVITY KILLS                   | 56   |
| SAFETY                                    | 62   |
| STEPS OF MAN                              | 63   |
| CHAPTER 5                                 | 65   |
| TUESDAY, JULY 2, 1991                     | 65   |
| WHY KILLER METALS KILL AND WHY OTHER      |      |
| METALS DO NOT                             | 66   |
| CENTRIPETAL AND CENTRIFUGAL               | 67   |
| DESCRIBE RADIUM AND YOU DESCRIBE THEM ALL | 71   |
| CHAPTER 6                                 | 72   |
| ALL ELEMENTS OF MATTER ARE "FROZEN" FLAME | 73   |
| SUMMARY                                   |      |
| HEARD IN THE VOICE OF THE WORLD           | . 74 |
| CHAPTER 7                                 |      |
| WEDNESDAY, JULY 3, 1991                   | . 80 |
| GERMAIN                                   | . 80 |
| NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES FINDINGS     |      |
| AND OPINIONS                              |      |
| MAY TAKE GENERATIONS                      | . 81 |
| CHAPTER 8                                 |      |
| THURSDAY, JULY 4, 1991                    |      |
| INDEPENDENCE DAY FOR AMERICA?             |      |
| SCIENTIST SAYS H-TESTS NEAR DANGER LEVEL  |      |
| FOURTH BLAST HINTED                       | . 87 |
| CONCLUSION CITED                          | . 87 |
| BATTLE NOT NEW                            | . 88 |
| HOW OAK RIDGE GETS RID OF ITS REFUSE      |      |
| (AND REMEMBER, THIS WAS IN 1956)          |      |
| [OVER 35 YEARS AGO]                       |      |
| WE ARE BREATHING ATOM-AGE AIR HERE        |      |
| ATOMIC AGE                                | . 95 |

| DOSAGE IS SMALL                          |       |
|--|-------|
| PUTS IT UP TO THE PUBLIC                 | . 97  |
| SCHWEITZER'S APPEAL TO END NUCLEAR TESTS | . 97  |
| RACE HELD ENDANGERED                     | . 98  |
| PARTICLES HAVE LONG LIFE                 | . 98  |
| WATER MADE RADIOACTIVE                   | . 99  |
| CHAPTER 9                                | . 102 |
| THERE IS NO DEATH                        |       |
| ATON                                     | . 102 |
| GERMAIN SCHWIETZER'S APPEAL, CONT'D      |       |
| DAMAGE TO DESCENDANTS                    | . 106 |
| EUROPE'S NUCLEAR FEAR                    | . 107 |
| THE CONTAMINATION PROBLEM                | . 109 |
| NON-CONFORMITY THE LEE-YANG THEORY       | . 113 |
| STEP BY STEP EXPLANATION                 | . 114 |
| SUMMARY OF STEPS ONE AND TWO             | . 115 |
| CHAPTER 10                               | . 125 |
| FRIDAY, JULY 5, 1991                     | . 125 |
| SECOND MENTAL EXERCISE                   |       |
| CONCLUSION                               |       |
|  |       |

# CHARTS & FIGURES

# <u>CHARTS</u>

| CHART | 1 | 59 |
|-------|---|----|
| CHART | 2 | 60 |

# **FIGURES**

| 3       |       |
|---------|-------|
| 4       |       |
| 5       |       |
| 6       |       |
| 7       |       |
| 11 & 16 | 129 A |
| 17 (2)  |       |
| 18 (2)  |       |
| 19-22   |       |
| 23-28   |       |
| 29      |       |
| 29      |       |

| 41          |     |
|-------------|-----|
| 51          | 134 |
| 52          | 135 |
| 62          | 116 |
| 63          |     |
| 64          |     |
| 66          |     |
| 69, 70      |     |
| 71          | 122 |
| 72, 73      |     |
| 74          |     |
| 75          |     |
| 76          |     |
| 77, 78 & 79 |     |
| 80          | 146 |
| 81          |     |
|             |     |

#### INTRODUCTION

#### REC #2 HATONN/ATON

THURSDAY, JULY 11, 1991 9:05 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 329

#### THURSDAY, JULY 11, 1991

Hatonn to give a bit of introduction to this <u>JOURNAL</u> for we all come as rather a "package-deal".

Germain's writings are now getting more and more "technical" in application of the concepts we have been giving you, that you might come into understanding the Universal workings and order, along with the God that has created such a working life-form of universal order.

# HAPPENINGS NOT INCIDENTAL/COINCIDENTAL

You must understand that most of the so-called natural happenings which are occurring, i.e., volcanos, floods following massive eruptions, floods of unknown size in China, lightning storms of unknown prior extent in Florida--a rainstorm, the first in 114 years at this time of year, in California and on and on and on. These are man-made and you had better begin to understand the mechanism involved in presenting this "phenomenon" unto you. It will worsen and worsen until either the demise of the globe or you turn around the political evil thrust upon the nations and creations of God.

All of you do not need to FULLY understand and be able to go forth and build your "weather machine" but the information must be comprehended as to its ability to be utilized and then the proper reader will find his answers herein in the volumes coming forth, that he will recognize keys to "secrets" thus far hidden from you-the-masses of people.

We shall call this <u>JOURNAL</u>: <u>MURDER BY ATOMIC SUICIDE</u>, Technical and Spiritual Disclosure of the Secrets of How, Why, What, Where, When and Who of the Universe and its Functional Projections, Pleiades Connection, Vol. IV.

#### GOD'S UNIVERSAL LANGUAGE OF LIGHT

A language is something created by all creatures of the animal kingdom to convey the meaning of an IDEA from one manifestation of idea to another. Insects, birds, fishes, animals of the forest and jungle and humans all issue sounds which convey meanings to their like kind, and all such meanings convey the ideas of matchood, hunger, fear, anger and other ideas which are necessary for the survival, continuity and education of the countless pairs of <u>IDEA-BODIES</u> which <u>constitute Creation</u>.

We haven't been using the term "idea-bodies" thus far but will henceforth, in upcoming explanations of detailed function of the universe, begin to do so for it is a most important definition of orderly functioning. We will utilize it to replace the term "matter" now given to created manifestations of "idea" in this divided universe of motion, for every form of matter ever created, such as simple atomic bodies or complex systems of bodies, manifests and represents one of the countless ideas which the Creator has divided from the ONE WHOLE IDEA which needs but the one word, "CREATION", to convey its meaning. I am preparing you to expect it in upcoming JOURNALS and not in this one.

<u>A language</u>, therefore, <u>does not necessarily mean spoken or written words</u>. Anything which conveys a meaning is a language for it extends the idea of one idea-body to another idea-body.

The important point is that you must cease to think in terms which have become implicit and vague and accept our explicit meanings of terms as we move along. Unless two communicating parties know explicitly the meaning projected from another-you cannot communicate accurately. We do not denounce other definitions--only clarify ours explicitly.

# <u>AXIOM</u>

IDEA is a part of the eternal, uncreated and undivided white Mind-Light which God is, while idea-bodies are spectrum-divided extensions of that undivided white Light which centers every wave of them. We covered this in the book on "Light" to great extent but you must come into total concept of those meanings as previously projected.

What you are now being given are the absolutes of Pleiadian Knowledge as regards the functioning of God and Creation from an aspect and perspective much more nearly located in "space" and "dimension" as well as your perception of "time" than an etheric principle from "somewhere out there". Since a great number of you will next experience in that environment--you must come to the knowledge of general workings as presented by and unto your brothers of that place. Most of you came from there and to that place shall you be returned-you are unacceptable to those people if you do not even have the basic concept of how the universe functions. Evil and stupidity will not be allowed into their society of near perfection of working order. I care not what you "thought", it is time to get on with "WHAT IS".

God's KNOWING is that one white Light, but God's THINKING is the divided octave-wave spectrum of the four pairs of spectrum lights which extend from that white Light--four on each side--which constitute the thought-bodies of Mind-thinking and Mind-imagining. It has not yet entered within human consciousness to think of matter as thoughtbodies or of waves as pure thought-recordings which God-the sole Teachermakes use of to intercommunicate with every thought-body in the moving universe. Neither does it occur to anyone that everything in the universe is constantly talking to every other thing and telling it what it is, what it is doing and what its purpose is. An apple, for example, does not need to say in words, "I am an apple". Its form, color, odor and taste tell you that without need of words, but you identify that apple-idea by giving it a word (name) in Man's language.

The ringing of a bell is telling you in sound that church is ready for service, or that there is a fire, or that lunch is ready, or recess time has arrived, and thus and so. If you will learn to look upon Creation as an assemblage of many ideas and realize that the only knowledge you can ever acquire is an awareness of the nature and purpose of each and every created thing as well as the processes used in the creation of that thing, you will soon realize that YOU ARE FOREVER TALKING TO NATURE AND NATURE IS FOREVER TALKING TO YOU. The more you do this, the more you acquire God-awareness, for God is Nature-and that is what we mean by cosmic thinking for cosmic thinking is actually talking to God as God is forever talking to YOU in His universal language of Light!

It should come as no surprise to learn that God speaks to and teaches every living creature on Earth and in the skies and seas whatever it needs or desires to know for survival to maturity and death. Man's language consists of words. God's language of Light consists of but nine words which apply to His Body and three which apply to His Mind. Now, doesn't this become simple?

#### The nine words which reach Man and all living things of nature are these: <u>IDENTITY</u>--<u>MOTION</u>--<u>SOUND</u>--<u>ODOR--COLOR--FORM</u>--<u>TEMPERATURE</u>--<u>-RIIYTIIM</u>--<u>TIME</u>.

The three words which reach his Mind are: <u>INSTINCT--INSPIRATION--</u> <u>IMAGINATION</u>. Of these, "instinct" is the manner in which God speaks to early forms of living creatures, and the other two words are those used when life form has advanced beyond the stage where the senses alone are relied upon for knowledge or for survival.

It is necessary at this point to define the meaning of "knowledge" for it is the generally accepted idea that knowledge is acquired through sensed observation. That is not true, for Nature never reveals her basic truths through the senses of motion. The senses are mightily deceived by the illusions of perspective and other optical effects, for the senses are forced to view Nature through the convexity or concavity of light pressures which constitute this curved universe of motion. The senses, therefore, can be informed and they can reason deductively to arrive at axiomatic conclusions, but all down through the ages these conclusions have been perpetually discarded and replaced with other conclusions up to this very day. Even now it is still believed that such conclusions and axioms can be mathematically proven, for mathematics do not lie. That is weak reasoning, however, for Man's axioms are not self-evident truths; they are but ASSUMPTIONS of truths.

We, therefore, define "knowledge" as AWARENESS OF IDEA. The extent of any Man's knowledge is, consequently, the sum total of his comprehension of idea. As idea itself is never created but only manifested through moving ideabodies, his senses are limited to those idea-bodies until his Mind transcends their boundaries.

It is a basic fact of Nature that all living things are forever seeking God whether they know it or not for God is Light and every blade of grass, tree of forest, animal of the jungle or rose in your garden is constantly seeking the idea-body of Light which the sun is.

To exemplify the meaning, consider the newborn babe when it begins to reach out to touch things which it immediately tries to put into its mouth. Its instinct has already told it that survival lies in the taking of things into its mouth. Everything it touches takes on a meaning for it. That meaning may be ever so slight but it is the beginning of its education in the school where God is its only teacher.

# The senses of man are his doorway to his Mind, but his senses cannot KNOW IDEAS; they can but react to the meaning conveyed by idea-bodies.

It is most unfortunate that your educational institutions and your science are in such infantile and foolish condition that they depend entirely upon information gleaned through the senses and consider it impossible to gain it cosmically through inspiration or imagination for this limits "teaching" and "learning" to a purely political-perception basis for knowledge. Until educators become non-political and realize that God is the first, last and only TEACHER, that TRUTH lies in the invisible universe beyond the reach of Man's senses, and that Nature always has the last word in every transaction and conclusion of Man, the whole human race and its institutions will never transcend their sense-limited stage and advance to the stage of genius or cosmic consciousness. Thus is the very reason the teacher who walks with that God and serves with that God would be sent to you at this time--and `ATON' would send no lesser TEACHER than himself to show you the way and passage.

# GOD--THE SUPREME COSMIC TEACHER

I always come forth with the Hosts to share in the teachings and to abide beside My children--for the way of physical expression is a hard grouping of lessons in the life-stream of Man (and individual expression). We will also herein analyze the nine words which I just gave unto you which constitute My universal language of Light. Every one of these words is applicable to every created idea.

**IDENTITY.** The fact that every creating thing is what it is and cannot be any other thing gives it its identity. A violet, for example, cannot be a rose, an oak tree or a man.

MOTION. Motion is the first step away from the static universe from which the dynamic universe is extended. Therefore, all creating things move in wave cycles to generate compression pressures and heat which radiates back to the cold of its origin for reincarnation of the idea it manifests. Motion is perpetually telling its secrets to observant ones who desire to be taught its various effects.

<u>SOUND</u>. Every created thing emits sounds of varying kinds. This applies to even the atom at its first explosion which causes its emergence from its seed in the inert gases to its return to them. Such sounds are beyond Man's range of hearing but many can be amplified so they can be heard. The emanations of radium, for example, can be amplified so the sound is like a miniature Automatic Assault weapon.

Even the fishes of the seas emit sounds which have a meaning to other fishes. The birds of the air have mate calls which convey meanings to other birds and also to Man who is informed of their identities by sounds only, when they cannot be seen. The nightingale tells you that it is near and the owl, likewise, tells you of its identity and presence. The sound of the factory whistle tells the whole neighborhood that it is noon as plainly as though another person told you in spoken words.

**ODOR.** Odor plays a distinctive part in relation to the survival of Man or animal. The fox would starve if it depended upon its eyes alone for food. The rabbit leaves its own distinctive odor behind it which the fox follows. The odor of a sheep or cow is just as clear to the fox but it knows that they are not its prey. Each odor conveys a different meaning, for every created thing has its own distinctive odor which spells out its identity as clearly as though it could talk and say, "I am a rabbit," or "I am a lemon," or "I am an apple." How often have you gone into a room and smelled something burning in the kitchen, or gas escaping, which you otherwise could not detect? Odors are, therefore, as much a part of your education as your geography lessons in school are a part of it. Also, they are as necessary for your survival as they are for the survival of the animals of the forest.

**COLOR.** Every element or particle in the universe has its own distinctive place in the color spectrum to tell all things of its identity and purpose in Creation. Likewise, complex bodies have their own complex colors. When you walk through your gardens or forests, the very colors are telling you that they are violets, or roses, or pansies, or oaks, or pines, or spruce trees. The golden fire of the sunset talks to you in its own way and the lemon, orange or apple in theirs. How natural it is for all things to talk that way and you talk to them in the same language. Why can you not realize, therefore, that you are talking to God through them as directly as you talk to a friend through a telephone receiver for God created you and all things else?

FORM. Every material body has a distinctive form of its own species which tells other forms of its identity. Each one distinctly tells all other things in the universe what it is and what it can do. The form of a lemon tells you its identity as clearly as its odor tells you. One speaks through your sense of taste and the other through your sense of vision. Look about you wherever you may go and you will see that every object is telling you what it is and what it can do even though one had no word for it. A hammer, for example, tells you what it can do even if it had no name.

<u>TEMPERATURE</u>. All idea-bodies have varying melting and freezing points which tell you of their identities in relation to other bodies. Temperature tells you when water will freeze or boil. It tells you when you must put on a coat or take it off. It tells you not to touch this or you may touch that.

In animal or human life, these temperature normalcies allow but little extension either way. Nature has designed Man to withstand a temperature normalcy of about ninety-eight degrees. Even two degrees above that warns him of death by fever. Three more degrees are fatal unless alleviated most speedily. Likewise, a human cannot live in a pressure of five atomospheres above or below sea-level pressure. Each living thing has its own temperature normalcy just as it has its own heartbeat and blood pressure normalcy. These normalcies have deep meanings and form the basis of information to you, to your doctor, and to the various scientists who specialize in animal life from the insect to the elephant.

**RHYTHM.** All effects of Nature are rhythmic, for all are wave effects and the wave constitutes the rhythmic heartbeat of the universe. A deep variation of the rhythm of your own heartbeat would mean death to you, for the heart will allow but very little variation without telling you so and warning you by shock or otherwise. Rhythm is the basis of balance in the arts. In music, the slightest variation is noticeable while greater variations result in discord and inharmony.

<u>Rhythmic balanced interchangings are evident in all of Nature's effects</u>, from the steady walk of a Man to the alternating piston strokes of an engine, the whirr of a motor or the crashing of waves on the seashore. The rhythm of the waltz conveys one meaning and arouses its appropriate emotion, the rhythm of the soldiers' march arouses another, while the rhythm of the drum beat of primitives in the jungle arouses still another emotion.

The rhythm arouses emstion - Marches-Patrictic Sungs-<u>TIME</u>. The general concept of time is that it is eternally existent in itself. That is not so. If motion never began, time would have never have begun. Time is the interval between sequences of events such as the pulsations of life. The eternal zero is timeless. There is nothing in it to count, nothing by which to "measure".

Time is the recorder of wave frequencies and their countless variations which take place in the octaves of matter. It conveys countless meanings to the physicist, the musician, the manufacturer and all who constitute your very civilization. It is one of the teachers of My ways and processes to man without which, in their totality, Man could not possibly survive, nor could any living creature on Earth survive.

So let Me summarize a bit for you herein: These nine attributes of motion constitute the teaching faculty in God's school in which God, the Creator of them, is the head-Master. It is incredible that anyone who realizes that He could not survive without these moment-to-moment teachers, all of which are perpetually attendant upon every living creature on Earth, could ever deny the existence of their, and his, Creator. To deny God is to deny love and beauty without which one would be alone and desolate, for <u>loneliness</u> is <u>self-inflicted</u> upon those who have not given, or do not give, out from themselves sufficient love and beauty to become one with the WHOLE, or cannot do so because of a loveless environment such as a man on an uninhabited island.

God is Love-and Light-and Ecstasy. He who has these qualities within him can never be lonely. The nine teachers herein described are His nine inanimate messengers created by Him to lead you to His very door of Love and Beauty and Ecstasy in His high heavens.

Listen to them, chelas, and heed them, even as you listen to the living Messengers whom He sends to Earth at crucial times in Man's unfolding to save Man from himself and lead him ever nearer to the One Light which Men and God are.

#### SUBJECTS MANDATORY FOR UNDERSTANDING

It will appear that this is neither the proper placement nor relative information to this particular book. No, it is all so completely interwoven that it fits anywhere in any volume. The point is that, as you read in this book, you will find so much of diagrammatic and physical physics indwelling that you may well forget the primary focus and intent of comprehensive KNOWLEDGE and I am here to see that that is not the case so we will just simply have the longest "INTRODUCTION" in history--<u>it is time you change your outdated mode of operations</u>. Information is appropriate WHEREVER INFORMATION CAN FLOW!

#### CONFUSION OF IDEAS REGARDING THE SPIRITUAL

#### AND PHYSICAL ASPECTS OF MAN

Let us clarify herein, a bit more carefully, the relations between the Light of the undivided cosmic universe of MIND-KNOWING and the divided sensed universe of MIND-THINKING; it is well to summarize and review the preparations for better understanding which the earlier lessons have covered and bear much greater review by all of you. We have enjoyed our own bit of humor herein by your own standards when one said to Germain--"Where and when should Aton take liberties with the work?"--his reply--"Dear sir, any time and any place HE wants to!" Thank you for your kind allowances to my humble self.

You have been subjected and channeled by bindings of blind reasoning (nonreason). So many theories are based upon misunderstood mental and physical experiences, and so many misconceptions of God and Mind based upon sensing that it is well to vividly define these relations from a scientific basis so that all guessing will be entirely eliminated from future comprehension. The confusion of ideas with theories has arisen because of the impossibility of penetrating the veil of the invisible universe of Mind-KNOWING through the senses of the body. The miscomprehension of Man that he is thinking with his Mind when he is only sensing with his body has given rise to the many misconceptions regarding both Mind and body. That is why you hear so much that is popularly believed about such non-existent things and conditions as unconsciousness, conscious Mind, subconscious Mind, superconscious Mind, the human mind, mortal mind and other terms. These all arise from the misbelief that people are thinking when they are but sensing with their electric senses-which do not think and cannot know anything.

The more you study and restudy the previous lessons until those first principles become a part of your knowing, the more you will find yourself beyond the possibility of confusion.

To these previous lessons I would add a brief explanation of what CAUSES such strange misconceptions. I wish to stimulate your imagination with another presentation of the difference between the spiritual and physical universes which is different from any you have ever heard. We will do this in order to help you see the material universe as we see it and the spiritual universe as God taught you to KNOW it.

# EXPLANATION OF UNCONSCIOUSNESS AS WE USE IT

# THERE IS NO SUCH CONDITION AS UNCONSCIOUSNESS.

When you are wide awake, your body is like the rippled surface of a lake or turbulent ocean. It is vibrant with waves. Those vibrating waves of motion are your senses. They are also your body. They are made up of countless millions of fast turning rings of light which are encircling their Mind-centers.

Give some thought to this for just a moment. When you <u>fully realize</u> that your <u>body is only waves of vibrant motion</u>, you would not possibly think of your spiritual Self, the eternal Being which is YOU, as being only waves of motion.

YOU have inspired thoughts, deep emotions, glorious conceptions. You cannot possibly attribute your love of beauty, your family and friends, your rapture of Soul in contemplation of Nature or your inventive genius to the waves of motion which constitute your senses. Nor can you think of your knowledge as being motion. Your vibrating senses do not know anything. They are not conscious of anything. All they can do is to sense other motion. In other words, all they can do is to feel. Senses are made to feel other motion and that is all they do-nothing more.

You recognize having five senses, that of seeing, tasting, smelling, hearing and feeling. <u>ALL OF THESE ARE BUT ONE</u>. You FEEL differently with your eyes, ears, nose, tongue and body, but they are all just the one sense of feeling. And that is all that the whole physical universe is composed of just

senses--sensed waves--sensed bodies of motion which FEEL other sensed bodies of motion.

Moreover, no sensed body in the universe could even move if not "told to do so" by the Intelligence which centers it. Just as your car cannot move without desire extended to it by its centering Intelligence so, likewise, your body and all other bodies move only because of desire of the Universal Intelligence centering them, and not otherwise. And this is as true of the atom or stellar system as it is true of the little finger of your body. All of them are controlled by the Universal Intelligence which centers all matter.

Your senses are the intercommunicating system which connects every atom of your body to every other atom in it. All cells feel each other's motions. They are all extensions from a "central switchboard" which is your brain. We have stated before that your brain does not know anything, for it is also but motion. Your Intelligence sends messages to other senses through the brain. The Intelligence of the whole universe likewise sends messages to all the rest of the Universal Body through the centering nerve ganglions of each atom in the universe. The entire universe is but one intercommunicating Mind-controlled sensed body, each atom of it being centered by the Universal Intelligence which created it and is controlling it. That is Nature's radar principle.

For ages, people have thought that the sensing of one state of motion by another state of motion in one's body is THINKING instead of just merely FEELING. Sensed feeling of motion by other motion has no relation to thinking, whatso-ever, for thinking is a manifestation of knowing. As sensed matter cannot know anything, it cannot and does not think or know.

If the senses of Man could think or have knowledge, the human race would have had such discoveries as the flame, the wheel or the boat, ages and ages ago, for the senses could feel as well then as they do now, but thinking did not begin in Man for long ages after his beginnings. Likewise, the senses of animals can feel as well or better than humans, but animals do not invent or discover laws, processes or principles in Nature.

Animals reason just as men do, but <u>reasoning is just weighing one effect of</u> sensed experience with other effects which arise from your "sense of observation".

What you mistake for the mental action of thinking is purely sense reasoning. It is not Mind-consciousness at all. Nor is conscious Mind aware of motion for it does not even KNOW of it.

<u>Reasoning is the awareness of one sense of motion by another sense of motion</u> and the ability to analyze and assemble other states of motion into one mechanism to simulate idea. The whole universe is "wired" from every point in the universe to every other point to transfer any sensation anywhere to everywhere. Reasoning is the first step in the direction of becoming aware of a centering Mind with a body.

If, for example, your body is in balance with its environment, which means if it

is comfortable, you cannot sense the fact because the senses will not vibrate in an equilibrium. When there is no sensation, the nerve wiring of your body is "dead". You must be unbalanced, or uncomfortable, before the senses will vibrate to tell all your other sensed nerves that your body is uncomfortable or cold. If it is cold, that awareness then causes you to get a coat for your body. Or if you are hungry or wet, or fall out of balance, your senses will immediately vibrate, but not otherwise.

A great deal of concentrative energy is expended to keep your sensed body vibrating sufficiently for you to be aware of either your body or its sensations. That is what I mean by saying: "When you are wide awake, your body is like the rippling surface of a lake or turbulent ocean, vibrant with wave motion."

When you are asleep, either from fatigue or from an anesthetic, your body is no longer vibrant with wave motion. The waves "lie down to rest" because they are depolarized. Wakefulness is a polarized condition which induces strong wave vibrations.

You sleep when your senses become too fatigued to vibrate, BUT YOU DO NOT BECOME UNCONSCIOUS. Your very small measure of Mind-awareness remains unaffected. As stated before, there is no such condition of the Mind as unconsciousness. You do not say that your tooth is unconscious when anesthetized. Why say it of your brain? Both are but sensed matter.

<u>Mind is unchanging and unconditioned</u>. The thinking of Mind changes, but thoughts of Mind are not Mind. Thoughts are motion and Mind is still. <u>Thoughts manifest knowledge, but thoughts are not knowledge</u>.

The silent harp string has in it the soul of an idea. The vibrating harp string gives that idea a body which you can hear as sound. Sounds are sensation. All bodies are sensations. When the sound vibrations "lie down to rest" in the equilibrium of the harp string, the idea of that harp string is still there in the silence from which the sound sprang. You can still consciously know the sound but you cannot sense it. You are still conscious of the idea conveyed the sound.

Bodies can feel sound but a Soul can put something else into sound which bodies cannot sense. A great musician can put his Soul into it as a message to other Souls. Those in whom the Light of Soul has not yet awakened will hear only the body of the sound and not the Soul. One is sense-awareness and the other is Mind-awareness. <u>YOUR KNOWLEDGE DOES NOT LEAVE YOU WIIEN</u> <u>YOU SLEEP. SENSATION ALONE LEAVES YOU</u>.

#### SUBCONSCIOUS AND SUPERCONSCIOUS MIND

These terms are commonly accepted terms by practically all metaphysicians, writers, workers in the arts, psychiatrists and others who give thought to human mental processes. There are no such conditions as either subconscious or superconscious states of Mind. The confusion of ideas which have borne such concepts have arisen from the <u>mistaken belief</u> that <u>sensations</u> of the body <u>were</u> <u>mental</u>. And yet, listen up, there is <u>separation</u> in processing of <u>material</u> and therefore do not cast out these terms in your assumption of their falseness-it is the concept that is incorrect. Body-sensing has been mistaken for thinking, so when the vibrations which caused sensations in the body weakened sufficiently to reduce the body's awareness of motion sufficiently to deaden or stupefy the senses, people concluded that they were unconscious because their bodies had lost all awareness of their bodies. <u>Consciousness is the state of KNOWING</u>. There is no activity in <u>KNOWING</u>, but there is activity in <u>THINKING</u>.

Mind is not stratified into sub or super layers. Mind is universal. It is all there is, and it is everywhere the same unchanging ONE UNDIVIDED LIGHT OF ALL-KNOWING FROM WHICH ALL MOTION SPRINGS. CONSCIOUSNESS NEVER CHANGES! Everyone is always conscious but few are aware of it. The human race has not yet unfolded to the point where it is cosmically aware of its Conscious Soul.

To most people, the idea of consciousness means thinking of something. <u>Consciousness is a state of Being, an ecstasy</u>. [ECSTASY: A state of being beyond reason and self-control; a state of overwhelming emotion. Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary.] It is not form or action. A true mystic is <u>Mind-conscious all of the time whether awake or asleep</u>. That state of ecstasy is not dependent upon wakefulness of body. It is a Mind state entirely. Its own ecstasy will often awaken a sleeping body when deep inspiration in it is desirous for creative expression. Every genius is perfectly familiar with this frequent occurrence in himself. Many who are not familiar with the very fact of it become deeply inspired when such a message comes from their own Soul. It may awaken them forcibly and compel them to put their inspiration into body form. Hundreds of people have told you that "Ascended Masters" have spoken to them and have written through them. A Chopin or a Leonardo would understand that such inspirations come from their own Souls and not from any other source.

## THE SUPREME HOPE OF MANKIND

I am going to close this portion by climaxing all that has gone before with some IDEAS for you to give deep thought to for the unfoldment of your own higher powers. We are mindful of the fact that the reason for your reading this material varies but our thrust is with but ONE intent. You students (chelas) are now a long way out front of your brothers and the gap between you and the masses has long ago widened into a chasm. You are not ready for them. You have had sufficient cosmic awakening to have generated within your spiritual Self an intense desire for the Light of all-knowing which will transform you from the human animal stage of unfolding man, whose body senses have been preponderant in dominating his life, to the Divine Cosmic Being whose Soul-Will will be the absolute master of your body-sensing. YOUR awakening to the Light of Love will awaken your brother to the Light. You are the Light of the World. You are the teacher that will give the Light unto Man for the saving of himself. That means not that you will go forth and cram the printed pages down his throat and remember, that no matter how well you may comprehend this infor-

# mation--you do not yet KNOW all. Yours is to offer ONLY. So be it.

The whole human race is divided into two general groupings: a renascent few of the many whose ascension is toward the Light and the decadent millions whose descension is toward the dark.

The world is undergoing the agonies of a cataclysmic rebirth from body-sensing to Mind-knowing. You who are becoming aware of your Soul will become the seed for saving the human race from its deep plunge into the darkest of all its dark ages since the Dawn of Consciousness in man. Civilization has been self-destroyed many times during the past six thousand years and is again being self-destroyed, and all for the same reasons--SELFISHNESS OF BODIES AND DESIRES OF BODIES FOR SENSATIONS OF BODIES. Civilization can be reborn only through LOVE OF MIND EXPRESSED IN BROTHER-HOOD OF ETERNAL MAN WITHIN BODIES.

# For thousands of years, men have been hurting each other to gain something for themselves. They have not yet discovered that they cannot hurt another without hurting themselves.

The reason for the present decadence of the human race is because of the accumulation of self-punishments resulting from the continued hurting of Man's own self BY HIMSELF while attempting to hurt other men.

Empires are being disintegrated because of Man's attempt to gain happiness, wealth, power and prosperity for himself by destroying the happiness, wealth, power and prosperity of others.

New empires are attempting to be built by destroying other empires. <u>Empire</u> builders have themselves created their own destroyers. To live by the sword is to die by the sword.

Empires are not only being destroyed from without but from within. Graft and corruption are rampant in governments. An era of unprecedented crime and moral degradation is undermining all countries as termites undermine buildings.

Nations which were built upon crime are being destroyed by crime, nation by nation and man by man. That which man gave to man is being regiven to him in his own image.

There is deep decadence in all the arts. Beauty has been replaced by ugliness in painting, music and sculpture. Culture is at a lowering ebb all over the world. No great men are being produced of such majestic standards as those great geniuses who have given you that which is wondrous in present world culture. Many geniuses are still being born into the world, but they are not being given the recognition needed for survival for the point of the corruption is to destroy that which is already present as values and prevent the new of beauty and perfection to flourish.

Dharma, allow us a break for rest and other business needs and then I will continue this message. It is one of the most, *perhaps THE MOST*, important offerings which will come from this realm. I shall stand aside until you are ready to continue, so please summon Me when you are prepared.

# REC #3 ATON

# THURSDAY, JULY 11, 1991 1:54 P.M. YEAR 4, DAY 329

# THE GREAT DESTROYER OF UNFOLDING MAN

As times seem to worsen in many aspects of living, <u>please</u> be aware of that worsening for if you do not, you may be led to believe, through the lies thrust upon you, that "things" are getting better--THEY ARE NOT.

The supreme tragedy of this age is not alone in its wars. Wars destroy the best blood of a small percentage of whole peoples, but alcohol, tobacco and other drugs are destroying an extremely large percentage of men, women and teenage children as well as now oozing into the very young ages and lower grade school children throughout the entire world who are slaves to the slow mental and physical poisoning by nicotine and other damaging substances, other drugs and narcotics. For a century, this decaying process of man has been growing worse upon so huge a scale that tobacco and drugs are rated as two of the five greatest "industries" of the world. The great danger in the use of such drugs as tobacco lies in the ignorance of people as to what such drugs are doing to them. One of the worst, and most hidden dangers in that which you call smoking of tobacco, is that the processors are of the major cartel which also owns the pharmaceutical corporations worldwide and, in the processing and "curing" of the tobacco, sugar is utilized. Sugar then carmelizes in the burning process which creates a toxic cancer-causing element.

# WHAT DRUGS ARE DOING TO THE HUMAN RACE

There is no way to include all the ramifications herein at this point because the consideration must in actuality be inclusive of AIDS spread through infected needles, etc. But we will touch on some most important impacts on the unfolding of the direction of Man's spiritual Self.

Awakening Man is unfolding in the direction of his spiritual divine Self. A small fraction of the human race has already been sufficiently illumined with the Light of God-awareness to deeply desire to live within the Light and know its joy. I do not speak of that which the "religions" preach on a Sunday morning-I speak of the awareness of Higher Source as friend and guide--not the doctrines as laid forth by some half-baked self-proclaimed knower of his own "preferred" doctrine.

To these few of the many, Soul-Will absolutely dominates the matter which is their body. These few are finding the Kingdom of Heaven with their Con-

sciousness and can know its heavenly rhythms by being able to completely forget their bodies as a centering focus of all attention. Forgetfulness of body and command of body by Soul-Will are the supreme achievements of the mystic and the genius who know the ecstasy of the Divine Light. This does not mean that these humans go about as if they have been struck by rapid-fire lightning of pious revelation and put on a false front of pretending to be that which they are not.

It has taken millions of years and countless re-journeyings for the unfolding of <u>Cosmic Man</u> (Higher Universal Man [human]) to that high stage where he can sever body-sensation from his Consciousness to the extent that <u>he can be</u> entirely freed from domination by his sensed-body and master it by his own Soul.

Millions upon millions of humans who have already arrived at the very door to the Kingdom of Heaven ARE NOW CLOSING THAT DOOR by becoming enslaved by their own bodies through addictions to substances which damage the very fiber of the body tissues and alter the mental functioning. Nicotine is a simple, seemingly harmless enough, but insidious and treacherous slow-acting drug which is closing the long sought door to the Light for countless millions. The emotional reasons are as numerous as the physical for ones who become addicted to anything can not give themselves freedom of forgiveness for that addiction.

People who habitually smoke cannot either forget or rule their bodies for the desire is always pulling attention back into the sensual desire for "another smoke" which simply keeps the person locked into the here and now of the physical demands. Drug addicts are ruled totally by their bodies to the exclusion of Soul-awareness except at rare intervals when just the right amount of drugs balances their changed normality for a few moments in intervals between the action and reaction cycles of the drug poisonings.

It is claimed that smoking does not injure the body physically. It certainly does. It causes innumerable injuries ranging from stomach ulcers, lung and throat infections, to lung cancers and heart weakness. But that is not the most important fact because the body is not of the first importance. The important fact is that smoking gradually "depolarizes" the reasoning and thought processes to such an extent that time cycles develop in which the body periodically demands nicotine to stimulate the brain cells. At that time, then, the body DEMANDS another cigarette.

The human body is made up of a formula which consists almost entirely of oxygen, hydrogen, carbon and nitrogen. The large portions of these elements total 98-1/2 percent of Man's whole body structure. The other 1-1/2 percent is made up of mineral salts, but in infinitesimally small quantities. There is no nicotine in any of that 1-1/2 percent and that is why it is so injurious. No one can take anything into his body which is not prescribed for him in his body formula without having signs of violation and poisoning. Nicotine and/or other drugs are not included in it; therefore, they are also injurious to him in many physical ways but more injurious to him mentally. Any drug has a stupefying effect upon the brain cells which makes clear thinking more difficult. It is a strange fact that when the brain is dulled by drugs, the only cure for it is more drugs which bring normalcy back for a while, then more drugs become necessary until the habit is one demanded by the body. Slavery to the substance then follows.

Some smokers' bodies will only DEMAND six or so cigarettes a day while others will demand one every twenty minutes. These become "chain smokers" who have lost practically all Soul-Will. Chain smokers are body slaves to a drug. Further, you will note the ones that argue against this fact are the ones who have the addiction! He who would deny his slavery to nicotine, food, alcohol, etc., may prove his freedom from it by asserting his will over the power of the substance. Not one in a thousand longtime smokers ever succeeds in proving his own will-power over the nicotine but rather usually proves the nicotine's power over him. The fact of body-slavery is the important thing for any Man to ponder over who is in search of his own Soul and its dwelling place in the high heavens of God's Light. Most, however, you will find are not searching for that placement with God at any rate for Man has forgotten the Truth of that which God is.

Man is divine. He is the Son of God when he KNOWS he is-but he can never know it through body-sensing. He can only know it through the ecstasy of inspiration while within the Light.

Eternal Man is Omnipotent, Omniscient and Omnipresent but the body of Man is but sensed-clay and has neither power nor knowledge. Just as long as man is but sensed-clay, he is sensed-clay--and nothing more.

The human race is seeking the Kingdom of Heaven through the Spirit. The Inner Voice of God is always directing every Man to the door of Light-but as long as man is but sensed-clay he cannot hear that Inner Voice. Therein lies the tragedy of <u>Man's suicide of the Spirit by the use of these abusive sub-</u> stances.

Habitual uses of these things so effectually change the polarity of their bodies that they more and more effectually shut out the Inner Voice as they suppress Spirit in favor of gratifying the senses. Even the genius Mind who becomes addicted to these substances in excess is unable to express his genius until the stimulation of the drug allows him to become aware of the Light in him for just a short interval, then the substance calls loudly to his senses and he reaches out for the drug to which his body has become the slave.

It is painfully sad when the enslaved cannot remove himself from the trap for the trap is one of ever increasing imprisonment. Think of the tragedy of a great Mind realizing that it can never rise to the height of Self except through the delusions of drugging the containing body.

The great spiritual awakening of unfolding Man can come only through awareness of the Light in Man. Alcohol and other addicting substances taken into the body in sufficient quantities change one's polarity so much that the normal body polarity is lowered to an artificial one and prevents any user of such drugs from manifesting God in him except during those ever-lessening intervals when the drug stimulates him enough to allow him to reach his ARTIFICIAL normalcy. For brief moments he may even look upon the face of God and create inspired art while momentarily free, but those moments ever lessen as the bonds of slavery tighten to tear him from his high throne of the Spirit of eternal Man to become again but sensed-clay of earth.

## SEARCH FOR SIMPLICITY

You live in a bewildering world which confuses you only because you do not KNOW it. A primate would be similarly confused with a watch. To him, its wheels would have no meaning because both the mechanics and purpose of the watch would be incomprehensible to him. Yet the watch is very simple to you. Its mechanics and purpose are familiar to you and you consider it a most beneficial and necessary tool. You regard it as a simple thing to understand.

You are confused about Creation because you do not know it. Likewise, you are confused about the Creator because you do not know Him. Also you are confused about the mechanics and purposefulness of matter and motion because you do not know them. You may think you need not be interested in knowing about matter and motion because it seems difficult, but you MUST know their cause, and that is very simple. Without this knowledge, you are like a ship without a navigator.

You <u>MUST come into knowing of your universe</u> for your body, which you are building, is one unit of it. You must know how to control it. You also must know it for what it is instead of what you think it is. When you become familiar with it as being but certain states of motion, you must know that those states of motion are wave-records of your desires just as a picture is the record of the painter's desire.

A manufacturer produces a better product in the measure of his knowledge of this product. Your body is as much your product as the products of a factory. <u>Millions of years of your desire produced</u> *u*. In one minute the desire of your will can alter its entire structural balance in either direction--toward life or death without the slightest physical action upon your part.

The medical profession can make enormous strides in its great service to man by starting upon a basis of greater knowledge of CAUSE of the countless effects it encounters. In its search for CAUSE of effects in matter, its beginnings should be in a greater knowledge of motion, which matter is, and the relation of Mind to motion which controls body structure.

It is for this reason that we must talk in simple language while taking matter apart to see how and why it works, just as we have to take the watch apart for the same reason. The need for simple language is great because the things which shall be told to you about motion need the replacing of old concepts with new ones. These new concepts must become new foundations for comprehension of things not yet known or even dreamed of in Nature.

All mankind is still in as primate a stage concerning the CAUSE and PUR-

POSEFULNESS of all effects of motion as the early Man to whom you are trying to explain the watch. You would have to explain one thing after another to him in the simplest words, about the wheels, the gears, the central shaft and its extensions, before he even faintly comprehended its mechanism. Even then, he would know nothing of its motivating force nor the principle of time itself. No matter how simple your words would be, you would find it very difficult to make the thing which is so simple to you seem simple to him. You would find yourself using the simplest kind of words as though you were talking to a child.

This is what we have been doing in order to lay a simple foundation for the motivating Spirit in the still center of the universal shaft from which all power is extended for its cycles of divided and multiplied power. All wheels are geared through each other to manifest the tick-tick of the heartbeat of the universe which spells out the time sequences of every action-reaction of Creation. Therefore, every part of the watch is dependent on every other part.

And so it is that we must find simple words and simple examples to explain fully to you the tick-tick of the divided universe of time and space which has one tick on each side of every equator to balance each other's un-balanced condition and repeat it upon the other side of the equator as the other tick of the cosmic pendulum. We do not ever intend to present insult to intelligence but if you are to learn something totally new-you must begin at the beginning.

## YOU SIMULTANEOUSLY LIVE IN TWO WORLDS AND YOU

# MUST KNOW BOTH OF THEM THOROUGHLY AS WELL AS

# THEIR RELATION TO EACH OTHER

The universal pump would not continue to unfold this appearing-disappearing two-world universe if it were not for that interchange of motion from one side of an equator to the other as long as the energy of DESIRE divides the undivided still Light into pairs of moving lights.

Suppose that, instead of using the words "appearing-disappearing" universe in the above paragraph, we used the words "living-dying" universe--or "growing-decaying"--or "generating-degenerating"--or "compressing-expanding"--or "polarizing-depolarizing"--or "charging-discharging" or "centripetal-centrifugal" universe.

No matter which pair of words used, they would all have the same meaningexplicitly. They are, all of them, the compression-expansion strokes of the piston which pumps opposite pressures FROM EACH OTHER TO MAKE BOD-IES SEEM TO APPEAR OUT OF NOTHING AND THEN DISAPPEAR INTO THAT SEEMING NOTHING WHICH IS THE ETERNAL REALITY OF ALL SEEMING.

It is not helpful to talk abstractly about REALITY and UNREALITY. These phrases, and many like them such as the divided and the undivided, the physical

and the spiritual or mortal mind and divine Mind, are commonly used, but if most people were pinned down with the necessity of explaining them to someone who "wanted to know", they would find themselves in a quandary. But you who are acquiring this knowledge will be able to explain all of such phrases as you become better acquainted with "KNOWLEDGE".

Knowing what they mean gives you a supremacy of power over all things, of your own body as well as the universal body, of cultural things as well as physical, for out of the rhythms of the divided universe comes the expression of all of the arts-and from the undivided Light comes the Soul of idea which is extended to cultural and intellectual expression in the arts. Likewise, your knowledge of the secrets which lie hidden within the wave gives you mastery of universal mechanics, mathematics and energy expression. Conversations are too much filled with abstractions and affirmations without comprehension of their meaning.

Recall what so many have called the great mystery of how <u>solid</u> and liquid <u>bodies</u> emerge from space and are swallowed up again by it, which means how the divided universe emerges from the undivided Light of Mind</u>. Meditate upon this thought for a while.

We are not trying to make you look upon Nature more simply, but we are trying to make you look upon life and death more simply-as simply as you look upon sound and silence. WE ARE TRYING TO MAKE YOU KNOW THAT YOU CANNOT DIE. MOREOVER, IF YOU CANNOT DIE THEN YOU MUST COME INTO UNDERSTANDING OF THE JOURNEY OF LIFE-STREAM.

When you breathe in, you are manufacturing your body because you desire to live. When you breathe out, you are destroying your body because you desire to die. You desire to die just as much as you desire to live. Do not be too hasty in denying this. Think about it for a while. Let us think about it together and see if <u>true</u> thinking of <u>Nature</u> is not better than false thinking.

#### ACTION AND LIFE MANIFEST REST AND DEATH

Let us think about life and death again but let us not use those two words which had such a hopeful-dreadful connotation. Let us absolutely forget that pair of words by substituting instead the words <u>MOTION and REST</u>. And when you think of motion, think of it as being divided—and of rest as being undivided and undivisible.

Recall what we have said about <u>DESIRE itself</u> being divided into two opposite expressions of energy--the desire to concentrate and the desire to decentrate. When you desire to manifest an idea at rest in your Mind, you concentrate your thinking by setting it in <u>MOTION</u>. You continue to multiply that <u>MOTION</u> until you focus it into an imaged BODY of that invisible idea. In other words, you wind up something which was invisible until it becomes visible. You generate a condition called solidity. Then what do you do? You decentrate

your thinking by setting your brakes against that multiplication of MOTION. MOTION then decelerates until it comes to REST in the idea from which it started. In other words, you unwind that which you have made visible until it becomes invisible. <u>You radiate motion into "space" by stopping thinking to</u> find that stillness in the "Kingdom of Heaven" which is within you.

Again I repeat the principle that all <u>MOTION</u> starts from a point of <u>REST</u>, seeks a point of <u>REST</u>, and returns to the equilibrium of <u>REST</u> from which it sprang. Motion starts centripetally to wind up into formed bodies-and ends centrifugally to unwind them into zero.

Perhaps we may now formulate a definition of Creation based upon the above as follows:

#### CREATION IS AN IDEA AT REST IN GOD'S KNOWING-MIND, MANIFESTED BY TWO-WAY MOTION IN GOD'S THINKING MIND.

Deep thought upon this idea should reveal to you that LIFE is but desire for MOTION-and DEATH is desire for REST from MOTION in God's zero universe. Likewise, both LIFE and DEATH are but bodies of thoughts formed in, the image of thoughts which come and go in thinking-Mind forever. The greater the vitality which generates power to multiply motion, the greater is your ability to manifest LIFE in your body-but the moment you divide that power by depolarization or fatigue, or anything whatsoever which reduces the power of your body cells to pump vigorously, that moment you express DEATH of body.

Now consider your desire in the morning to get into action and to express that power vitally all day. Do you not equally desire to cease from action at night to relax--then still later to cease even the action of thinking by fully resting in sleep?

If you will weigh them both in your thoughts, you will find that the desire for <u>REST</u> is equal to the desire for <u>MOTION</u>. <u>REST</u> is the direction of <u>DEATH</u> from which <u>LIFE</u> is reborn, for every condition in <u>Nature borns</u> its opposite condition.

Your desire to breathe in is equalled by your desire to breathe out--but when you breathe in, you compress to express LIFE by acceleration of motion--and when you breathe out, you expand to express DEATH by deceleration of motion.

When you breathe in, you CREATE your body. When you breathe out, you DESTROY your body. Your body APPEARS from the invisibility of REST-and DISAPPEARS from the visibility of motion. You are perpetually living and dying-growing and decaying-generating and radiating-moving and resting. Your body GROWS from multiplication of motion which charges it with power. It DECAYS from division of motion which discharges that power. It GENERATES and RADIATES for the same reason that it LIVES and DIES, and the desire for each is equal. Neither can be without the other. Each is born from the other simultaneously, then borns the other sequentially.

The principle of The Divine Trinity underlies all that is herein stated and its expression is possible only through two-way interchange of motion between each pair of opposites THROUGH EACH OTHER.

When any of your loved ones "die", you rightly feel a great sense of grief and loneliness. All the knowledge in the world will not assuage that expression of emotion. That is as it should be. You are, all of you, actors in the Divine Drama of Creation and if its actors did not express emotions which are appropriate to the lines of the play, they would be useless and purposeless actors.

Grief, suffering, loneliness and kindred emotions are as purposeful in the Divine Drama of Life as joyfulness, happiness and like emotions are purposeful. And being purposeful, they are good.

Sunshine in Nature would be a calamity without shadow--and an artist's picture would be purposeless and valueless without both sunshine and shadow in their balanced relations.

No matter how great your knowledge of the unreality of death may be--no matter how strongly you may live in the spiritual world--you must not forget that you have a physical body which manifests spiritual idea--and that you live in both the divided and the undivided universe of CAUSE and EF-FECT.

To have so much knowledge of the undivided universe that it leaves you cold to the emotions of the divided universe is to hold yourself aloof from the Play and renders you purposeless.

The greatest achievement of life is to learn how to take all things alike, but that does not mean one should become an intellectual stoic. God's body expresses all of the emotions and passions which result from a division of gravity pressures into two opposite conditions. All of them manifest God's thinking and they always balance. Storms subside--and the calm after the storm demonstrates that both are equally GOOD. The calm is lovelier after the storm just as the water is sweeter after the long drought.

What we do mean about learning to take all things alike is to be strong in the knowledge that all things are good—and every effect is divided into its opposite effect—and EACH of the pair is EQUAL to the other—each equally GOOD.

Your capacity for joy and happiness may be measured by your capacity for grief and suffering. All of the knowledge in the world should not dehumanize you. Your knowledge will, however, balance all opposite emotions and thus enrich you for having experienced them, while ignorance will breed fears, wornes, superstitions and other unnatural emotions which act as a terrible burden to your progress.

Knowledge of Universal Law will give you courage to transform the greatest defeat which ever threatened you into your greatest achievement. It will give

you a philosophy by means of which you may meet the grief of death enriched by the knowledge that every experience is GOOD, in that every experience strengthens you to meet all experiences alike.

You will know that the emergence of LIFE from the universal equilibrium is not greater nor better than its return journey to the same equilibrium for reemergence. You will know that the equator which borns LIFE has but transformed DEATH into another manifestation of life, which is as endless in its eternal repetition as the undivided universe is eternal in its changelessness.

And so it is that we must still unfold to you in simple words and diagrams the undivided BALANCE of the changeless ONE and the divided balance of the changing pairs of opposites which manifest THE ONE. You shall know that the undivided cannot be divided, but can SEEM TO BE. And you shall know that what emerges from one side of its equator is equal but opposite to that which is on the other side--and that EACH WILL DISAPPEAR IN SEEMING DEATH TO REBORN EACH OTHER AS SEEMING LIFE.

The anodes of the universe are the outbreathings of cathodes--and the cathodes are the inbreathings from anodes as surely as you, who breathe out, breathe in again to again breathe out--and as you who live are dying as you live and must forever die to forever live.

We are, then, building thought-bodies and give them form in light-waves of octave tones and call them solids of matter which constitute that inexplicable objective universe of so many things which mystify you and leave you so grossly ignorant that we write down tragedies and calamities in your lives which should be glorious with golden fruits of ecstatic knowing--and we write upon life's pages defeats and illnesses and breakdowns where naught but your immortal experience should be written.

All things on earths and heavens of this divided universe of God's recorded thoughts are GOOD because God's thoughts are GOOD. You may be perfectly willing to believe this statement as abstract truth but <u>BELIEF</u> in it without <u>KNOWING</u> will not make you strong. You must KNOW, for knowledge alone will make you strong.

To live life, one needs to be strong in knowledge rather than in body. Big cyclotrons are being built to do what a little knowledge would do perfectly. That little knowledge might even save the effort of building the cyclotrons.

Strength of body is like having a fine tool to do better work with, but no tool can produce work by itself and a weak mind cannot order a tool to do masterly work. The most important contributions to power and happiness in the world of man are knowledge and strength of character. Be strong and know, for life lies before you. You have to live it. You cannot evade it. Why not, therefore, live it masterfully?

Now what have I just said? Let us summarize a bit at this point.

#### <u>SUMMARY</u>

#### REC #4 ATON

Life is an acons-long journey to search for happiness. Happiness in man is an emotion which springs from love. To find happiness, Man must find love. The journey of life is for the finding of love. GOD IS LOVE!

When you find God, you find love. When you find God, you find the Kingdom of Heaven within your Self. When you find the Kingdom of Heaven, the purpose of life has been fulfilled. All else is added unto it for in finding the purpose of Life you find Self.

In the search for happiness, love and God, you make discoveries. In the long, long acons of making discoveries, you discover that what you have searched for during the acons you already have. You never find out that you have it until you desire to give it. You then discover that you have it to give. From the moment of that discovery, you find happiness and living the measure of your giving.

In your search for wealth, you discover that you already have wealth the moment you begin to give it. The measure of your wealth is the measure of your giving it.

Do you doubt your power? Give of what you have and you will discover that all the power in all the universe is yours to give. It is at the moment of your first giving that you discover your Omnipotence. You have searched and you have found. Countless millions are also searching but have not yet found even the path to the Kingdom.

<u>A new dawn of unfolding Man is breaking, ready or not</u>. Millions of searchers for the Kingdom of Heaven will die while searching for that which you have now found and yet, you cannot force it upon them for they must petition and desire for there to be any value whatsoever. You shall now, however, be able to give unto the seekers that for which they seek-the treasure of knowledge. You are the representative of the "saviour" through TRUTH in that which is coming within Man's places this day. This your Father-Mother commands of you-to share this knowledge that all might find the Truth of the Lighted Path and not be lost to the evil of the journey of the physical senses.

Every Man loses his life a million times to find eternal life, but he who has found eternal life and immortality shall bestow immortality upon him who seeks but has not yet found. Yea, millions will die, but God sends His Messengers to cause rebirth in Man. The long journey of Man's search for the Light will forever continue and the Light of Life will ever await the coming of Man into His knowing of the Light-but the agony of that awaiting *MUST AND SHALL BE MAN'S ALONE!* 

Let us have a short break period and then we will conclude. I still wish to discuss "balance" a bit before we close the narrative. Thank you.

THURSDAY, JULY 11, 1991 4:30 P.M. YEAR 4, DAY 329

#### BALANCE IN THOUGHT AND ACTION

It is your sole purpose and occupation in life to create divided and balanced thought-bodies in order to have good experiences and happy lives. We will take another simple step in the unfolding of God's plan and explain fully how God seemingly divides the unconditioned universal equilibrium into pairs of opposite conditions in order to create the wave of motion from which thought-bodies are constructed. We will give some simple examples of familiar effects so that you will recognize the fact that you produce thought-bodies in exactly the same way that God produces them, the only difference being that God keeps His Creating Body in balance but Man rarely does.

To the extent that you know your universe and your power in it, you will build a balanced life of happiness and masterly achievement because you will be working knowingly with God when you do fully comprehend and practice the Law of Balance. No matter what happens to your own little universe, you will know what to do with it.

<u>Rhythmic balanced interchange between every pair of opposite conditions in this divided through-wave universe is the inviolate law which must be obeyed by Man and by Nature.</u>

Nature persistently violates it and Nature instantly pays the price of its violation in its storms, tornadoes, crashing avalanches and tragedy of stellar cataclysms.

Man persistently violates it and pays the price of his violation in his crashing business failures, enmities, unhappiness and illness.

All the tornadoes of Earth cannot affect the balance of Earth, for <u>balance in the</u> <u>universe cannot be upset</u>. The Earth continues in its balanced relation to all planets with such exactness that its position in relation to them can be determined at any time to the split second. If the Earth disobeyed this Law by the slightest variance, its oceans would sweep its continents clear of all living and growing things.

If you disobey that Law, it will affect your balance in respect to yourself but not to the universe, for God balances every unbalanced action of yours with an equal and opposite reaction until you do balance it as you sometime, some day, must. However, as God said in His Message to you:

"All men will come to Me in due time, but theirs is the agony of awaiting."

Dear little ones, that agony is the price you pay for your own disobedience to

that Law--and the disobedience may not be willful but due entirely to ignorance of the way God builds divided thought-bodies.

# KNOWLEDGE OF YOUR UNIVERSE MUST BE SCIENTIFICALLY

# BASED

Vague general understanding is not sufficient. You must know specifically how bodies are made and kept in balance, and their every other function kept in balance, for mankind is ever walking a tightrope and depending absolutely upon his balancing extensions, and it is so easy to crash through loss of balance. The trouble with life is that all of you are continually losing your balance in hundreds of little things which almost pass unnoticed, but <u>it</u> is their sum total which gauges both your safety and your progress.

You must know specifically how bodies are made and balanced by equators and God's watchful eyes in the magnetic poles of all bodies, whether they be uncreated thought-bodies or physically created material-bodies, because that is all you are doing all of your life. What you ARE-and what you CREATE-depends upon what you KNOW. Ignorance never gets you far. Mankind knows less about creating bodies and balancing them, the life principle and self-energizing or self-vitalizing, than any other subject.

Man knows how to use the energy for his machines expressed by falling watersbut has very little knowledge of how to use the energy of the universal heartbeat to vitalize and balance his own body and the bodies he is forever creating with his thinking.

You make bodies because you desire to create them. You make them out of light and motion directed by the desire of your will. You pattern them in your own image. The life you give them is your life as their bodies are also your body. They are extensions of your body as your body is an extension of God's body. You made your own body by your desire to extend it from God's body. God made your body with you by the universal desire to manifest the man-idea as part of God's One Whole Idea of Creation.

God could not create your body with you without desire to do so. Desire of Mind is the motivative force which energizes all Creation through the universal heartbeat of concentrative-decentrative thought pulsations. Likewise, YOU cannot create bodies without the desire to do so. YOUR desire is YOUR motivating force. The physical term for spiritual Mind-desire is GRAVITY.

All creating bodies are extensions of other creating bodies. You are now, and always have been, creating your own body. You cannot extend that which you have not first created. Neither can you extend more than you have first created.

All thought-bodies extended from your thought-body by the desire of your Mind to create thought-bodies manifest the measure of your knowing. Your think

ing can never manifest more than you know, no matter how great is your desire.

If you realize the fact that you are forever creating bodies by the use of Mindenergy, light and motion--and are balancing them with the immediate and universal environments--you must know what these tools are that you are using and you must know them as thoroughly and as dynamically as you know how to multiply two by two and conclude, rightly, that the answer is four.

We have not used this simple analogy without a good reason, and that reason is that it is no more difficult for you to comprehend FULLY all of these essentials for the building of thought-bodies than it is for you to multiply two by two, for God's working principle is as simple as that.

# Science should be as simple as God's one working principle is, but science is extremely complex because it is unaware of that one working principle as manifested in the Divine Trinity.

Many of you are afraid of science. We know that you are because of the <u>seemingly</u> tremendous complexity of the <u>science</u> you have read in magazines and textbooks. This is a man-made complexity which has no relation to Nature. That is the one and only reason you are afraid of it.

I don't wonder that you are afraid of it. When the ordinary everyday layman reads about the electrons, protons, photons, neutrons, positrons and newly discovered particles in endless array--and when he is told of the ninety-two elements of matter and their complex structure, all of it couched in a terminology which is like a foreign language to him and seems beyond his comprehension--we do not wonder that he shies from it--it is the intent of the perpetuators of the myth so that no-one can come into truth.

There is NOTHING so complex in the whole field of science, whether in electro-dynamics, chemistry, astronomy or any other branch of science that anyone of the intelligence required to be a good pianist, or composer, or housewife or business executive could not as easily master.

These seemingly many varieties of particles which frighten you away from science are, all of them, the same particles of light corpuscle but seem to differ because they are in different parts of their wave fields and are, therefore, differently conditioned as to their polarity. And so would you seem to be different kinds of humans if some cosmic giant photographed you under his microscope one day when you trudged in knee-deep snow with your fur coat, hat and mittens on, then later photographed you as a water animal with bathing trunks and sun hat.

Chemistry is as simple as music. The octave tones, harmonies and rhythms are the same. We could teach you chemistry from the musical octave, or the color spectrum from the Mendeleef table. And we will say the same for mathematics or mechanics.

When you are taken "behind the scenes" where God's cosmic cinema is being

played, you will find no complexity there at all. You will find that when you thoroughly know the working principle of the Divine Trinity, so thoroughly that your own Consciousness is always the centering zero of KNOWING from which all pairs of opposite expressions extend, you will suddenly realize that you have all-knowledge, for the answer to every question as to CAUSE and PRINCIPLE is within you.

When you have arrived at that point, you will find yourself to be a very different kind of person. You will then find yourself more and more dependent upon YOURSELF, more SURE of yourself. You will find yourself talking less to dissipate your forming thought-bodies and thinking more. The time will gradually come when you would not think of asking any other person on earth for advice upon anything whatsoever which you are planning to achieve or create.

You will find yourself going to books only for information, or to other men for technical skills, or to encyclopedic recordings which are not knowledge, but never for CAUSE or PRINCIPLE for that knowledge is already within you and these lessons should awaken it in you sufficiently for you to recognize your own cosmic unity with the Omniscient ONE.

The greater your cosmic awareness, the greater your Cosmic Consciousness-which means ALL-KNOWING.

### BASIS OF ALL OF LIFE'S PROBLEMS

Sounds simple? It is. Always keep God's Law of Balance for this age of Cosmic Man in your Consciousness. The answer to everything which is good or bad in your life lies in the measure in which you practice the Law of Balanceand your ability to practice it lies in the measure of your understanding of that Law.

If you face a crushing defeat, you must know how to meet it. The best way to do this is to search within your <u>Consciousness to find how or where you have</u> violated the Law of Balance in the principle of the Divine Trinity. At such a time, never seek the solution outside of yourself by telling a living soul of your problem who is not able to take your problem as his own. Your wife or husband may be the only one who is capable of becoming one with you in your problems and then only if your mate is one with you in all things.

Seek the solution within yourself. The answer is within yourself. Seek aloneness with your own Soul and talk to God about it. The more you know about His Law of Balance, the better you can comprehend God's universal language of Light in which God talks to you. Likewise, the more you dynamically KNOW that principle as manifested in everything you do, the less problems you will have to overcome. For that reason, we shall talk to you concerning the principle and dramatize our teachings by human examples as to the application of that Law to every phase of your life--from business to matrimony--from frustration to glorification--or from health to friendships.

You have been given something to guide your life actions which you give little thought to. You have been given what is known as an equator when applied to earth or sun. As applied to you, it is a plane which divides your body into two equal and opposite halves, and each opposite half symmetrically balances the other half-but in reverse.

It is as though your body were vertically cut in half from head to foot and an invisible mirror placed there for each half to reflect the other half in reverse. If you do not thoroughly grasp My meaning, go and look in a mirror. The equator which divides you is the still Light which divides all creating things but which, in itself, cannot be divided.

Meditate upon this subject with Me and <u>ask of yourself what significance the</u> equator of your body has upon your health, happiness, success or other incidents of your life. There must be some vast significance to this one fact because every creating unit of organic and inorganic matter is similarly divided, every insect, plant, corpuscle of animal, vegetable or mineral matter, and every star, sun or planet in the heavens.

The vast significance of the equators of all creating things lies in the fact that the equators are the dividing planes of the universal equilibrium. They, therefore, represent the undivided, the unchanging spiritual Light from which the physical bodies of all things are extended.

The zero which is the center of gravity of all bodies centers the equators of all material bodies. Gravity is the desire force in Mind which is located in the pineal gland of man as the seat of his Consciousness. The Light of your Consciousness is in that portion of the equator of you which centers the two thought-extensions of your brain through which it operates to control your body.

The real, immortal YOU-the invisible YOU-controls the visible body of YOU from the equator of your body. Everything you are in thought extends two ways from your Consciousness which is located upon your equator. Your senses vibrate from that equator when your equator is out of balance with the universal equilibrium, and cease to vibrate when it is in balance with it.

When you know your universe and your relations to your own particular equator which divides and controls your mental and physical lives in order that you may see how God is working with you in the unfolding of your destiny every moment of your lives, you will then know how to control your destiny.

Never forget that what you are DOING in the divided visible universe is a manifestation of what you are THINKING in the undivided invisible universe.

### DO I HAVE A CONCLUSION?

Yes, you will have a different viewpoint on life when you thoroughly comprehend how helpless you are without knowing God as One with you, and how powerful you are when you do know Him in you. Above all things, however, you must gradually know about death. It has been said that death is the last thing for Man to conquer or to overcome. What is meant by that is that knowledge of the fact that what Man calls "death" is what that one you call "Jesus" called the Kingdom of Heaven-or Omnipresent Mind which is the eternal YOU and cannot die.

Life and death are equal opposites. They are sexed mates as all pairs of opposites are sexed mates. They interchange from the moment of birth, and that interchange is to seek balance with each other which is the sole purpose of all sex interchange between all pairs of opposites.

#### When life and death find balance, they lose it-as all pairs of opposites perpetually lose the balance they perpetually seek the moment that they find it.

Life and death are born in the same cradle, but the cradle is a cycle like the swinging of a pendulum with an equator between the two from which life extends one way and death the other way.

Each inward breath you take is a rebirth toward life. Each outward breath is a rebirth toward death. As life and death continually interchange, they approach each other until they meet at the halfway point--the equator--of your life cycle. From there on, life is dying so that death may live, and death is living so that life may die.

<u>There is no death in God's universe; there is naught but perpetual rebirth into</u> an <u>endless repetition of rebirths</u>. Every opposite gives birth to its own opposite <u>simultaneously</u> and becomes its opposite <u>sequentially</u>.

I ask only that you attend to the unfoldment of this information in patience but with diligent study and meditation for as we become of ONE MIND the entire scope of knowledge unfolds as a fan in the opening within the hands of a talented oriental dancer. Do not expect great complications and complex rituals-for there are NONE.

I abide with you at each step of the journey that you can recognize of your own status and stature within the universal order and balance of that which IS.

I further bless the work coming forth for your lessons and unfoldment. Ye are blessed of our Creator and it is the time of coming into knowledge and Truth. May both be your gift and regiving.

I AM ATON

#### **CHAPTER 1**

#### REC #1 HATONN/GERMAIN

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 1991 8:04 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 314

#### WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 1991

Why Hatonn? Why Pleiades? Who/What is Ashtar? Why all the lies? Deliberate or simple error? My, my, there are a lot of questions, aren't there? Hatonn present to answer them in the Light of God. How do I know the answers? Because I KNOW God.

Pleiades is the focus of attention because a goodly portion of Earth Shan humans are from the lineage of ones from Pleiades. All ones in service to this Command were trained for this mission on places within that constellation. You will find that <u>our labels reflect our location</u>, i.e., Hatonn, Soltec, Korton, etc., as well as being meaningful identification markers. That, however, is not the most important cause of Pleiades in this transition--it is because it is within that constellation wherein Shan Man can make transition with ease of present form and that is where the next interim step of "human" in physical shall center for Shan fragments who will be physically transported. A place has been prepared and is waiting with good facilities of most interesting entertainment and experience in the interim transportation system. God Aton has created this wondrous placement through his "Mind-thought" projection as well as creating ones to bring forth information at this time of growth and change. If you stay right with Germain, it will all make sense to your own thought mechanism.

Why Hatonn rather than Joe Smirtnik? Why not Hatonn? Just as you prattle about "why Dharma?", I can only say--"why not Hatonn?" I am as close to God Aton as you can get and I choose to be in this role of bringing my people home to security and reward. Who are you to question? If you wish to participate, you know who I am and if you don't care to join us, it matters not who I am at any rate. I don't require that you do anything save come again within the laws of God and Creation in intent and to the best of your ability according to your actions. Together we have created this wondrous illusion of experience and together we shall finish it in order to move on to more challenging experience-but only those who are ready to grow and experience within the laws as laid forth for balanced existence.

What will happen to those who do not choose to travel with our crew? That is between that one and God. Remember something--when God decides to change <u>His mind--that which was, is no more! Ponder it</u>. However, once experienced as a projection of God-thought--it is forever stored in God's data banks to be reactivated, or forever left to the archives.

That is exactly that which Ashtar IS! This is why the evacuation of a planet at any given time of chosen salvaging, is left in that Command's capable hands.

The very term "ASHTAR" means storage of the records and I have long experienced as "Record Keeper", for those of you who wish to check out my credentials, for I have been sharing in a most physical manner, as in this transfer of information, for many decades.

The Commander in charge of that Command is referred to as "Ashtar" and he DOES NOT EVER flit around Shan with any twin-flame. If you could see the entire picture, it would be most amusing to you to even consider such a thing. But that is not my concern herein. At times of a necessary or "chosen" evacuation by fleet--Ashtar takes control of all fleet compatriots. Now why, if ones are thought projections of God in experiencing format, would there ever be evacuation? Because God chooses to experience the exercise and further, Man has tinkered until he can cause disturbances which can direly injure the "soul" energy fields of thought manifestation and that is a no-no.

You ones can conjure all the fantastic fantasies you wish but facts is facts and pigs is pigs and <u>TRUTH is not mystical nor fantasy-no magic, just simple</u> electrical wave pulses in universal frequencies of suitable elemental construction. I fail to understand why any supposedly intelligent individual would choose to count on a mystical trip to perish in the clouds against a solid lift-off in a very physically manifested spacecraft of which countless thousands have been witnessed. So be it.

Why the lies? Because God's adversary is a very clever and deceitful entity whose sole purpose is to pull you away from Godness and I suggest he get an academy award for excellent accomplishment. He is of the physical manifestation, however, and therefore only functions in the "physical". He CANNOT EVEN EXIST IN THE PRESENCE OF LIGHT AND TRUTH OF GOD. He has full allowances of his deceiving and misrepresentation to all human species and if the species falls for his wiles and temptations and forsakes God to the extent of control of a planet of Creation--which are all such, then separation is required. In every experience of physical nature the adversary is present; it is the manner of measuring growth of beings for when there is final return to the perfection of God--the experiencing being is perfection.

This is all being quite adequately explained in the current <u>JOURNALS</u> if you <u>allow understanding which will lead to KNOWING</u>. We stand ready, willing and able to receive or assist any who petition within the brotherhood of Man for <u>Nature/Creation already has her balanced evolution under total control for the transitioning planet and healing of the old-sans Man except for a few caretakers thereof. So be it.</u>

Now you who participate so intimately and those who WILL do so, why are you "the ones"? Because I chose that you be, trained you, nurtured you and I now wish to serve with you--AM HONORED TO SERVE WITH YOU FOR THROUGH FREE-WILL CHOICE, YOU ARE CO-CREATOR AND IT BE-COMES "OUR" JOURNEY AND EXPERIENCE. I WOULD SEND NO LESSER THAN MYSELF TO TRAVEL WITH YOU OF MY BELOVED BROTHERHOOD FOR THIS IS THE MOST WONDROUS OF A PLANE-TARY EXPERIENCE--WHEN TRANSITION OF CYCLES OCCUR AND GRADUATION IS AT HAND FOR MANY, MANY ONES ON TO OTHER

<u>DIMENSIONAL GROWTH</u> AND SOME TO RETURN TO CREATOR TO CHOOSE AGAIN. I salute you who cast off the veil and see beyond and into TRUTH of experience for unto you is the entire playing field of the universe. Salu.

I sit aside now as we return to the lessons at hand, through my beloved friend and compatriot, Germain. And yes, we may, if we have "time" tell you more about the functioning of silver craft from other worlds. I shall need do that for Wally Gentleman for SIPAPU at any rate, and I shall be most pleased to share fundamental frequency and thrust information. But, I shall not do it FOR you, for it is YOUR experience and if I do it for you--it becomes mine and no longer YOURS! YOU need no ships in order to come home and earthbound physical craft are no longer allowed beyond the solar system of your sun. Let us focus on that which IS important to your travels and then we shall spend leisure playing at other games. Thank you.

#### VIOLINIO GERMAIN

I am Germain and I thank you for again joining me that we might sort out some of the mysteries of LIFE and UNIVERSE. I am going to speak on a subject which has been well laid out by me and my colleagues quite thoroughly in the past. I will write on the subject of <u>Atomic Energy</u> and how <u>it</u>, <u>alone</u>, <u>can suicide your planet and all life forms thereon</u>. This was laid forth by myself and WALTER RUSSELL in your years 56/57. No, most of you DID NOT take access so it has to be done again--and again, if necessary. I will however, utilize Dr. Russell's outlay regarding this segment for we drew charts and referenced quite carefully at that time and there is little need to "reinvent the wheel"--perfect it somewhat--but not reinvention thereof.

It was a wise Man who said: "If we but knew what troubles our world we might, perhaps, fix it. The quandary is that we do not know." I find myself wondering how it is that the truthful information is now on your place and you have only allowed the worsening of your plight; therefore, we shall try again to get your attention. You are still too near your primate days to know for you have, in addition, been shrouded by that which you "sense" in the physical and have lost connections with the Divine Creator which you ARE.

You are not sufficiently unfolded as spiritual beings to recognize the fact that the cause of your world-trouble lies in that one naked fact that you are still too near your beginning to know how to build an enduring foundation. I speak, herein, of the masses who are experiencing on your planet--I do not need to speak to the ones who are now serving in specific mission of Truthbringers and/or Wayshowers. It is sad, indeed, when those ones choose to set aside commission in favor of the physical/emotional boundaries of this experience-but God allows and respects need of more lessons and growth--<u>ALWAYS GOD</u> <u>ALLOWS!</u> I would, however, suggest that if you know ones who fit this category of description--that you insure they get this information coming forth as Pleiades Connections because they might well wish to give reconsideration to their prior choices. YOU will know to whom I address this particular message. This is a transition point for Man, however, for tens of thousands of your people are far advanced in the unfolding of their spiritual natures--even if misled by the adversary lies-just waiting for Truth or, already in Truth but awaiting the next step in instructions and enlightenment into full KNOWING, therefore i becomes our task to see to it that we slacken not in our own commission to bring that WORD forth.

These are the seeds of future cosmic ages. It is to these that we address thes words to tell them what actually is the matter with the world, Shan. They wil comprehend, even if our words have no meaning to mass-Man. These only, an the ones who will transform the world in this eleventh hour of its danger, if i can be transformed. We hope it still can, but it has fallen farther in fifty year than it had gained in eight centuries.

# ATOMIC PLANT MELTDOWN

I monitored on the yesterday, a most interesting presentation in the "just passing by" news. It was said that the "Yankee nuclear power plant would be left if operation for another year although it is said by the scientists that it is not saft and the metal reactor could fail and result in a meltdown." Does anyone have any idea what that would mean? Better look again at Chernobyl and reconside the area wherein that plant is located for it could devastate one of your mos populous areas. Now, this is if NOTHING else happens other than simple weat of the equipment. This is reported to you-the-people without so much as taking a second breath by the reporter.

## SO, WHAT IS ATOMIC ENERGY?

As Dr. Russell begins, "In answering this question let it be ever remembered that God is LOVE, and that this universe is founded upon LOVE. Every action and its reaction in Nature must be in balance with each other in order to carry out the purposeful intent of the Creator."

Love is expressed by action, means balanced fulfillment of its own law of equal giving and regiving. That is the principle upon which this purposeful universe is founded. That which purposefully fulfills the law is GOOD. It will endure and be eternally repeated with more of that which man calls GOOD. Every action of Man, likewise, which is founded upon love is a fulfillment of the law, and is GOOD-and will be eternally repeated.

Now, do you actually believe that the nuclear power plants are built through Love of Man or greed? Do you think the plants which are for the sole purpose of producing products for warheads are for Love of Man? Ponder it most care fully as to WHY you sit on hundreds of thousands of years of total destruction and more piling up every day!

Our action in answering this momentous question is founded upon love for the

good of Man. If it is purposeful it will bring GOOD into the world for endless repetition, which is Nature's way of working. If it is not balanced and orderly in Nature's way of normal growth of her Idea, then that moment of its departure from the GOOD will bring about its own dissolution. That is also Nature's way of dissolving that which is unrhythmic and purposeless in the fulfilling of her One Law.

What is atomic energy? What is this great power which is now used for the so-called betterment of "life"? That is the question which the entire world should be asking. It wants (the world) to know because there is great fear in the heart of Man that it should NOT be utilized, but he does not know WHY. The only way he can know WHY radioactivity should NOT be used is to know WHAT radioactivity IS-and what it will DO.

Let us briefly state what it is and what it can do in one short paragraph. We will then expand this into larger discussion, for the purpose of giving you full comprehension of its meaning. When you read that one paragraph, which now follows, bear in mind the fact that the supreme effort of humanity is to learn how to live long lives in full strength, and repeat them down through endless centuries. The prior JOURNAL speaks to this same issue.

<u>Radiation is the normal death principle.</u> Every thing in <u>Nature dies</u> normally by slowly radiating its heat. <u>Radioactivity is the explo-</u> sively quick death principle. <u>Radioactivity is Man's discovery of</u> how the human race can die quickly, and not be able to propagate its kind for many long centuries.

You MUST take this into careful consideration for the Adversary and his helpers have now produced places of safety from produced radioactivity-wherein THEY can survive nicely during a period of recleansing of the surfaceor at least he perceives to have done so. He has placed his intended safety places most carefully in the areas of old Lemuria which should "rise" instead of sink within the seas and he has planned sufficiently for sacrificing the entire Northern Hemisphere of Shan if appropriate and he DOES at this time, deem it appropriate. Reasonable? This is not a discussion regarding "REASON", this is a discussion of WHAT IS!

So, within the above paragraph is your complete answer in a few words. **MULTIPLIED DEATH** is the new boon which this age of Man believes he is giving to the furtherance of life. Naturally you do not understand it, but instinct and intuition within you are strong enough to make you FEAR it. The reason you do not understand it is because you are not yet aware of what makes things live and what makes them die and you cannot comprehend that your own species would deliberately annihilate their own brothers and sisters.

The entire answer to this supreme question lies in knowing exactly WHAT MAKES BODIES LIVE and WHAT MAKES BODIES DIE. This cannot be briefly told. In telling it we must tell you how God constructs and dissolves matter electrically. Therefore, in this portion of this JOURNAL there will, of necessity, be repetition. If we answered it briefly, however, you would not comprehend it so we must take it swiftly and yet surely, step by step, for your understanding. The greatest minds among Man have tried to discover this life principle for centuries. When you do fully answer it for you and all mankind you will also fully comprehend your universe and all of its mysteries. The telling must be a step by step process, however, and must keep in mind the pur pose of this book, which is to dynamically explain in convincing language, and undebatable postulates, that the price Man will pay for the use of atomic energis his own inevitable extinction. We have been speaking in prior material about the The True Nature of this Mind and Motion Universe for it touches the huma directly and now you must know why and how it does so.

Nature has a tremendously balanced rhythmic normalcy in her orderly processe of creation. It is all of it good for Man and animal alike when they observe tha normalcy. When they defy it, or violate it through ignorance of it, Nature doe not punish them for that violation. Ignorance punishes them. The discovery o atomic energy as a means of obtaining greater heat than an orderly and norma way suitable to environment, is as much a breech of Nature's orderly processe as it would be if Man violated the law of gravity by discovering that he could get to the bottom of the canyon in a much quicker way than the normal way. No man would do that because he knows better. Atomic energy for industry is as great a violation of Nature's way as a defiance of gravity would be (realizing that even gravity is not that which is accepted). And it is as sure a death for the violator of one as the other.

We know that Man is not intentionally defying God's law. There is but on other reason why he is doing it, which is that he does not know what he is do ing. Do not, however, for one minute believe that, as time has elapsed, the Elite have not seen the possibilities and now utilize same for their own greed purposes. Man admittedly does not know what he is doing. The law works jus as irrevocably, and inevitably, however, against him who defies it, as it does for the one who does not know. For long ages he has sought for the life principle in germ or ultimate unit of matter. He has never found it there and neve will. Likewise, he has sought for the principle of death. This he has non found, but does not know it.

Do you know WHY you live and HOW you keep alive? Do you know WHY you die and HOW you die? Do you know "Where you go when you die, a what happens to your identity after death?" No, you do not yet know these things. It is grossly obvious THAT YOU DO NOT KNOW THESE THINGS. Mankind has not yet unfolded far enough, spiritually, to know of his eternal Identity, or to know that he cannot die. Further, he relies on others who pro nounce themselves ordained authorities on how it MIGHT BE--AND THE! ARE WRONG, WRONG AND WRONG!

The complete argument of this story is based upon the fact that mankind doe not know what either life or death IS, nor that the plan that he is now making is assisting Nature in her death process by helping you to die instead of to live. That plan is contrary to Nature's law of love. We shall tell you all you have wondered about regarding life, death and immortality, so that you will comprehend the magnitude of the crime of Man against Man, which Man has now decided to perpetrate.

Man does not yet know his universe, nor how it became, nor how it disappears into space and reappears. There is a universal process in Creation and a motivating force for the energy which creates it. That same process applies as equally to the creation of "life", and its disappearance in "death", in your body as it does to the whole universe. Do you know what that process is? Do you know what your universe is, and God's relation to IT--and to YOU? Well, if you have read the prior <u>JOURNAL</u>, you have a very good IDEA OF IT. Do you not think you could live more powerfully and wisely if you did know these things? We feel certain that when statesmen and leaders in industry and government REALLY know these things, they will know they cannot use the death principle to aid life and some changes may well come along.

Every forthcoming page will deal with the principle of life and death of the body of Man, and of God's body--the universe of motion. It will, likewise, deal with the immortality of Man and his <u>Mind-control over his orderly and</u> normal life and death process. It will also clearly explain that long asked question: "Where do I go when I die?"

During this explanation of the two ways of life and death, which will be clearly set forth herein, you cannot fail to see that <u>Man's illegitimate use of DEATH to</u> <u>benefit life will but multiply death upon your planet until not one grass blade</u> <u>will be left upon it</u>. These statements present a dread picture. They seem unbelievable and impossible. It is our responsibility to prove to you that they are not only possible but, as you are going, inevitable. The only way you can possibly do that is to now make those things known about life, death and immortality, which have not made it into your understanding to this date.

#### FALLACY OF NUCLEAR FISSION

The real fallacy of nuclear fission for industry is that these so-called deadly poisonous gases from the radioactive elements in reactors, and in the waste products, which are encased in concrete and buried in the sea or elsewhere to protect human life from their admitted danger, are not poisons in their own environment underground, where they are serving a necessary purpose of helping to make it possible for organic life to live upon your planet. <u>Man makes them</u> poisonous by removing them from their purposeful environment to place them in an abnormal environment unsuited to their normal environment.

Animal and vegetable life are dependent upon the upper few feet of the earth's crust to live. The soil must have humus, nitrogen, carbonic gas, oxygen and water. These so-called deadly radioactive poisons are preparing the soil for oxygen dependent life to live by causing countless billions of microscopic explosions in the rock formations underground to release water and other necessities for human life and vegetation. That is all GOOD. In their proper place in Nature they are fulfilling their necessary useful purposes. They are vitally necessary where they are. They are of benefit to man when underground or distributed in rocks. It is only when you dig them out from under the ground and condense tons of harmless rock to ounces of deadly free metal, such as uranium piles, that you make the earth uninhabitable for Man.

Think also of the hundreds of millions of years Nature has to work to decay solid rock and metal planets sufficiently to create enough decayed surface, and an atmosphere, for organic life to become possible. Mercury has no atmosphere nor even a grass blade. Its rock surface is so hot that lead would melt there. Venus is also hot rock but a soil has begun there, and water is now forming in the reclamation process, but only as steam vapor, for the temperature on Venus is higher than boiling point. Your earth has had a soil and atmosphere sufficient for simple forms of life, ever since it reached its seventy or eighty million mile mark from the sun. The radioactive metals made that possible. They belong underground just as dead animal bodies belong underground. *Radioactive metals are dead and dying bodies*. That is what is not yet known of them. There are twenty-two of them which are killer metals if you take them away from their rock environment underground in Nature and make them a part of Man's environment above ground.

#### STATIONED STAR-SHIPS

Oh, now you want to change the subject? How is it that the brotherhood speaks of bases and stations on these various unhabitable planets? Because any species with capability of travel, i.e., to Shan, has also ability to station very large bases off atmosphere of these planets--but are referred to for identification as located at those specific vortices. The atmosphere, etc., of these planets and stars are "mined" for useful minerals. If mystics and psychics tell you that there are great cities, etc., on such as Venus--they either refer to the off-planet locations thereof--or the stories are fabrications! You ones want MAGIC and there is NONE! Please do not ask me to evaluate various speakers--you now have sufficient guidelines to discern for self TRUTH vs. fabrication, personal greed of the speakers and total deception of the adversary. If a being tells you he comes with his twin-flame from Venus--YOU BE THE JUDGE OF THE STORY OR CHECK HIS FEET FOR BLISTERS. Is it possible to have life on Venus? All is possible with God--however, at this point in evolution--there is no viable lifeform as you would recognize on THE planet Venus, as a for instance. It will likely be reclaimed for later habitation--perhaps for many of YOU. Earth Shan had to be reclaimed in order to again house life human after prior destruction by the adversary and his cohorts in vandalism.

There are many metals which will not hurt you, such as iron, copper, gold, silver and many others. This we will clarify in the following test and consider that which we will label Fig. 5. You can live among thousands of living Men without being poisoned, but you cannot live upon the breath of living Men without dying from their poison. You cannot, in fact, live upon your own outbreathings. You would soon die from your own poison. Digging dead and dying metals from underground where their outbreathing is giving fertile soil for organic life, is like digging dead animals from where they are being transformed into living vegetable and animal life. Every farmer must put death under his ground in order to reap life above.

Dharma, allow us a break at this point for I am asked to request that you depart this placement as soon as you can, for we need to work with the energy fields

established against your location and it needs doing now. We must do something of different nature soon, for your body is losing the battle of self-protection from the radiation of the pulses. The bombardment will lessen as we move through and away from these subject matters but for now it is tedious indeed. We must now consider shielding of your person through other means than from the body itself. In the interim we have to keep at countering the beam projections and that is best served when you are away from the location since the interference is focused on your person and not at others in the locale.

We shall take up at next writing with the procurement of radium by the Curies. Thank you for your service. I now stand aside.

#### I AM GERMAIN





#### CHAPTER 2

#### REC #1 GERMAIN

THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 1991 7:46 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 315

#### THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 1991

#### CURIES PROCURED RADIUM

Germain present to continue with the writing. We will move smartly along this morning so that you can get things prepared for the out-of-town meeting. Thank you for allowing writing this day.

The Curies procured a few grams of radium from many tons of earth. Those few grams of dead metals would spread their quick death to every cell of your body if you put them in your pocket. But they would not harm you in the slightest if you slept upon the ground above them. The radioactive metals are giving out their quick death to the rocks in which they are embedded for the purpose of expanding the rocks in which they are embedded into the soil and water which mothers life. They should not be dug up from the ground to expand human beings into quick death. All things in Nature have their proper placement and use and, thus, should also the "crystals" be left to their proper placement. If you would have a good example of their purpose in life, which is beneficial to humanity, witness the great bare rock mountains of the West which are only a few million years old. Compare them with soil-covered, tree-covered, very much older eastern mountains, such as the Blue Ridge, White Mountains and Catskills where the soil is deep above them and waterfalls and brooks are abundant.

Water and soil are decayed and dying rock. They are, literally, dead rocks. Out of death in Nature life springs, and when life above ground is dead it gives new life to the death of earth. These are the things which mankind must know. It knows too little about life and death, and how each one interchanges with the other to make death live and make life die. This is so fundamental a part of the process of Nature that you would be very much more interested in her whole processes if you would but give more thought to this one. Take note, for example, that the moment a peach in the dish on your table becomes over ripe you will see fruit flies hovering over it. They were born from it, and other less complex life forms were born from it before that, just as millions of microbes and other primitive life forms are born in your living body, and more complex ones will be born from your dead body. You do not realize that all of your body is not wholly alive all the time. Part of you is always dead or dying, up to your maturity. After that all of them are slowly dying. We will not get into mental control over that process, at this time for I do not want your distraction to take you from the point at issue.

The millions of microbes which await more full life in you are harmless to you

while you can charge your body sufficiently to insulate your life from their death. About two pounds of your body dies every day, and the millions of dead bodies which are in that two pounds would kill your live body if you took them back into your metabolism again. *Have you ever thought of that?* Great cities must have great sanitation departments to guard against just that.

Have you ever thought that your every inbreath charges you with power to live, and every outbreath is death? That means that you are perpetually living and dying thirty or forty times a minute. More amazing still--if you will but give deep thought to it-is the fact that whatever lives in you is not a poison to you, but whatever of your own body which does not live WILL POISON YOU. You breathe in living oxygen which comes to you from the earth and its foliage. It dies in you and you breathe out a deadly poison known as carbon dioxide. That carbon dioxide is not poison to the ground, however. It is food to the ground. The earth breathes in that food and breathes it out as oxygen, which is poison to the ground, however. Have you given thought to this? Have you ever stopped to think that the very water you drink, the air you breathe, and the food you eat, comes from the dead and decaying body of this planet, and that every living body which dies and is returned to the earth, recharges the earth with renewed life? You probably have never given this a thought. We ask you to do so now, in order that you will more fully understand this next step in your understanding of life, death and immortality, in addition to beginning to know your universe. Just pause for a minute or two and ponder this information.

This is your next step. We have pictured your simultaneously living-dying body. You must now know that all bodies in all the universe are the same in all respects, whether they are electrons, cells, rocks, metals, trees, men, planets or suns. All of them live and die in the same manner. All breathe in the charging breath of life and breathe out the discharging breath of death. All of them compress heat and polarize when they breathe in, and expand, cool and depolarize when they breathe out.

Why is this? It is because all bodies are made of--and by--electric waves, and every characteristic of the electric current is a life and death alternation. The entirety of Creation lives and dies in sequences. With this thought in mind consider the body of this earth in the same way that you would consider your own body. Parts of the earth's body are dead, and other parts are dying, just as parts of your body are dead and others are dying. Just as the slight decay of an over ripe peach will not hurt you, while a fully decayed one might kill you, so, likewise, the "over ripe" chemical elements of the earth, which are not too far from carbon will not hurt you, while the farther they are beyond carbon the more deadly they become, and the more impossible it is to guard yourself from their quick death (Fig. 5). This is the lesson of life and death which you must first know. Step by step you will know its whole process. You will then be ready to know "where you go after you die", and fully comprehend it.

Now think of the life and death of a planet as you would think of the life and death of your own body. You fully know that your own body grows to maturity--say at forty--when it is more virile than at any other age. That means that every cell in your body is more virile than that same cell could be at sixty, or eighty. At forty your body cells are true spheres and small, fast turning rings.

At sixty the cells have become very much flattened at their poles as our earth is doing, and their surfaces are beginning to wrinkle with many rings, like Jupiter, just as an old face wrinkles with many lines. At eighty, rings are actually thrown off at equators, like the rings of Saturn. These rings are dead cells of Saturn's still living body. An old man of ninety is still living but all of his cells are dying faster than he can replace them. This is an important fact for you to understand. Your car battery will help you comprehend the whole principle of the long slow years of dying. When it is charging while you are running it, that shows that its power to generate life is greater than its power to degenerate by discharge. The old age of anything, whether man, electron or planet, means that the galvanometer needle of its life current is showing more discharge than charge, even though it is charging some.

Look at Figs. 3 & 4. These are pictures of Mars, Jupiter and Saturn to illustrate three such stages of slow dying. Dear ones, you must have death before you can have renewed life-it is simply the way of the cycles. It is also a good point to consider when efforting at all costs to hold on to an old body--why do so? It is only the fear of the unknown and the proof of NOT KNOWING--for all ones would far rather, if possible, have a nice new house. You ones work, pray, spend money and go through agony just to change the ones you already have--why do you wish so much to hang on to that which is moving toward rebirthing and renewal?



FIG. 4. SATURN.

#### EARTH IS DYING CELL FROM SUN

The earth is a dying cell thrown off from the sun. It cannot maintain its spherical form. It is flattening at the poles and cannot keep in balance with its system by remaining on the plane of the sun's equator. It is in the very carly stages of preparing to throw off more rings such as its first one which has wound up to become a moon. The growth of deserts around its equator is the first early stage of that period. Mars has grown very much older. It still has water but oxygen-dependent life is nearing its end upon it. Deserts take up a large area of it and it is more oblate than the earth.

For a good example of old age witness the wrinkled, expanded, oblate body of Jupiter. It has thrown off many rings, and is preparing to throw off more. Nature always throws off its rings in series of four. Near the surface of Jupiter you will see one series which have wound up into moons. Mercury, Venus, Earth and Mars are the last series thrown off by our sun. Jupiter has expanded to probably three or four times its original size, and is whirling itself to its centrifugal death with ever increasing acceleration. In the still more oblate Saturn you see three of its next series of rings before they have wound up around a newly established gravitative center. This study of the way planets and suns die will clearly illustrate to you how your body dies. The point here is that in the speeding up of the dying process of a planet Man errs greatly for he causes such rapid loss of balance that life cannot sustain itself.

The above thoughts have been given you for the express purpose of building up in you a full comprehension that <u>Man is now attempting to build an envi-</u> <u>ronment of death upon the surface of this planet</u>, which has for so many aeons been trying to build up an environment for life. <u>He is creating an ab-</u> normal environment with which animal and vegetable life cannot possibly



<u>live</u>. We desire to show you why <u>radioactive</u> fission, in large quantities, and <u>oxygen</u> cannot co-exist. These elements are fully alive while in their own en-<u>vironment</u>. By taking them out from that environment they become corpses of themselves. To spread these huge ten ton reactor corpses throughout the world, and the countless billions of microscopic ones, so that they are in every breath you breathe, every bit of food you eat and in the water you drink, will eventually be like forcing you to again breathe in a gradually increasing percentage of your own dead breath.

#### <u>FLAME</u>

From now on we will talk very much about FLAME, in respect to radioactivity and death. Flame is the ultimate of Creation. It is both maximum life and maximum death. Its radiation will beget life but its body will consume it. The maturity of all Creation itself is expressed in flaming suns. Suns are incandescent carbon. Carbon is frozen flame. Flame is one point of pressure beyond the maximum compression which a body will stand. Flame is the effect of the explosion which releases the compression at that ultimate point. Compression heats. Flame is maximum heat.

Life cannot live without heat. It is created by heat and must have it. Radiation gives you that heat. It is good for you. It warms you to a normalcy of temperature. It expands your body cells in perfect attunement with their compression sequences. It synchronizes with the rhythms of your breathings and your pulse beat.

Radioactivity gives you more heat than you can stand. It sends millions of alpha ray bullets into your body which accumulate there all of your life and raise your temperature, readjusting your entire metabolism until your body cells explode from their accumulated heat and expand beyond their normalcy. The slightest change in your heat abnormalcy gives you a fever. A fever means too much heat. It means expanded body cells and red blood corpuscles. Even too much heat from the sun will do that. You cannot expose yourself to its lifegiving rays too long else they become death-giving rays. This idea you must also give much thought to, for your environment demands a proper amount of heat, which will become impossible when your present normal environment is made abnormal by countless billions of alpha and niton rays, which will bombard you constantly and show their effects in leukemia, bone cancer, deformed children and many other effects until you die by slow expansion. A "lethal dose" of radium gases will quicken that expansion.

All things die from heat expansion. That is the only way any body can die, whether it is your body, or the sun's body. All things in Nature die normally by slow expansion. Radioactivity is multiplied expansion, which is caused by multiplied compression. It helps Man die from explosively quick expansion. Flame is caused by maximum compression. Flame is the ultimate consumer of all bodies. If you will but bear this fact in mind as we proceed you will more readily comprehend WHY and HOW this planet will soon become a barren waste if radioactivity is widely used. You will also comprehend WHY and

HOW Man can explode this planet into millions of fragments, or make it become a partially exploding body, which you call a nova in the heavens.

Do not for a moment think that planets and suns cannot explode. They are continually exploding--this is why it so important to NOT START A CHAIN REACTION THROUGH YOUR TINKER-TOYS FOR THE EN-TIRE OF THE PLANET CAN AND SHALL EXPLODE. There are thousands of novas in the heavens and space iS filled with countless millions of fragments of exploded planets, which you call asteroids and meteorites. These are irregularly shaped lumps. <u>Nature does not create her forms in lumps</u>. <u>She</u> creates only rings and spheres which she crystallized into geometric forms, but they must first be rings and spheres.

The one amazing thing about all matter, which is not known today, is that all matter wants to explode, it wants to die. To live is an effort. To die is effortiess. Matter is not held together from within by the attraction of gravity, as generally supposed, it is compressed together by a force exerted from the outside toward its center. Life is hard to maintain, for that reason, and for the same reason it is easy to die because it wants to die. You must understand that fact if you wish to comprehend how radioactivity kills. It is against all modern scientific belief, because the general belief is that a material nucleus holds the atom together. Nature does NOT work that way. Atoms do not have nuclei. Nature creates her atoms the same way that you would compress air into a tire. It is hard work. You pump it in from the outside toward its middle. Then you put a cap on it to imprison it. If it is not sealed and imprisoned it would escape without effort by you. It does not need help to expand. It only needs help to be compressed.

Matter is an abnormality. The normality of this universe is a condition of rest-an equilibrium. Matter is not an equilibrium. It is a created condition which divides a resistant equilibrium. That division results in tremendous tensions. Tensions are not normal to the universal equilibrium. Tensions have within them a great desire for relief from tension. Decay, death, discharge, explosions and flame give matter that relief from tensions which it desires. Bear this fact in mind. Remember that the first desire of all Creation is Mind-expression by division of the universal equilibrium. Remember also that the desire to again return to the normal universal equilibrium is equally intensive. To divide an equilibrium requires work. To return to the normality of the universal equilibrium does not require work. Bear in mind, then, that it is hard to live but easy to die. Radioactivity is making it harder for bodies to live by releasing the tensions which makes them die.

Later, you will find that every atom is exactly like your tire. It is an electrically compressed ring with a hole in 11 (Fig. 41). Nature has to seal her compressed rings to imprison that compression, just as you do, but the cap she uses to seal them is the eternal cold of space which encases every one of them with a frozen crust. That keeps the heat sealed inside, as it does to your earth. It seems strange to speak of the frozen crust of the sun, but it is, nonetheless, frozen-otherwise the sun would explode.



F1G. 41. The lower diagram represents the beginning of matter in the inert gases. The upper diagram represents the end of matter in flaming carbon suns.

| SEE | PAGE | 133 | FOR | FIG. | 6 |
|-----|------|-----|-----|------|---|
| SEE | PAGE | 148 | FOR | FIG. | 7 |

All atoms are single units. All of these single units combine, in every octave, to make spiral atomic systems like the nebulae of space, or carbon in an octave, or a loop of force in an electric current. All atomic rings collide to unite four pairs of them into one sphere (Fig. 29). This you will understand later in detail, but an understanding of the essence of it now will help you to comprehend the quick death principle by means of which radioactivity lets imprisoned matter escape suddenly, just as a spark lets imprisoned dynamite escape suddenly.



Nature creates sex-conditioned bodies by polarizing an equilibrium condition. Nature destroys bodies by depolarizing them. Nature repeats bodies through interchange between their opposite conditions. All bodies are eternally repeated.

The special reason you should begin to understand the essence of it now is because it is against all scientific tradition and concept. It will be proven to you all through this book, however, for our whole case rests upon it. If present day belief is right in its concept that the atom is held together from the inside, then there is no case, and these writings would be worthless. If we are right in our knowledge that all matter is a powder keg which is intensely desirous of being released from its forced imprisonment, and needs only the right kind of match to explode it, you can then see that radioactive fission is that match, and these writings are priceless saviours of the race.

It only stands to reason, therefore, that if every cell in your body wants to explode, and that radioactivity releases millions upon millions of deadly niton and alpha "matches" in our atmosphere, which will help your body cells to explode, and you breathe in enough of them, you could no more continue to live than your tire could hold its air if you open its valve. This actually happened in a laboratory where some radioactive gas escaped and a man breathed it in. He had a lethal dose and could not live. Of course he could not live, nor can the whole human race and the earth's vegetation live when microscopic strontium, barium, radium and plutonium "matches" by the millions are in all the water you drink, all the food you eat, and in every breath you take. Some of your cells will constantly explode. Strontium will give you bone cancer and make you breed terribly abnormal children. Radium and plutonium will kill you by eating your red blood cells and causing leukemia victims by the millions. We will give you the detailed reasons for this as we proceed, but we do not need to tell you what cyanide of potassium will do to you, for you already know. Nor do we need to tell you what chlorine, the most deadly gas which laboratories fear, will do to you, for you already know. What then can plutonium rays do to you? They are a million times more deadly than chlorine gas, which every laboratory dreads. Also, what can it do to the planet? Its rays will endure for 20,000 years or longer. It is quite possible that the earth could remain barren that long, or very much longer. Organic life would have to "evolve" again from its very beginning.

That could happen if you continue to spread those thousands of reactors around your world, for each reactor has a uranium pile of ten tons. That means that thousands of Frankensteins would be in your midst against which you are totally helpless. You could not even approach them to destroy them--check out Chernobyl. Naturally that could not happen, for mankind would discover his great error long before the country could be dotted with plants, but it is more than probable that enough would be constructed, and their shields be come as dangerous as they themselves are, to cause wholesale migrations to far northern latitudes for very survival. Great cities would become deserted and tens of millions would die from polluted food, water and air. You have seen it portrayed for you in practical movies as well as living (or dying as the case is) proof in Chernobyl and surrounding areas thereto. Worse, you in America sit with these plants scattered at random about your nation with some plants literally on fault lines expected to experience major earthquakes. The primeval life which would necessarily become imperative for the small number of survivors in the then temperate climate of the North and South Poles, would set civilization back for many thousands of years, for life would be utterly impossible within a thousand miles of naked reactor plutonium piles.

<u>One of the greatest errors in reactor construction is the use of aluminum tubes</u> for uranium containers. Aluminum would become charged with radioactive death very quickly in comparison with silver, gold or any other metal on the <u>blue side of the spectrum</u>. Steel is on the red side, but its density is so much greater than aluminum that it is a better metal than aluminum for that purpose. Nickel would be better than steel, for nickel is on the blue side. The idea of constructing shields of any material at all, for protection against uranium and plutonium, is only a temporary expedient. The time will come when the shields will be as dangerous as the cores and you are almost there with several of your reactors. It is absolutely impossible to be otherwise. The time element may be long, but when that time comes, the greatest migration history has ever known will have to take place, and its road will be paved with millions of dead, largely from leukemia which will rapidly increase until it becomes a scourge. Already cancers and immune deficiency diseases are the plague upon your nations.

I will drop one more "bomb" on you and then we will have a rest break. The element of surprise which could delay the discovery of the great danger, and thus allow more plutonium piles to come into existence, is the fact that scientists are looking near the ground for fall-out dangers and other radioactive menaces. The greatest radioactive dangers are accumulating from eight to twelve miles This seems to be totally ignored-deliberately ignored. The upper atmosphere is already charged with death-dealing radioactivity for which it has not yet sent you its bill. It is slowly coming, however, and you will have to pay for it for another century, even if atomic energy plants ceased today and all plants had not been built in the past two decades. That is why it is possible to have many reactors in use before discovering it is too late to stop building them. It would be impossible to destroy them for they could not be approached. Plutonium and uranium piles cannot be destroyed in any other way than by redistributing them the way Nature does. As that is utterly impossible, the only recourse left to Man is to flee from them and let the centuries renormalize the earth made barren by Man.

Need a shocker? In Britain, in 1956, it was already known and printed, that which would happen to you all: "Since records have been kept the amount of radio-strontium which has fallen out on Britain has multiplied six times. In 1948, radioactivity, to roughly two-thousandths of a gram of radium, had fallen out on each square mile of countryside. Since then the rate of deposition has increased, and now the equivalent of nearly six-thousandths of a gram of radium are settling each year. And there is plenty more of it to come. The concentration of radioactivity eight miles up is some 200 times greater than it is at ground level. Between 10 per cent and 20 per cent of this is thought to settle upon the earth each year." I suggest you calculate the "time" lapse and know that radiation is a "building up" process. I think you should ponder these statements; consider that it has been over 2 decades and half through another--just since that prior statement was set forth. Moreover, take a place like France wherein almost ALL power is produced by nuclear power and the waste put into the sea. You in America only consider your own waste material with great horror and disdain--ponder it worldwide--I doubt you will breathe easily the remainder of this day. Then, you gather together and make little frequency boxes to heal that which ails you all the while you are pouring on the death poisons as fast as you can and demanding MORE. So be it.

I AM GERMAIN

#### REC #1 HATONN/GERMAIN

# FRIDAY, JUNE 28, 1991 1:39 P.M. YEAR 4, DAY 316

#### FRIDAY, JUNE 28, 1991

Hatonn present to speak briefly. I have been with Dharma all this day to this point--since prior to the earthquake in the Los Angeles area this morning. Since there is no way to get this information to the public in time for any reaction or use thereof, I shall ask that we wait to cover the information via Express later. I have made a tape which runs throughout the morning and have given as much information as allowed under the circumstances--the point is to keep my people healthy, not tell fortunes or predict earthquakes nor after-shocks (taken in any manner you choose). Just pray for a bit of sanity in your world this day for you are in dire need of it. This is a warning "shot" to coincide with yesterday's "Airquake" and the several of last night in the same general area, with no explanations of same, according to your press and media. It borders on "absurd"

Since I need Dharma for personal input, I am going to request that Germain write for an hour or so and then I need her to monitor to see when the news hits the public regarding the rocket launch scheduled from Teledyne this yesterday, then this morning and finally for this afternoon--a lot of the problems you are having are wrapped up around that specific rocket launch. Also be aware of the information pouring in from Slovenia and Croatia--you are in the middle of the biggest power plays on your globe. The instructions to the Soviets from the Bilderbergers and Trilateralists is to retain ALL the Soviet sub-states in one unit at all costs--or no participation in the IMF, funding through the World Bank and/or America, etc.

Beware, also, of that which is coming down in Iraq. After pounding on your roople's nerves over "Iraq having no nuclear capability" at and during the Iraq Wat, what say they now? Ah, so it is, they tell you there are "many" installations and some are not even being reported nor open for inspection EVEN NOW! Bush wants to go back into the war with his, "I told you so." Things are going sour in other parts of the Middle East and if you watch you will be able to see the "hands move" in every instance--even from the "non-news". The time is critical, dear ones--indeed critical. You are again at "First Nuclear Strike against the Soviets" and they are warning you of what they can do and you had better listen! I think it appropriate that I remove myself and allow Germain to continue with his dissertation on the death tools as presented upon your world this day. Salu.

I shall move swiftly along, Dharma, for I understand the pressures and I also realize that the taping is necessary and preferable to your having to sit at this machinery all day. I note that you will find all in your area have been aware of the incredible pressure in your location for the past three days. We shifted your terminals on the apparatus but we will require many interruptions for you for we can no longer totally interfere and neutralize the particle bombardment. We will watch the timing so that you can relax and write. it is truly an electronic game of chess we have going here with the world as stakes to the winner--however, the way the game is played, it is more likely to be "blow up the world" prior to the game finish. It is incredibly stupid and unthinkable but nonetheless it is the time of cycle rotation when this is what happens--so, please, allow us to continue regarding atomic suicide.

# SPEAKING OF RADIOACTIVE SUICIDE

We respond to your inquiries as to WHY these radioactive elements will so violently kill when others will not injure you. We will answer the question very explicitly for you but for the present our answer is that they will NOT kill IF LEFT WHERE NATURE PUT THEM to perform the beneficial service intended of them. They are all good in their place, in fact they help to create the very water you drink and make humus for the soil, which give you food. God's whole plan is good. When Man upsets that plan he makes for himself that

Let us give you an example of our meaning. It is good and healthful for you to sit upon a great granite boulder with the sun shining warmly upon you. All of its radiations are good, for they are in normal balance with the pulsation frequencies of every cell in your body. Now if you "Bombard" that 100 ton boulder and take it all apart, you will obtain fourteen ounces of uranium and two pounds of thorium. If you then sit upon that you will soon die from the explosions caused in your body cells. You can also procure other metals which will not hurt you from that boulder. You can obtain 1,000 pounds of titanium, 180 pounds of tungsten, 5 tons of iron and 8 tons of aluminum. The reason WHY these tons of metals will not hurt you, and WHY the few ounces of thorium and uranium WILL hurt you, is the reason why it is now necessary to know the relation of LIFE and DEATH of organic bodies, to the elements of matter of which they are composed.

For this reason we again repeat the great simple basic fact that all death is caused by expansion, and all life is caused by compression. We also repeat the as yet unknown fact that life deeply desires to live, but has to work hard to keep sufficiently charged to maintain life, while death can fulfill its desire to die without effort. To charge a body with life takes time and much effort, but a discharge can be timeless and without effort. The flash of a short-circuit is not only a good example of this fact but is a DEMONSTRATION OF ITS PROOF. If you will but submit this new thought to your reasoning you will see the naturalness, and significance of it. Death means rest, or cessation of motion. Sound is motion created with an effort, but it ceases without effort. It is an effort for you to arise and work, but it is no effort for you to cease working and rest. It is an effort to heat a rod of iron but the rod will cool without effort. You must, therefore, realize that all things will die normally and naturally without help. That is what radiation is. Multiplied expansion means helping matter to expand quickly, and that is what radioactivity is. The use of nuclear fission, therefore, vastly multiplies the difficultly of living things to keep alive, by vastly aiding them to die.

The mystery which I will effort to clarify in this message is to tell how Man can be master of life through knowledge, instead of letting death master him through ignorance. The first essential in knowing how to gain this control is to first realize the profundity of the basic facts above stated, and relegate all cause of normal death to normal expansion, and all quick death to abnormal expansion. Add other details to this afterward. Do not say that he died of arsenic poisoning, for there is no poison in the purposeful things of Nature, which must fulfill their purposes. He died of abnormal expansion due to contacting a higher voltage electric current than his body could stand. That was the cause of his death. It was radioactive electrocution, not poisoning.

It is not greatly different from contracting a disease within a body who is host to the HIV virus. The virus causes invasion and inefficiency of the natural immune system. Then when the body is weakened, it is easily attacked by other forms of "infection" or "infestation" resulting in overwhelming by organisms or toxins thereof which cause abnormal expansion due to contracting a higher voltage electric current than his body can tolerate. It comes down to radioactive electrocution, not poisoning from the toxins directly. This might give some of you "cure" hunters a hint of what is going on in this disease mechanism. The HIV virus itself is a very hypofrequency structure which causes only immune deficiency. The body simply cannot, finally, ward off infections of other sources. The fact that the major disease association is that of Kaposy's sarcoma indicates a high frequency cancer-causing toxin release within the body system.

This example will apply to all radioactive effects which we shall describe herein. The lethal dose of radioactive emanation which killed the laboratory worker heretofore mentioned, was not a poison, nor was it a chemical death. He died by electrocution, slow electrocution which consumed two weeks of time to slowly expand enough to kill. ANY OF YOU DEALING WITH "AIDS" WILL NOTE THAT THE SYMPTOMS OF ILLNESS, SICKNESS PAT-TERNS, WEAKNESS AND TERRIBLE LETHARGY OF THE CONDITION SIMULATES THE PATTERNS OF RADIATION OVERLOAD, MISNAMED AS "RADIATION POISONING". As our last word, before taking the next simple step in our clarification, let us remind you that this universe of motion is entirely electrical. Every effect of any nature, whatsoever, is basically electric. Whatever happens in any way stems from the electric current. To know just one wave unit of the electric current is to know all there is of the construction of matter, or the cause of any effect of motion, whatsoever.

The secret of Creation lies in the octave wave, therefore, know the wave. Also,

it is very good if you all first become electricians for all other "careers" are secondary to that of understanding electricity. We even suggest this same thing to the humanist, poet or missionary. First be an electrician! Know the electric current if you wish to control people, matter, or YOUR DESTINY. Now, Mr. Russell and Mr. Tesla both knew this simple fact very well indeed, especially Mr. Tesla--Mr. Russell's knowledge came from this identical route--Mr. Tesla used practical application.

The chemist and musician make use of the same octave tonal scale, and the clergyman who knows its rhythms is vastly more fitted to balance human problems. I say to all men in all professions, and all walks of life, from the statesman to him who wields a shovel: "If you would know your universe of motion, your relations to it and your control over it, FIRST THOROUGHLY KNOW UST ONE CYCLE OF AN ELECTRIC CURRENT AND THE STILL FUL-CRUM FROM WHICH IT HAS ITS BEING."

# THE SUPREME MYSTERY OF LIFE AND DEATH

I would now like to write for you what seems like an insoluble paradox, or an impossibility of Nature, but it is a <u>fundamental</u>, nevertheless. Please <u>carve it</u> <u>indelibly upon your consciousness now</u>, and await its gradual comprehension as other unknown fundamentals of nature will be or already have been revealed to you herein. It is as follows:

All material bodies, organic and inorganic, live and grow by increasingly fast motion. They also die and decay by increasingly fast motion.

This eternal fact of Nature has always stared Man in the face very conspicuously, without having been seen. Even so great a thinker and observer as Dr. Einstein passed it by when he wrote his equation of 1905, which states that fast motion multiplies electrical potential. Before Dr. Einstein passed on from your plane, he knew there were errors in his calculations and even tried to rectify some of them, at which point he was stopped from so doing. The fact in point of Nature is true, but as it is equally true that fast motion divides potential, his whole equations are invalid as a LAW, for a half-truth which voids itself CAN-NOT become an ETERNAL LAW.

It is not to be wondered at that this fact of nature escaped observation by the senses, for Man is so accustomed to the fact that effects disappear through slow motion, and that death is consummated by cessation of motion. The senses are not to be trusted, however. When you fully understand the above postulate you will also understand the incredible death speed of plutonium radiations which are approximately 170,000 miles per second.

The fastest speed of Nature is 186,400 miles per second. That is the generoactive speed in which light waves reproduce to create living bodies of matter. In the creation of matter the generoactive, polarizing, centripetal speed which multiplies to create solids, begins with zero at the first octave and reaches its maximum generoactive speed of 186,400 miles per second at carbon, which is the maturity of Creation. This is the increasingly fast speed which multiplies potential. It is centripetal. From there it begins its radioactive, depolarizing, centrifugal speed at zero and reaches 186,400 miles per second, just beyond plutonium at the amplitude point of the 9th octave wave. This is the increasingly fast speed which divides potential to assist matter to die. It is centrifugal. Up to nearly that point the word fusion has taken the place of combustion, but beyond it the speed of death is so great that the word fission has been coined to meet it. The speed of flame by fission causes one short-circuit in about one hundred millionth of a second. Its actual speed could be computed by dividing the speed of light into the time it takes for one wave frequency. Thus we will end another lesson in unfolding your comprehension to the meaning of multiplied death before again opening new doors for still greater comprehension of the true nature of our universe.

So please, let us review what we have projected here. We will make it easier to comprehend by telling it simply and in easy stages. As a step in this direction you must know that life in a Man's body is exactly the same as life in your car battery. As long as its electrical charge exceeds its discharge it lives and grows with increasing vitality. When its discharge exceeds its charge it loses its vitality and slowly dies. This is as true of a flower as of a man, or atom, or flaming sun.

We again repeat the fact that all things live and grow because of their ability to generate enough heat to charge their bodies with their normal voltage, and no more. Each living body has a normal temperature and pulsation frequency which must be constant in order to live and grow. Death begins with the slightest upset of that normalcy. Even one degree of extra heat beyond 98.6 will upset the entire metabolism of man. That one degree of fever is one fifth of his way to death. That is equally true of everything. Your planet already has a degree of "fever", caused by radioactivity--not greenhouse effect nor missing ozone. That one degree has already upset the earth's metabolism enough to cause many fishes in the seas to migrate into colder waters. It is causing ice caps and glaciers to melt, etc. Actually the degree registers a bit above one degree and rising. Less than ten more degrees of radioactive fever will make of your planet a barren waste!

All things which die and decay do so because of their inability to continue the electric strain of compression sufficiently to preserve their normalcy. All living bodies compress. All dving bodies expand. This should not be a difficult lesson upon life and death, for compression and expansion are the only two effects of motion and force in all this universe and we have been over this quite a few times to this point. Also, all things in it are eternally compressing and expanding in alternate sequences, forever. Your heartbeat, your breathing, and the pulsations of every cell in your body are continually compressing and expanding in orderly ordained normal rhythms, each unit having its own normalcy of rhythmic frequencies, and each one being not only in balance with the whole, but also in balance with its normal environment.

Consider a living man, in his normal environment of temperatures and pressures, being subjected to an electric pulsation frequency of a 10,000 volt current. That tremendous abnormalcy expands every cell in his body so suddenly that they violently explode. All expanding bodies are always exploding slowly, over long periods of time. We do not use that word for slow expansion, however. We do not say that a decaying tree, which takes fifty years to go back into the ground, is exploding. If you burn it, however, the flame is a series of quick explosions which will do in two hours what Nature intended to do in some fifty years.

Consider your car battery in the same way. If small wires are used the charge in your battery explodes slowly. You can drive hundreds of miles because of those slow gradual explosions which gradually discharge your battery, If, however, you connect both poles with a large wire and touch the ends together you discharge the whole battery instantly. A brilliant flash of intensely hot flame appears from an environment which was cold. That is what radioactivity is. It multiplies the frequencies of slow, invisible radiation to fast visible radioactive fusion.

If, for another example, you wind a tungsten wire with silk, then pass a hundred thousand volt current through it in a vacuum tube, you will see a brilliant white flash of intensely white hot light which lasts for only about one millionth of a second. That light is so hot that it instantly explodes the tungsten. Nothing but helium gas remains in the tube. Also those radioactively multiplied voltage frequencies are so quick that the silk thereat has not even been singed.

Fix in your mind the primary fact that flame and radioactivity are one...Flame is guick death always. Coal dies slowly by slow loss of heat while in the ground. It takes thousands of years to radiate itself away, while flame does it in an hour. If you multiply the frequencies of flame you are, likewise, multiplying its power to quicken the death of anything. A sulphur match will not produce a hot flame. It will burn wood slowly but it will not set iron on fire. The hotter flame of the acetylene torch will set iron on fire, however, but it will not set granite or concrete on fire. How did you think an oxyacetylene torch cut through metal? If you multiply the radioactive power of flame still more, by making an oxyacetylene flame, you can then electrocute granite or concrete. It will burst into flame and slowly disappear.

These great radioactive and heat-multiplied frequencies are nothing, however, as compared to the intense heat which nuclear fission produces with plutonium, barium, radium and other radioactively explosive elements. They are a far cry from the flame power produced by the sulphur match. These elements have made a match for Man which has produced a heat so great, and so quickly, that it has utterly destroyed millions of tons of rock deep down in an island and vaporized other millions of tons of sea water in a millionth of a second. The heat thus so timelessly generated is greater than the hottest part of your sun. That is what we mean by describing radioactivity as quick death.

If it could be possible to transport a hundred ton lump of the sun to your earth it would drop through it as readily as a bullet penetrates the atmosphere. Call it radioactivity, fission, fusion or what you will, its principle in Nature is the release of a frozen body from its imprisonment by releasing its binding tensions. It is the relaxing principle of Nature. It is the restoration of tense matter to its Natural state of equilibrium.

Let us have a break before we continue with how radioactivity kills. Thank you for your time out of this day busy with other life matters. This is absolutely necessary information if you are to understand how deadly the games are which are being played out on your placement. So be it.

## GERMAIN TO CLEAR.

#### CHAPTER 4

**REC #1 HATONN/GERMAIN** 

MONDAY, JULY 1, 1991 8:51 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 319

#### MONDAY, JULY 1, 1991

Hatonn present in Light, in service and in humble appreciation for the gift of another day in which to serve our relations.

OK, chelas, you flunked your examination. Charles is ill and you don't know what is wrong--get Audrey and Eric. This is the very type of thing you ones can plan on facing along this path. Yes, I do know what is wrong--further, it is not important that "I" know what is wrong--YOU must know how to handle these things. Also, you ones must learn to measure tasks and not get yourselves into such boundaries of stress that you become physically ill.

Audrey and Eric will be the ones tending this type of "cmergency" and, of course, you have done the correct thing in getting medical assistance--but you should have a pattern wherein most appropriate service can be rendered in the shortest time possible. Both Audrey and Eric are trained very well in emergency care as well as convalescent attention--let us now begin to allow all to serve in their best capacity. Thank you.

Do not anticipate that WE will automatically tend every whim or need--the body is always trying to reach through to the reasoning brain when there is illness or pain. Attend the messages carefully and then concern need not turn into useless "worry". Then, I suggest that we consider getting on with our "housing-Audrey" project at the earliest possible time for it is the living alone which can become the problem as ones are "out of commission". There will be a pile of permits and drawings, etc., but it must be considered soon for you have several who could nicely participate and many who could afford the care and living community. Let us work in bits and pieces here in the beginning and then let us see what we can do for obtaining some funding for this project--it can pay for itself as a good investment. You will need some larger apartments, i.e., let us say, if Ranos wished to live in such a dwelling, he would need room for his computers in addition to living, so you will need varying sized apartments, etc. This is only example, but I suggest it is time to begin to seriously think of these types of projects.

All ones need privacy and yet, many would prefer to not tend of gardens, etc., or cannot do so-<u>let us just feel our way along here until the direction comes clear.</u>

You will find that miserable bouts of "flu", etc., are very debilitating and, frankly, mimic in symptom similarity, radioactive sickness--it is something that it is time to consider in your portfolio of concerns. Just from that which you

have released into your atmosphere (for radioactivity is less at ground level than in the higher elevations) you are experiencing increasing bombardment--<u>the scientists want you to think it is ozone depletion--it is radiation buildup</u>. Face it and then perhaps we can begin to counter the situation.

So that we can understand more clearly, the problem and the workings of the mechanism of radioactivity and how it eventually "kills"--I shall turn this over to Germain without further time consumption. Thank you, Dharma, for yesterday was a marathon day of writing, but rest can come when the knowledge is forth. Saalome'.

Germain present and thank you for allowing my participation. The subject matter is most disagreeable but through knowledge is the only route through which we can prevail in the Light.

#### HOW RADIOACTIVITY KILLS

This is certainly not a "pretty" subject but of utmost value for <u>when you find a</u> <u>problem--there are always counter-measures to be taken</u>. So, allow us to let our thoughts wander a bit and consider your condition. As you sit in relaxation by your fireside, for instance, you feel in perfect comfort. Your room is warm. You can go to bed when you wish and sleep in comfort. You are not hungry. You have good bodies and your temperatures are right around 98.6 degrees F-just as they should be. Your pulsebeat is regular and "normal"--everything is within "normal" range. You can arise in the morning, take food, go into town in a ready waiting car, and plan your day's work and evening's relaxation without fear of interference, because everything outside your home is as normal as it is at home. That is what you desire, is it not? Is not this regular, even if boring, existence that which all civilization is striving to attain? Is it not a fact that human happiness, health, safety, property and all things considered by you to be worth while depend upon the normalcy of your environment and your human relations?

Your temperature could not remain at 98.6 degrees if your planet could be pushed five million miles nearer to the sun. Your temperature would rise. You would have a fever of several points. Naturally that could not be done, but its equivalent can be done by the use of radioactive fission. Your normal life can quite easily be made most unhappy and very dangerous if the town's water supply becomes polluted, or a hundred other things which could happen to you in your home, or to the town or nation, which would upset your normalcy.

Epidemics of typhus, polio, smallpox, and many other things have upset the normal growth of individuals and nations. Two-thirds of middle Europe were wiped out by bubonic plague. A war tomorrow might draft you out of your comfortable home, your bed, your work and your relaxation. Your own desired normalcy can be ended in a flash, and an abnormalcy take its place, which you do not desire. Instead of a happy Hungarian family and comfortable home of this minute, some are dead, and some are in prison, or exiled to Siberia in the next hour. This is true, is it not? It is quite a familiar picture to the whole world, and not one person in all the world remains untouched by the abnormalities which have upset the great orderly rhythmic growth which Nature intends for all creating things, and will give to them if they cooperate with Nature in keeping that normal rhythm of her orderly unfolding of all creating things.

You could look upon, let us say, a body-builder who is muscular and considered beautiful! Is that body perfection? No--it is trained in a most abnormal manner and is totally out of balance and in imperfection. The body was not born to appear in that manner and, worse, it is ego seeking eternal physical expression which causes the being to seek such physical manifestation. Sorry about that, you joggers, runners, weight-lifters, etc .-- you are foolish and totally out of balance and there is almost no harmony within your being and requirements are absolute and total slavery to the task of remaining out of balance. Exercise for fitness is one thing--overdoing to fill ego needs for looking younger and such, is indeed foolish. Anything which causes undue attention in exaggerated manner-is in the long-run far more detrimental to the emotional stability which, in fact, gives instructions to that body to function properly--than almost anything for you who are slaves to training routines when that is not your path of service-are leaving yourselves open for great pain and suffering when you are unable to meet those physical sessions of training. What you have been trained to accept is only that which MAN has pronounced perfection of the physical.

Normalcy of environment is a necessity of all Creation, as well. For instance, Eidelweis will not be found in a low valley. No one would attempt to raise tropical fruits in Alaska or northern Canada, nor could polar bears survive in the pastures of southern Florida without long times for natural changes to adapt. If you knew that certain actions of Man would so change the normalcy of your environment that it would cause an epidemic of bubonic plague, would you not rise en masse with your neighbors to prevent it? Of course you would. Bubonic plague would be a mild and transient effect as compared with what is now being planned for the human race, for many would survive it and, in future centuries, would forget it. Not so with radioactive fission, however, for none would survive to forget it. I wish to demonstrate and explain to you why oxygen-dependent vegetable and animal life could not again appear upon your earth for twenty to thirty thousand years if Man's plan is consummated.

It will be interesting and enlightening to again turn to your imagination regarding your comfortable and safe position in the universal house of the human race and other organic life. To aid the picturing of the position of organic life in this universe we are printing a map of the entirety of Creation for you to see it as a whole.

Look at Figure 5. It tells the whole story of Creation, and your safe house within its dangerous surroundings, which we will point out to you a bit later. That safe house of yours in our universe is indicated by a triangle which bounds its walls of safety. You will see it right near the middle of the map. That triangle is the limit of your safe environment. Beyond it you cannot go for there are twenty-two vicious killers in the far reaches of the environment which surrounds your house, which you cannot see. You need have no fear of them, however, for Nature has chained them very securely so that they cannot hurt you while so securely imprisoned. Man is planning to alter Nature's plan, however, and release them into your environment and has done so, even within your very house. These killers are the invisible metallic death rays which penetrate every cell of your body with ultra-microscopic poison metal bullets at speeds of around 160,000 miles per second.

These killer metals, which are soon to multiply to uncountable millions, will await you in your drinking water, which will be polluted from underground over the whole region of atomic activities, from buried atomic waste. They will await you in your food, for every grass blade will take it into the beef you cat and the milk you drink. They will await you in every breath you take, for miles of it will accumulate in the upper atmosphere to fall upon the earth increasingly, year by year. Do not find comfort in assurance that you can be protected from it. We will consider that later, but you can no more be protected from it than you could protect the dryness of earth from becoming wet when it rains. Neither can your planet be protected from the rise in its whole temperature, which alone would so change the earth's environment that all life would be impossible.

The universe might very appropriately be likened to a harp of nine strings, with nine tones in each string. In the diagram the strings are all indicated as the same length for simplicity. In Nature the lower string is the longest. They grow gradually shorter up to the 9th. Likewise, the tonal positions and frequencies change in each string. In every case each note on each string is one octave higher than its next lower string. You will note that each string begins with a zero and ends with a zero. These are the key notes of each octave. They are the cathodes of every electric anode. They are called inert gases, such as helium, neon, argon, krypton, etc. They are the seed of all matter and the supreme mystery of matter. In them is the answer to the great mystery of life and death.

Perhaps you may better understand our meaning by a study of your piano keyboard. There are only seven tones there. Each eighth tone is the same as the beginning note, except it is one octave higher. The reason for that change is due entirely to pressure mathematics. Compression pressure has reached a position where the vibration frequencies have multiplied in cube ratio. If you put a book upon the top of an organ pipe you will find that its tone will jump to just one octave higher.

Like the low tones of a harp, the low spectrum tones on the Cosmic harp are of so few frequencies that they cannot even be perceived by human senses until the third string is reached. Up to around your year 1926 only one of these tones had been perceived, but at that time the Russell Charts numbered one and two, included herein, were published, which completed all of the octave tones of that third octave. Also, up to the issuance of the Russell Charts in 1926, the chart then in use was known as the Mendeleef Table of the elements. In that chart hydrogen was the only element shown in that otherwise empty third octave, an impossibility in Nature which creates ALL UNITS IN PAIRS AND ALL OC-TAVES IN FOUR PAIRS. The Russell Charts repair this deficiency whether or not the scientific community wishes to accept it. Remember, Man of Earth Shan thought the sun revolved around your planet and that you were the center of your system--I wonder sometimes, if you have grown from that ignorance as







The Russell Periodic Chart of the Elements, No. 2

of yet. Mostly it simply matters not to almost all of you. If you are told otherwise regarding truth of functions, you simply get rid of the speaker, burn them at the stake or worse--crucify them, and go on in your ignorance until the knowledge is used by the adversary to blow you away. Note that hydrogen, and its octave, were shown without an inert gas preceding it. This is as impossible in Nature as the growing of a tree without a seed is impossible. Also hydrogen was placed in the first column instead of the fourth column under carbon. <u>Hy-</u> drogen has never been suspected as being carbon, one octave lower, as silicon is <u>also carbon</u>, one octave higher.

The reason that each succeeding tonal note, which constitutes the elements of matter, is one octave higher is one entirely of increased pressure. You can better understand that by compressing some air in an enclosed box or tube in which you have inserted a whistle. The more air you pump in, the higher the whistle sound when you open its valve. If you tighten a wire the same thing will happen. The same harp string can give you many tones if you turn the tuning pins higher, or lower. By the time the first octave string has multiplied in cubc ratio nine times, the speed of vibration frequencies and intensity of pressure have reached the incredible proportions of 1,073,741,824 times greater in the 9th string than the first string.

You can better imagine the tremendous explosive pressures which lie behind radium and plutonium bullets by actually seeing the pressure figures. Try it. Start with the first octave at 8. By cubing 8 it equals 64, then 512, then 4,096. The carbon octave comes next with pressure of 32,768. These are YOUR normal pressures, as well as for all organic animal and vegetable life. When you cube your normal pressures you are running into danger. <u>Nitrogen</u>, for example, is phosphorous when cubed once, and it is arsenic when cubed twice. Nitrogen is necessary for you but phosphorous and arsenic will immediately "eat up" the nitrogen of your body and kill you by their radioactive expansion.

Oxygen is sulphur when cubed once to equal 262,144 pressures. Sulphur will kill you, however, for sulphur is the dying body of oxygen and you cannot eat your dying body. If you ignite sulphur it will consume oxygen. If you cube oxygen five times you arrive at the deadly radium-uranium-plutonium octave with its tremendous pressures of over a billion. These are the very nearly dead bodies of the elements which constitute the universal body. The reason that these bodies poison you is the simple fact that you cannot eat the dead bodies of parts of your own living body. If you cannot survive the ptomaine poisoning of slightly decayed fish, how can you possibly survive the maximum putridity which radioactivity is?

The deadly strontium octave reaches the tremendous pressure of 16,777,216, and the barium octave reaches 134,217,728 pressures. Underground these tremendous explosive pressures give birth to lower pressures by releasing higher ones from crystallized structures. That is the cyclic, or reincarnation process of Nature. Above ground, however, the cycle acts in reverse. Dead bodies kill living bodies instead of borning them. That is why oxygen and the free radioactive metals cannot co-exist. That is why thousands of tons of radioactive death in plutonium, strontium, thorium, radium and the other nearly dead elements used in reactor plants and discarded as waste, will gradually consume the
earth's atmosphere and its oceans if not prevented from allowing the dead to remain buried, instead of resurrecting it to kill the living. You must understand that all bodies beyond carbon are dying bodies and that living bodies cannot live by consuming dead ones. There is a point of decay in all bodies, whether they are carrots, meat, fruit, oxygen or nitrogen. You do not have to be convinced that you cannot live if you consume decaying bodies of vegetables or animals which are composed of nitrogen, oxygen and carbon. Why should it be necessary to convince you that you cannot live if you consume decaying oxygen, nitrogen or carbon in their natural forms? Decay and radioactivity are one, except that radioactivity is FAST DECAY.

Pressures in electric matter are dominated by the geometry of space wave-fields, which are based upon the cube. We recite this fact in passing, to explain the use of the word, but its further explanation would require too much space to record here. We will lightly touch upon it at the end of this book.

You can better understand the death dealing speed of radioactive light "bullets", which radium or plutonium can shoot at you, if you but compare the speed and power of Colonial musket bullets to the modern ones, and then multiply that by thousands of times. Or if you put sixty pounds of pressure in your tire, instead of thirty, and compare the hiss of that explosion when you open the valve, with the hiss of a thirty pound pressure, it will give you a more clear picture of what over a billion times thirty pounds would do if you could blow up a tire to such a high pressure--undoubtedly you would reach the moon most quickly when you open that tire valve this time.

## <u>SAFETY</u>

Let us now look around your house of safety within which your environment is all contributory to the well being of organic life. By organic life we mean oxygen dependent bodies. Within that triangle on the universal harp are only five of its tones out of its total of 121. Those five tones are carbon, silicon, oxygen, hydrogen and nitrogen. It will probably amaze you to be informed that four of these five elements constitute 98 1/2% of your whole body composition. More amazing still, all five constitute 98 1/2% of the upper few feet of the earth's crust upon which your body is dependent for the food it needs for survival. The basic constituent for the fertile life-giving earth's crust, is silicon. Silicon is the first stage of death for carbon. It is, therefore, as good for purposes of earth as carbon is for purposes of life.

Your bodies need many metals but it is extremely important to realize two things about such needs. One is, that out of the many their total is only 1 1/2% of your bodies. The other is that not even a millionth of a milligram of metal enters the body in its free state. They can be present only as mineral salts, or oxides. Iron, calcium, magnesium, sodium and many other mineral salts are necessary, but only in infinitesimal amounts. To indicate the small amounts of metals the body will accept, we cite such examples as manganese, which is present in only seven hundredths of one per cent, copper one thousandth, nickle two ten-thousandths, and gallium three one hundred-thousandths of one per cent. Iron, calcium, iodine, sodium and other metal salts are necessary, also, but in extremely small fractions.

This might seem to be a very strange thing, for <u>Nature creates only metals</u>. The text books give lists of non-metals, but there are no non-metals. All stone in this universe is composed of one or more pairs of metals in union. The stone of which your grindstone is made is the main source of aluminum, but the mate of aluminum is phosphorous. Likewise, the stoney carbon is composed of boron and nitrogen in union. Nitrogen is classified as a gas, but all gases are low-pressured metals. The next octave above nitrogen is phosphorous. It has been multiplied into a solid by one octave of additional pressure. Nitrogen and oxygen are good friends in the atmosphere you breathe, but phosphorous will burst into flame and consume oxygen if exposed to it, and if you breathe it you would die--yet it is but concentrated, or compressed nitrogen. If you multiply nitrogen another octave the result is arsenic, and that is obviously a metal. If you breathe arsenic vapors or take a very little of it into your body, even as a salt, it will kill you quite quickly--yet that, too, is but compressed nitrogen.

## STEPS OF MAN

We will take for the next step the as yet unknown fact that the structure of the universe, as one whole body, lives and grows to maturity, then dies, just as man, and all organic life does. Carefully note the parallel. A man matures at about forty, which is about one half of his cycle. During all of that period of time he is growing stronger and is more vital. From that moment, however, he begins to die. His generoactive maximum is reached and his radioactive period begins. He may still grow stronger in body but his cells are dying faster than he can keep them regenerated. When he is about eighty, death has caught up with the power which charges bodies into life. The WHY of that is what you need to know for your own sake, and the WHY of the death of metals is what atomic engineers must know.

The entire birth and growth of matter matures at carbon. It matures as a flaming true sphere, any part of which will crystalize as a true cube when frozen into form. The cold cube of space and the hot sphere of matter are the consummate forms of Nature. Beyond that they cannot go. Also, they are Nature's limitations in pressures, temperatures and frequencies. Beyond the cube and sphere they cannot go. When you understand this fundamental of Nature you will then understand WHY and HOW you and all things live, and WHY and HOW you die. Follow this explanation carefully, then, and you will know. As to "WHERE--you go when you die", that can wait, but that also you will know before you finish this book inclusive with the prior JOURNAL. We will leave this idea of cube-sphere limitation, and its reversal for a moment, but will return for we have covered it in detail in the prior JOURNAL.

Now look again at your chart and find <u>carbon</u> in the fourth octave <u>symbolized</u> by a cube centering a sun. From that point on death begins and <u>multiplies</u> its power to die in the same ratio as it has <u>multiplied</u> its power to live. In other words, it now accumulates as <u>much</u> centrifugal speed to disappear into its invisible Source as it accumulated centripetal speed on the way to its destination in carbon. The only difference is that the generoactive speed of compression is inward from the outside until maturity in carbon, and after that its radioactive speed explodes outward from the inside. In each case the inward speed of 186,400 miles per second is reached at the maximum point of life in carbon, and the outward speed is reached at the amplitude of the 9th octave, just beyond the transuranium elements, which is the maximum point of universal death.

What we have just stated is one of the most significant facts of Nature. It has never been known because it has never been known that the universe lives and dies just as Man lives and dies. Nor has it been known that bodies live by fast motion and also die by fast motion. All through these writings you will never lose sight of that fact, for it runs through the books like a golden thread in a tapestry, as it does all through Nature.

You must fully understand that electric compression continues to generate after carbon has been reached, and death has begun to find supremacy, just as a forty year old man may still become stronger and more vital after he has begun to die. If you examine these elements beyond carbon you will find that they are all more dense and much more heavy than any element up to and including carbon. Plutonium is the heaviest of all elements. It is also the greatest of the twenty-two killer metals. These killer metals are what atomic energy is intending to release into your atmosphere.

It is time for a respite, please. Then we shall discuss why killer metals kill and why other metals do not. The central point, of course, is that God, the Creator, is LIGHT--the invisible White Light of the undivided and unchanging Magnetic universe. Upon this point revolves ALL. So be it.

Thank you for your attention, let us stand aside that rest might give renewal and also allow time for pondering of the information <u>AS</u> it flows for it is far more effective in small "doses". I salute you.

I AM GERMAIN

#### CHAPTER 5

## REC #1 HATONN/GERMAIN

TUESDAY, JULY 2, 1991 8:47 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 320

#### <u>TUESDAY, JULY 2, 1991</u>

Hatonn present in the Radiance of Life. May we commune, please? I ask that all of you give unto your brother, Charles, support and prayers that he can glean energy from you who would share with him. He is indeed very ill and weak. Please stay close for you can feel very alone when you are taken to the sickbed. This is the time to support him with messages and love, for note the big void in workings of the "crew". You who feel unneeded, take note of how empty it is to have one missing. Ah yes, you will get "moved in" and arranged for no one person is indispensable in the overall--but the absence of any one makes the heart show more appreciation for that beloved brother's contribution. It also is opportunity to look without self and unto the needs of another as a reminder to always pray for thine relations for the cycle brings the fruit of the tree back unto thee in perfection.

Sananda is giving such supportive information for our work, through Dru, that I ask that we publish it with whatever our brother would share with us today--as the next EXPRESS. You cannot live by bread alone. Even though the public will not be aware of the Germain information as of yet--the current JOURNALS are Pleiades Connections and are dealing with "life"/"death" principles which explore and unfold the Truth and workings of the universe. I ask this because you need the support of this gentle Master and Friend and we need the time to continue with the lessons. You can turn this planet around if you will come into KNOWING and the only way to do so is to have the information of HOW IT REALLY IS! If you wish to share with the readers that which we gave unto "Jackie" yesterday, then feel free to do so. Ones are continually reaching out from the depths of problems and that will worsen as the life impact, economy and chaos worsen. We will give you some methods whereby you who face that which seems insurmountable most certainly can overcome with reason and clarity of thought. GOD RARELY ANSWERS PETITIONS AS YOU ONES EXPECT-FOR IF A THING IS TO BE DONE-YOU WILL DO IT; HE WILL ONLY POINT THE WAY. FURTHER, IN THE POINTING, HE WILL ALLOW YOU TO SEE THE PATH AND LOOK OBJECTIVELY UPON THINE PLIGHT. Be patient with us as we, too, are bounded by the physical in the amount of work which can be presented.

I am asked "WHY, then, do we not utilize other hands for this information and get it forth more quickly?" Because if only Dharma writes for us of the Phoenix, with some support of a nature which, frankly, gives HER the support to continue--then we know that regardless of your complaints, you do have time to cover the material. If one person can produce it--YOU can at least find time to study it! The material coming forth cannot be selectively attended as in a library of novels wherein you may choose your subject. You MUST COME INTO THE KNOWING OF TRUTH AND TO MISS THE LESSONS AS GIVEN WOULD BE INDEED UNWISE. THIS WAY, WE CAN MEASURE THAT WHICH IS GOING FORTH AND, FURTHER, REMOVE YOUR <u>EX-</u> <u>CUSES</u>! I repeat--if one little lady can produce the material--YOU CAN **READ IT!** Whatever you perceive of the "physical" to hold more importance--IT DOESN'T!

Dharma is quite devastated by the information for she says, "It is like writing a dissertation on `what went wrong and why man and life perished from the earth'." Ah so? That, dear ones, is up to you. Will you move into the wondrous beginning of glory or move through the ending of history of this cycle--ah yes, 'tis up to YOU.

Thank you, Germain, for attending us this morning. I place the seal of God upon your work and stand by in my own receiving that we might better see and hear. I salute you.

# WHY KILLER METALS KILL AND WHY OTHER METALS

## <u>DO NOT</u>

Vio present in the radiance of the ray of transmutation. Much is purified and alchemized as well as transmuted by this particular ray of violet radiance. This is very "physical" and not merely a touting of "Germain's focus". Even the ultra-violet can kill or cure.

I left you on the yesterday with the statement that God, the Creator, is LIGHT-the invisible White Light of the undivided and unchanging Magnetic universe.

In God's Creation He limits all motion to that point in compression where invisible white light has been reached between the two visible yellows of flame in the fission state. When a sun has become a true sphere its center has reached the white invisible still point in the spectrum where motion has ceased. Up to that very point the inward speed of compression has multiplied to its limit of 186,400 miles per second. At that point, also, there is but one center of gravity. Until then there are two. White light is always invisible, for it is always still. It could not be white otherwise. Any motion, whatsoever, would be visible as yellow. This is, further, why God is the stillness of the white light and yet, the Sananda (son) projects as a wondrous "golden yellow light" energy field. For you must understand that each of us who projects through God's thought is in motion and motion determines the color of that motion according to purpose. Creation IS, and therefore presents as the silver white light of that which IS!

The point I wish to emphasize by the above is that when generoactivity has created a true sphere it also has created within it a white light of gravity to center it. It has also created its maximum speed and maximum temperature. It can go no farther. The Creator has consummated His Creation. He has given all He has to give. One half of His Law of Love has been fulfilled. Up to that point the Einstein Equation of 1905 fits perfectly. It fully accounts for the mathematics of life, but not for death. The other half of the Law of Love must now be fulfilled. That which has been given must be equally regiven. The balanced rhythm of this universe must not be upset. For this reason that which has been must be repeated in reverse, to void that which has been, for neither life nor death can end or begin. They can only be repeated, and when they are repeated they do so through each other.

You have now taken another big step in comprehending the difference between slow normal death and quick radioactive death. We must again hold this idea in suspense for a time, as it has many angles and facets which are better to be completed together, as a good diamond cutter does, instead of trying to complete one at a time.

## CENTRIPETAL AND CENTRIFUGAL

The next step for comprehension brings two words into our story which are of great import. These words are <u>CENTRIPETAL</u> and <u>CENTRIFUGAL</u>. Their real office in Nature has not yet been known, other than the fact that one supposedly contracts from the inside--which IS NOT TRUE, and the other expands. What is not yet understood is the fact that centrifugal spiral motion, in this entire universe, is EXPRESSed where pairs of centripetal pairs meet in sex union in Nature's electric current, and begin the journey of regiving back to the Giver of motion. If this fact had been known there would have been no "expanding universe" theory. The text books say that there is no uphill flow of energy. Centripetal motion is that uphill flow. The cyclone vortex is that uphill flow. The charging of your battery, your body, and the creative process of compression, is that uphill flow. Nature creates atom units centripetally in matched pars. She causes atom unit pairs to collide and explode. There are not any atomic systems in Nature until mated pairs meet in sex union at wave amplitudes.

Look into the heavens. Every spinning spiral nebula is an atomic system on a stellar scale. It is made up of the dying parts of a united pair which has arrived at its centripetal maximum and must begin its dissolving journey back to its source. That dissolution is EXPRESSed by rings which wind up into spheres. These spheres throw off more rings centrifugally until all "wound up matter" has been "unwound". Centrifugal motion is the outward direction of death. Radioactivity is centrifugal. The power to kill, which has been generated in the twenty-two radioactive killer metals, is due to the intensively high pressure which has been compressed into them beyond their ability to hold. As a result they discharge their death rays in metal bullets for the thousands of years they consume in their dying. These metal bullets are as potent in killing you as bullets discharged from a revolver, and the principle of their projection is the same. The only difference is that radioactive bullets are so ultra microscopic that five billions of them would not make up a pinhead in size, but their expanding power within your body more than makes up for their smallness. In

# fact, their power to expand within your cells IS their danger, for expanding cells are dying cells.

We will pause again to examine these bullets so that you will get a very clear idea of their potency, and know also that it would be as impossible for you to be protected from them as it would be impossible to protect you from feeling the effects of the sun. Let us, therefore, first examine radium expansion bullets.

We again refer you to your nine-stringed Cosmic Harp. You will find radium on the 9th string. <u>Remember that all bodies are dying from the 5th string to the</u> 9th, although they are trying very hard to live. Look at carbon with that thought in mind. Imagine its relationship to matured life such as you would find in a virile athlete of forty. Its cube crystal form indicates its perfection of body. Now look at silicon on the 5th string. The athlete is now a virile man of fifty, but not his equal of ten years prior. Silicon and silicates can reach amplitude and the hexagon in crystal structure, but cannot reach the balanced cube.

Now look at the 6th and 7th strings. The athlete is dying with great spasmodic efforts to live. He can never reach amplitude again, however. Carbon was enabled to void its metallic quality by the union of a pair. In the 6th and 7th octaves, however, that amplitude collision is not consummated, even though five terrific efforts are made to accomplish it. The yield has been but five pairs of metals, and their inability to create a sphere with one center of gravity, instead of five pairs of centers, has yielded the high pressured metals known as cobalt in the 6th octave, and rhodium in the 7th.

Beyond the 7th octave the effort to live becomes greater. That tremendous effort to compress multiplies the power to die. Thirteen efforts in pairs are made in the eighth octave with the yield of a prototype of cobalt known as lutetium. You may study all of these pairs of metals by examining the Russell Periodic Chart No. 1.

In the radium octave these pairs of efforts are detectable on the red side of the spectrum, but not on the blue side, for reasons which would occupy far too much space to explain here, and not sufficiently necessary to this story. As a part of it, however, take note that <u>all of the worst radioactive killer metals are on the red side</u>.

Now, as to radium. What is it? Let us examine its ancestry. Beryllium, in the 4th octave, which has a pressure intensity of 32,768, begat magnesium, which has an explosive pressure intensity of 262,144. Magnesium begat calcium, which has an explosive pressure of 2,097,152. Calcium begat strontium, at 16,777,216 units of pressure. Strontium begat barium, at 134,217,728, and barium begat radium which has accumulated the enormous power to ejects its bullets of 1,073,741,824 times that which it had at birth 9 octaves back.

Your greatest comprehension of the deadliness of the radioactive elements can come by the study of radium. We cite radium for you can very easily visualize its deadliness by purchasing a little inexpensive instrument called a spinthariscope at any opticians for a quite modest fee. Within it is a fine needle which has touched a long empty, supposedly used-up small vial of that very expensive radium. We cite this fact to drive home to you the potency of so inconceivable an element as this, which cannot seemingly ever be used up. It may be that several hundred thousand more spinthariscopes can still be made from that empty vial.

If you look through the lens toward a fluorescent screen you will see a sight so glorious that it could not be matched except by looking through a telescope at a star cluster. Thousands of stars seem to be exploding against that screen. What you see are the death rays of one of the most poisonous of the radioactive elements. You are seeing the luminous metallic expansion bullets which leave their metallic quality in their target to continue their expansion, and pass through, and beyond it into an inert gas named niton, then through another named xenon, then through another named krypton, and another named argon, and still another named neon until it finds its final resting place in helium. In passing through all these they have expanded them all to get back to the low pressures of the 4th octave. Further description of this principle is explained in a separate chapter discussing the inert gases, We can add, however, that plutonium bullets are not content to stop at helium. They continue right through to the inert gas of the beginning of Creation in Octave 1.

The wonderful, and amazing fact of this little instrument is that you could still see it as it now is for thousands of years. This fact should answer for you the question as to the ability of Man to protect you from it after thousands of tons of the still more deadly plutonium are distributed all over the country in solid ten ton piles, and not just the wipings of an empty milligram vial.

An interesting story is told about radium when it was first discovered. For awhile it was thought that the life principle had at last been found. This was so sincerely believed that instruments were made to charge drinking water with these "life giving rays". Such instruments were purchased by the wealthy for as high as \$1,000. Very soon, however, the tragic error was discovered before it became serious. Today, however, the danger is so well known that the number of seconds in which one is exposed to X-rays, or any radioactive effect, are checked and counted to prevent too much exposure to these now known death rays.

In closing this description of radium we feel that your decision as to whether or not YOU can be protected from its dangers would be affected by the following story of the tragedy which resulted from a slight accident in a laboratory, which we will quote, from an article printed in your magazine, *Colliers*. Such things are impossible to prevent. In reading it remember that it is only *radium*, the lesser radioactive element in that octave. That might also happen with plutonium (shades of Chernobyl).

A graphic example of how fast and far contamination can spread occurred a few years ago when someone in a Navy laboratory on Treasure Island in San Francisco Bay stepped on a glass vial containing a barely visible amount of radium salt. The accident was discovered late in the afternoon, and by the time decontamination crews got on the job 16 hours later, the radium had already spread throughout the San Francisco area for a radius of over 20 miles. Automobiles used by students and instructors in the lab were heavily contaminated, especially the steering wheels and floor mats. Their homes were jumping with radioactivity. "It was uncanny", recalls Lieutenant Commander Royce K. Skow, who directed much of the decontamination work. "With our instruments, we could trace the movements of the men just as though their tracks were visible. A sofa showed the outline of a student's body where he had lain down. We traced one young father from his living room to his child's crib. Two `hot' spots showed where he had put his hands on the railing of the crib."

In a typical home, seven miles from the laboratory, a student had contaminated doorknobs, towels and water faucets. His bedspread and pillow, his slippers, his armchair, a writing desk and his pencils, his clothes--all showed radioactivity.

Since the contamination had spread outside the laboratory, where it could have been handled more effectively, drastic measures were called for. Decontamination teams ripped out carpets from a dozen homes. Automobile mats and seat covers were junked. Shoes which were only lightly affected were scrubbed again and again until instruments indicated they were clean.

The laboratory building was permeated with radioactivity and showed concentrations of radon, radioactive gas given off by radium; men entering the building wore special respirators. After a few days, crews went into the structure and burned the surface of concrete areas with scaling torches. Paint was removed. Every foot of the building was washed down, Linoleum was peeled up.

Two hundred drums of highly contaminated objects, principally carpets, clothing, linoleum and cleaning rags, were weighted with concrete and dumped into 100 fathoms of water far at sea. The building itself, a 31-room structure, could not be used for three months.

Everything connected with radioactivity is complicated by its indestructibility. A piece of contaminated newspaper cannot be burned except in a special incinerator. Even then, the ash must be carefully disposed of and gases and smokes given off in the burning must be washed or filtered. Then the poisoned water and filters must be isolated or buried."

Now, would anyone like to discuss the properties involved in the toxic projections of the HIV virus? You see, it doesn't really have to do anything except "sit" there. Moreover, shall we toy with the ELF waves and their origin and how they are produced? OH, YOU THINK IT CAN'T BE? DO <u>YOU</u> CARRY A RADIOACTIVITY MONITOR OF THE TYPE TO DETECT THE INVISI-BLE DEAD METALS OCTAVE? I have told you that viruses are crystalline substances and have been "manufactured". World, you are deliberately being radiated to death. Detection devices have been deliberately kept from you and just as you are told that which THEY WANT YOU TO HEAR--SO IS IT

# THAT YOU DO NOT AND WILL NOT (IF THEY CAN HELP IT AT ALL COSTS) KNOW THAT WHICH IS PUT AGAINST YOU.

## DESCRIBE RADIUM AND YOU DESCRIBE THEM ALL

Once more we refer you to the nine octave chart. To describe radium is to describe them all, for their effects are the same. One should know them all, however. Practically all of the deadly killers are on the red side of the spectrum. You will glean the reason for this as we move on. They begin with three silvery white metals on the lowest of the radioactive octaves, the silicon octave. The first two are sodium and magnesium. Sodium will set water on fire and burn its oxygen out, if you throw a lump of it in water. One small pinhead of it as a free metal will kill you, but when deprived of its metal quality by union with chlorine you need it in minute quantities in your body. It is table salt. Magnesium is the familiar flashlight of photography. Naturally, its radioactivity will kill you if taken into your body in its free state, yet you need a minute fraction of it as a mineral salt. Aluminum has such a density that its radioactive powers need not be feared in that octave, but in its succeeding octaves it gradually becomes more deadly than radium. Its highest form is actinium, which is an element between radium and uranium.

The sodium series, including lithium, potassium, rubidium, cesium and an unknown element one octave higher, are in the deadly class, especially because of their power to destroy oxygen by expanding it with such quick death that it bursts into flame. If you compress oxygen into a liquid and then touch a match to it you will get a hotter flame, for you have multiplied its speed and expansion by multiplying its compression.

Sodium, calcium or potassium multiply the expansion of oxygen in its gaseous form and give forth the heat that liquid oxygen would give. Likewise, oxygen is multiplied in its heat-giving power if united with calcium-carbide to create an oxyacetylene flame. Consider the deadliness of potassium in this respect by the following example. You will find potassium one octave above sodium. You very freely take carbon and nitrogen into your body. They are two of your five essential elements. If you add a minute amount of potassium, however, you produce cyanide of potassium, a deadly quick electrocuting poison. This is an example of what a minute quantity of radioactive matter would do if added to the essentials of your blood plasma. That is why leukemia, birth deformities and impotence will be the forerunners of greater scourges to come. Would you say you are beginning to see this now in the form of AIDS and cancer spread?

We will again leave these thoughts in abeyance until they are more completely tied together later as we end the JOURNAL.

Dharma, allow us a break, please. Thank you.

I AM GERMAIN

### CHAPTER 6

### REC #2 HATONN/GERMAIN

## TUESDAY, JULY 2, 1991 2:16 P.M. YEAR 4, DAY 320

We are returned to continue with our JOURNAL. Hatonn in Light. I would like to say just a bit of response to our friend, Jack M. who has just written some very thoughtful questions. He suggests that possibly we could give you some instances wherein a space vehicle was that which appeared in the sky at various Biblical times. Yes, indeed, and you, friend, have already given a few of them such as Ezekiel's "wheel" and Moses on the mountain to receive the plates, and that which led the children across the wilderness, etc. There are three which you have missed right off the top. At one time in the Old Testament there were many, many instances from the "day of Creation" in which "God Created the Stars". (No, but all the various craft were standing by to serve in a most interesting manner.) Then there was the command that the stars were not to be worshipped; that because they were craft with brethren and not Gods. Then there was the time the "sun stood still"--no, this is incorrect at any event because it would have been the world which would have had to stop for the sun didn't move about. The light stopped because the light was a starship. Then, of course there was the birth of the Christ-child and then the taking away of Emmanuel for his lessons with his higher brothers and teachers. Then for Hezekiah "the sun moved backwards" -- no, but the ship did so. And then at the time of the crucifixion the sun and sky were darkened by a ship larger than your planet which moved before the sun for it was an infamous day. Watch out now for the time when you shall have a most awful and terrifying LIGHT and then the sun shall be blackened for three days -- I suggest you take that one incident of prediction quite seriously. The times of appearances and manifestations are throughout the entire experience of the Bible--before and after--to the point I cannot take the time from the writings to list them all. Just as with so many other Truths from the records being removed--so too, were the references which were valid and remembered but removed so that you would not be given into knowing Truth.

As to the inquiry about written documentation regarding the IRS being a private corporation and that, in turn, would mean that employees thereof are not government employees--touché! I'm sure that Rick or George will have backup information on that one and can enter it into some *EXPRESS* in the near future. Thank you for asking. I do not wish to take more of Germain's turn at typing to respond further so I will turn it into their capable hands for response. There are piles of information coming forth now and you will note very little is said about the massive numbers of people not filing this year. This is another reason you can know that the "big boys" plan heinous things with your economy for your tax collections are in great deficiency. I relinquish the podium to my colleague in great appreciation for that which he is bringing forth. It truly is necessary, Dharma, that this be done--thank you, for we know it is not easy to face the implications in these writings. For you who missed the report this day on the news (it was NOT missed by Dharma who is wishing for a big, deep shelter), even the Slovenians and Croatians have shelters. The reporter just announced this day that the fighting was becoming massive with more tanks, bombs and artillery--BUT, MOST OF THE CIVILIANS WERE JUST SITTING OUT THE TIME IN THE BOMB SHELTERS. So be it, for those who have eyes and ears.

Germain to continue:

## ALL ELEMENTS OF MATTER ARE "FROZEN" FLAME

We have stated before that all of the elements of matter are frozen flame. The generoactive compressive force of Nature quite easily freezes low potential explosions. You think of water freezing at 32 degrees F, or O degrees C. But, dear ones, that is not the freezing point of that which is NOT water. Please note, for instance, that the highest melting point of all the elements known is 3,600 degrees centigrade. That is pretty hot for freezing. Do you see that your old saying of "...it will be a frozen day in Hell before...." You see, it can be frozen in hell at 3,599.9 degrees centigrade.

Each succeeding higher potential requires greater effort to freeze it, therefore, it requires greater heat to melt it. The highest melting point of all the elements, as I just stated, is 3,600 centigrade. This high point is reached at carbon. Silicon in the next octave reaches only 1,420 degrees and cobalt only 1,440 degrees.

¥.

The great unexplained mystery of melting points is the fact that the red side of the carbon octave reaches high melting points because of the fact that two of them are dense solids. On the blue side all three are gases and have melting points as low as 223 degrees below zero. Fluorine reaches this point while its mate on the red side, which is lithium, reaches 186 degrees above zero.

It seems strange that this octave of the highest maturity has three below zero elements on its blue side and high ones on its red side, when the dying elements have very high melting points on the blue side and less than half of those points on the red side. It is more strange still to metallurgists that many of the elements in the radioactive half of the chart are heavier and much more solid than carbon, the heaviest element on the living side of the chart. Tantalum, for example, reaches 3,400 degrees, while its close neighbors on the blue side, reach 2,900, 2,700, 2,250, 1,750 and 1,063. The answer to this is also more clearly defined later, but, very briefly, the reason is that the red side of the spectrum represents the fatherhood of Creation, which seeks the inside of forming spheres where the fires of Creation are centered, and the blue side represents its motherhood and seeks the outside to fashion boodies in her womb, and cool them into form. In the first half of the electric creating process the blue half is compressed out of the generating body, by exploding from within, while the red half gains its center, by compression exerted from the outside. In the second half the situation is reversed. All nature is constantly reversing, and in doing so is constantly turning inside out and outside in. This conspicuous and obvious fact f Nature has not yet been sensed by observers.

## **SUMMARY**

May we summarize for just a moment: The foregoing has described the manner in which Nature projects motion from space and space reflects it back again. The one point which we accentuate in this whole process is the highly explosive nature of the radioactive metals. We do this for the purpose of demonstrating that this high and quick explosive power is needed in Nature's death process to assist in the decay and death of the slow dying rocky formations which first constitute the bodies of new planets, which Nature has set out from her sun crucibles to freeze. Millions of years--or perhaps billions--are consumed in the process of decaying enough of the earth's surface to create the conditions necessary for organic life. Such conditions cannot be possible nearer to the sun than seventy to eighty million miles, and cease to be possible when a planet reaches as far out as Mars.

Water, oxygen, humus and the necessary carbohydrates of life are created by the exploding metallic bullets of the dying elements as they assist dense elements to die, but if they also project their death into less dense bodies, such as animal tissues, those lesser solids and the gases of their atmosphere will again be assisted in their desire to expand, which is inherent in all matter.

In conclusion, therefore, we say to you that every ounce of free radioactive metal which is removed from its purposeful position of bombarding the unfertile, dry, hot rocks of Nature to yield pairs of bodies for making organic life possible on this planet, will not only clear the entire planet of all organic life but will keep it thus cleared until the many uranium piles above ground are entirely dissolved by their own radiations. The number of thousands of years necessary for that is not predictable, but it is calculated by authorities that plutonium rays have a duration of over twenty thousand years. That is a long time. The dawn of Consciousness was but 10,000 years ago. How far back will Man be, therefore, when he again appears on earth?--if indeed--he ever will.

## HEARD IN THE VOICE OF THE WORLD

I shall devote this portion to the world opinion and the world fear of radioactivity. It is not written to support evidence we have given, but merely to express the world voice. We include it, also, because the world fear does not know WHAT it fears. The effects are known, but the WHY of those effects are not known. That is why we must write the WHY, else the danger will be beyond remedy before the world becomes aware of it. Let me give two reasons for this statement before we quote the press, etc., and the fears of scientists.

The first and most obvious reason is the belief that the greatest danger from the use of radioactivity is defective births and leukemia. That danger will creep

upon civilization without any way of detecting it--it already has, in a massive way. One cannot go about with instruments to measure genetic damage, as one can do to measure the amount of strontium and other radioactivity which is falling on the soil from year to year. Sterility will be an accompanying effect, while abnormalities of living bodies will be secondary. It could not be otherwise, for genes are not basic in potency. There is something behind and underneath genes, and that is the seed. No human has ever attempted to explain the seed; therefore, it is permissible for us to say that the principle of rebirth in bodies is not yet known on Earth. We covered that in the prior JOURNAL. We know it, however, and because of that we know the danger which has no meaning to those who do not know. This mystery has to do with knowledge of the purpose of inert gases in relation to the seeds of things. We will look at that more closely, also. Right here, however, we can say that every living body refolds into its seed simultaneously with its unfolding FROM its seed. I cannot urge you strongly enough to read this JOURNAL in companion with the prior JOURNAL, or the two prior ones, or this will make no sense to you.

With radioactivity in general use it is upon you that the translucent light of the inert gases, especially niton, which is described in relation to the deadly bluewhite light radiations from radium, and the still more deadly blue light of uranium, will make seed-regeneration gradually impossible in either animal or vegetable species. This is the danger which will come unannounced. It might even seem a bit welcome in your state of overpopulation-but you are talking here about the demise of a planet and species of all living forms. This is the promise of the danger which will come-it is the one of which you must be the most apprehensive, for it could result in hundreds of millions of sterile humans and millions upon millions of defective births--in mere years of time.

Geneticists have already begun to talk about mutations, for they understand how the seed-pattern can be altered by abnormal environment, but beyond that, to the seed itself, and its manner of refolding a dimensioned material image, such as a hundred-ton oak, into a dimensionless, weightless, formless micro-pinpoint inert gas recording of itself, they do not know. Do you not see that the plague of "AIDS" was introduced into the most "unlikely" groups for the spreading into the lineage of humanity? Then as the required time elapsed so that there is no way to reverse the disease--you have created an effective manner to control planet population in a massive way. The problem is, that with all the other bombardment of radioactive particulate--even the unintended shall eventually perish if this continues as it is moving. No one knows what the blue-white fluorescent light of inert gas from radium or from plutonium, means to the seed and to sterility. For instance, if a reactor plant, such as the Hanford one in Washington, is placed north of New York City, it will take only a very few short years before the whole of that vast watershed would have to be abandoned, including many other cities near New York--it should already be abandoned. For that matter the entire infrastructure of New York is terminal and there is no real evidence of rebuilding--the city is totally bankrupt in both money and life quality. Look at the insane placement of installations and the problems concomitant with them that have risen up in the past 40 years. You are basically already into terminal illness.

This projection can be mathematically calculated as easily as noting that a two-

foot sapling will be ten feet high in a matter of a few years of growth. It is an orderly mathematical fact of growth. In the process of Nature it could not be otherwise. One could be forewarned of that danger before it had reached that extremity, but one cannot be forewarned of the sterility of all organic life until it has affected possibly more than half the population of the whole world in various degrees. Just this week Dharma and America West received a blasting letter about the "fear" thrown out of this place--well, you tell me if there might not be something herein to be concerned about! I don't comment on the element of FEAR-BUT THESE ARE THE FACTS AND I WOULD MOST CERTAINLY BE A BIT CONCERNED ABOUT IT EVEN IF YOU LABEL IT "FEAR".

When radium was first used its danger was not known. No one was then forewarned of it. Because of that fact a laboratory worker named Dr. Emil H. Grubbe, was constantly exposed to it until he developed cancer burns. These did not kill him but since then he underwent some 90 operations because of them. He lived into his eighties but now millions are the case instead of the exceptional one or two.

Someone asked Hatonn from a radio interview why "YOU DON'T GIVE US THE CURE FOR CANCER", etc. This was the same disgusting and insulting person from Florida. There is no "cure" for "cancer"--you are creating new forms on an hourly basis. It does no good to try to bail out a sinking boat until you stop up the holes in the hull. It can also be equated to "healing me of this poison" while the next dose of poison is waiting in ever increased amount. To heal, you must stop giving the poison--FIRST!

Are you comfortable contemplating this fate? How about your children? Will there even be a time of your children's children?

All the way back into your years of the 1920's it began and I will speak of some of the old original cases. Dr. Percy Brown, a Boston X-ray specialist, had fifty operations because of various X-ray effects, including cancer. He died in 1950 after 24 years of suffering from those effects.

There was a well known case of accidental death which came to young Harry K. Daglian, Jr., of New London, and it is typical, for every known means of protection surrounded him every moment. Yet he died in 25 days because of the bomb test accident at Los Alamos, New Mexico. How long back was that, America?

Back in those days before radium danger was announced, seventeen girls had been employed to paint watch dials with a radium-mixed paint. One by one they all developed strange bone and blood diseases until all of them died. HOW CAN YOU ALLOW THIS ABSURD LIE TO CONTINUE CONCERNING AIDS? MY FATHER GOD OF CREATION--DO YOU NOT HAVE "REASON"?

Forgive my passion, for I cannot see how you can lay waste to that which has been created for you in such Love and abundance and at the same time, suicide an entire planet. Do you understand?? WE CANNOT ALLOW THIS RA-

DIOACTIVITY ABOARD OUR CRAFT. WE LITERALLY HAVE TO NEUTRALIZE YOUR BEINGS BEFORE WE CAN BRING YOU ABOARD AND INTO SAFETY. CAN WE DO IT? YES, BUT THERE ARE TIMES WE WONDER "WHY" WE SHOULD SO DO! These dying metals are lethal to us, also, and damage greatly our own energy fields and stability, not to even mention the stability of a manifested craft. YOU ARE RELEASING UNIVER-SAL DEATH RAYS, CHELAS, AND IT CANNOT GO ON FOR VERY MUCH LONGER LEST YOU DAMAGE THE UNIVERSE AND THAT WILL NOT BE ALLOWED. HARKEN UP, I PLEAD WITH YOU.

As to the girls, it had been said that such a thing could not happen now because you are forewarned. There would be millions of cases continually happening where one could NOT be forewarned, such as the San Francisco case where someone accidentally stepped upon a tiny vial of radium salts with almost none in the vial, and exposed a whole city, which could have been wiped out because of just that tiny bit of radiation--had the accident not been *accidentally* discovered. YOU, WORLD, HAVE NO IDEA OF HOW WIDESPREAD THE INFILTRATION OF RADIATION IS WITHIN YOUR WORLD JUST FROM <u>CHERNOBYL</u>--AND THAT WAS AN INTENTIONAL THRUST. I care not what you "think" happened there--it was an intentional and deliberate action!

You have ones in Rosamond, California and Delano and other places near the growing fields and isolated spots where leukemia is occurring--THE CHIL-DREN ARE BEING RADIATED TO DISEASE AND THEN DEATH. The investigations into the "cluster" incidents are both stupid and useless. YOUR SPECIES IS BEING RADIATED TO DEATH!

Dr. Alfred H. Sturtevant is an eminent geneticist. In 1955 he made the following statement: "The last bomb test alone probably produced more than 70 human mutations which are likely to produce large numbers of defective children in the future." That was in 1955 and you now average almost one per day in the Nevada test site alone. Your mental and other institutions for defectives are overflowed and your populace is functioning in a zombie state of walking dead--filled with depression, violence and all manner of actions which can be traced right back to this original source. The tax upon normal humans for the support of these defectives is a great burden. Such an increase in defectives as is produced by various forms of radioactivity threatens the very life form itself.

We have a second reason of concern at the misconception of beliefs in relation to the ability of matter to ABSORB other matter. For a specific example, the text books describe lithium as a metal which has great power for *absorbing water*. There is no such power in all Nature. Matter does NOT absorb, nor contract, nor attract. Matter is compressed and will expand and destroy, but it will not absorb. And in that misconception lies a terrible danger, for what does actually happen is that lithium expands oxygen and destroys it. And so does sodium, potassium, strontium, calcium and the other silvery white killer metals, which look like silver but which you could crush between your fingers. If lithium and sodium expand oxygen in water, and your body is two-thirds water, think of what it would do to your body. Always bear in mind that everything which is dying is expanding, or, conversely, expansion is the basic condition for

# necessary death. Sudden expansion causes flame and great heat, for sudden expansion is an electric short-circuit.

Another dangerous misconception is evidenced in the commonly used term" "...releases an extraordinary amount of energy". <u>Energy is not released</u>. What actually happens is that <u>potential is released</u>, not <u>energy</u>-and that <u>means expansion</u>. Atomic fission helps matter to explode instantly instead of decaying over long periods. "Released energy" means quick expansion, and quick expansion into the universal vacuum is the death process of any kind of material body, whether it be iron, carbon or a human blood corpuscle. That conception which gives to energy the quality of expanding or contracting, is one of the contributing factors to the deadliness of radioactivity as a power for Man's use. <u>Energy is changeless</u>. It is the eternal vacuum of the zero universe-God's universe. To confuse the compressive power of electricity to create potential for the purpose of simulating energy, with energy itself, is extremely unfortunate.

Radioactivity has come into general use and there is a continual discharging of ultramicroscopic particles by the billions per square mile. Thousands of ships are also now utilizing such material and are releasing radioactivity into the seas which is already killing great numbers of your sea life. How long will it be before there is no fit food grown because of the pollution of material from the power plants in motion about your planet? How long will it be before there is no untainted food? Why do you think we are urging a move to grow in underground growing houses which protect from elements and radiation? Further, we will probably show you how to grow in mixtures of clean (deep) soil with additives of pumice-type filler to assist in cleansing the products. Such a thing as the "normal" food you are accustomed to will soon be impossible for you as it is for the cow, which is now compelled to eat contaminated grass to make into the milk you drink and the meat you consume.

Let me make one more clear attempt to tell you what I mean by the ability of metals like lithium, sodium, calcium or strontium to expand within you and hasten your death. I guarantee you will stop paying millions of dollars to be thin, or save yourself by cutting out cholesterol, or fat, or, or, or. A metal like iron, or gold, cannot hurt you from outside of your body because it will not expand unless you apply an intensely hot acetylene flame to it. Lithium will expand and explode in ordinary room temperature. It cannot be kept in its metallic state unless immersed in oil. If you touch an ordinary match to it a white hot flame quickly consumes it at the cost of a lot of oxygen.

Sodium will burst into flame without a match. Just throw it in water. The resultant flame does not absorb water, it expands the oxygen in it and sends it back into its cathode zero where all dead things go. It bursts into flame. Flame destroys. It does not absorb. A lesser heat than a flame expands towards death, even though it may not destroy.

In this connection the Atomic Energy Commission issued a report to the effect that the first atomic submarine, the Nautilus, had been in operation for some two years without a single illness from radioactive poison taking place. Here, of course, was the inference that the atomic submarine had been proven safe. Was it? Funny thing, in about 1974 the second atomic submarine, the Sea

*Wolf*, was launched. It quickly became known that its liquid sodium power system could not be prevented from leakage and had to be removed. If a thousand or so such ships sailed the seas and each lost even a very little of such poison it would so utterly change the percentage of sodium in the ocean that no fish could survive it--and, where do you think all your fish have gone????? And what of the levels of contamination in the fish that are being hauled to your tables?

It is insane to believe that Man would actually continue to produce sure death-so we have to assume that they do not know the full extent of that which they do and work on the assumption of the lies and misinformation of scientific knowledge. It must be that the deadly nature of the killer metals is simply not known, nor that their power to kill lies in their power to expand every other atom or cell of matter with which they come in contact. It is that very power which makes them valuable and necessary in their own environment. Their ability to expand and "kill" granite, basalt, and other rock formations, gives to earth the few feet of decayed soil, atmosphere and water necessary for organic life.

Dharma, allow us a rest break please and then we will speak of findings and opinions of some 145 leading scientists who met for the purpose of studying this problem--guess what: *under a financial grant by none less than the Rocke-feller Foundation!* Off the top of my mind, I believe the meeting was held around the mid-50's. This was, of course, following the war and the cute little bombing of Japan.

By the way, I am reminded to tell you to kccp your eyes on the volcanos in the Philippines and in Japan. Pinatubo is going to have a bigger eruption than any to date--very, very soon. Damage from floods and ash/mud is incredible right now at Unzen in Japan--chelas, the news moves to all the distractions and you miss it all for the most part. By the way, they are not nearly through with California in case you plan to go back to sleep and leave preparations against earth-quakes for another century.

Moreover, what of all the blithering and blabbering and threats about Saddam's installations? Seems that when the crews got to the place to investigate--there is nothing except sand in the place where all those installations were supposed to be located! What do you make of that turn of events? Obviously someone wants to start another war perhaps? So be it.

I will stand aside now and allow Dharma to take rest. Thank you for your attention. I know this material doesn't exactly "make your day" but not liking it will not change one iota of the TRUTH OF IT. SALU.

## I AM GERMAIN

#### CHAPTER 7

#### REC #2 GERMAIN

# WEDNESDAY, JULY 3, 1991 11:23 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 321

#### WEDNESDAY, JULY 3, 1991

#### <u>GERMAIN</u>

Vio present to continue with our <u>JOURNAL</u>. I realize that the morning had to be devoted to Hatonn's work so we start behind in time allowance and I realize that you, Dharma, must make a trip on legal matters and to check in with Charles in the hospital, in the city. Therefore, we shall write for only about an hour and then allow you to get out of here around 1:00. In that way, we will have time to scribe a bit more this evening. Perhaps the messages on the "stamps" you are to have done, can be structured prior to going into the city for it will be well over a hundred degrees in the entire area this day and that kind of heat is debilitating and causes sluggishness, so I prefer you keep rambling to a minimum so that we can be refreshed enough for clear writing when we sit next. Thank you.

# NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES FINDINGS AND OPINIONS

To simplify the writing at this time, we will just deal with findings and opinions as outlayed by the scientist. This will mostly be basic "copy" work. We will only write about an hour so let us move right smartly along, please. Keep in mind that this meeting was held before 1957 so the situation is worse, compounded, and invalid in some instances. Worse, however, are the absolute lies and errors in perception in the entire presentation. Read carefully and then ponder your plight most painstakingly and it will become obvious that you are in far more serious trouble than you had any way to evaluate.

The problems of radiation fall naturally into two main classes: (1) the effects on human beings; (2) the various ways in which radiation can reach human beings through the environment.

The inheritance mechanism is by far the most sensitive to radiation of any biological system.

Any radiation which reaches the reproductive cells causes mutations (changes in the material governing heredity) that are passed on to succeeding generations.

Human gene mutations which produce observable effects are believed to be universally harmful.

Everyone is subjected to the natural background radiation which causes an unavoidable quantity of so-called spontaneous mutations. Anything that adds radiation to this naturally occurring background rate causes further mutations, and is genetically harmful.

There is no minimum amount of radiation which must be exceeded before mutations occur. <u>Any amount</u>, however small, that reaches the reproductive cells can cause a correspondingly small number of mutations. The more radiation, the more mutations.

The harm is cumulative. The genetic damage done by radiation builds up as the radiation is received, and depends on the total accumulated gonad dose received by people from their own conception to the conception of their last child.

So far as individuals are concerned, not all mutant genes or combinations of mutant genes are equally harmful. A few may cause very serious handicaps, many others may produce much smaller harm, or even no apparent damage.

#### MAY TAKE GENERATIONS

But from the point of view of the total and eventual damage to the entire population, every mutation causes roughly the same amount of harm. This is because <u>mutant genes can only disappear when the inheritance line in which they are carried dies out</u>. In cases of severe and obvious damage this may happen in the first generation; in other cases it may require hundreds of generations.

Thus, for the general population, and in the long run, a little radiation to a lot of people is as harmful as a lot of radiation to a few, since the total number of mutant genes can be the same in the two cases.

It is difficult to arrive at a figure showing how much genetic harm radiation can do. One measure is the amount of radiation, above the natural background, which would produce as many mutations again as occur spontaneously. It is estimated that this amounts to 30 to 80 Roentgens.

[The Roentgen is a unit of radiation. To give an idea of its value, the average dental X-ray delivers five roentgens to the patient's jaw, but only five thousandths of a roentgen of stray radiation to more remote parts of the body such as the gonads.]

It is also estimated that a dose of 10 Roentgens to every person in the United States would cause something on the order of 5,000,000 mutant genes, which would then be a part of the population's inheritance pool. This figure is subject to considerable uncertainty.

At present the United States population is exposed to radiation from (1) the natural background, (2) medical and dental X-rays, (3) fall-out from atomic weapons testing. The 30-year dose to the gonads received by the average person from each of these sources is estimated as follows:

1. Background--about 4.3 roentgens.

2. X-rays and fluoroscopy--about 3 roentgens.

3. Weapons tests--if continued at the rate of the past five years (1950-1955 with no changes in quantity) would give a probable 30-year dose of about 0.1 roentgens. This figure may be off by a factor of five, that is, the possible range is from 0.02 to 0.5 roentgens. If tests were conducted at the rate of the two most active years (1953 and 1955) the 30-year dose would be about twice as great as that just stated. (Keep in mind, Chelas, that these are figures KEPT TOTALLY UNDERSTATED BY THE ELITE CARTEL LEADER, ROCKEFELLER).

At present test explosions (1956) of atomic weapons are the only significant source of radiation in the general environment, above the natural background.

Meteorologists have found no evidence that atomic explosions have changed the weather or climate. Nor do they believe that continued weapon tests, at the same rate and in the same areas as in the past, would have such an effect.

Radiation from explosions passes into the atmosphere and much of it eventually returns to the ground as "fall-out".

Fall-out divides into three classes: (1) close-in--material that comes down within a few hundred miles of the explosion and within 10 to 20 hours, (2) intermediate--material that descends in a few weeks after the explosion, (3) delayed--material that remains in the air for months or years.

Close-in fall-out from test explosions affects only restricted, uninhabited regions.

Intermediate fall-out would descend very slowly if it were pulled down only by gravity. It is mostly washed out of the air by rain and snow. It spreads over large parts of the earth, but its effect over a small area may be accentuated if there is heavy precipitation while the radioactive cloud is overhead.

Delayed fall-out is stored for long periods in the stratosphere. Meteorologists know very little about the interchange of air between the stratosphere and lower layers, so they cannot predict exactly how long the material will stay up, nor where it is likely to descend. National Academy of Sciences Genetics Committee states:

The report of the Genetics Committee of the National Academy of Science was unanimous and blunt: "Any radiation is genetically undesirable, since any radiation induces harmful mutations (changes)."

This complex chemical compound known as a gene cannot repair itself, and to date we know of no way of repairing it.

The injured gene will handicap some descendant, even though it may skip many generations before it does so. It may cause physical and mental handicaps to a whole line, and it will keep trying until at last it kills off the line.

Thus, the geneticists say cold-bloodedly, from the standpoint of the human race it would be better to have a few thousand humans severely radiated than to have whole populations subjected to minor radiations.

If, as medical evidence overwhelmingly shows, man-made radiation is not good for the health of human beings, the logical questions are: Where and how might you be exposed? What can you do to protect yourself and your family?

You could be exposed through:

1. Ordinary medical X-ray.

2. Eating food, drinking water or milk or breathing air that has been contaminated by fall-out from the explosion of atomic weapons tested by the United States, England and Russia.

3. Food or water contaminated by radioactive wastes from an atomic installation.

Dr. W.F. Libby says: Last May 2, Dr. W.F. Libby, Commissioner, United States Atomic Energy Commission, presented to the National Academy of Sciences what is probably the most authoritative public report to date on "Radioactive Strontium Fall-out".

Samples of radioactive strontium, Dr. Libby said, were detected in the snow at Admiral Byrd Bay in the Antarctic; in the waters of the Danube, the Mississippi, the Seine and the Moselle Rivers; in alfalfa in the fields of Wisconsin and Iowa, and in soil in various sections of the country.

Dr. Libby concluded his report by observing that the average content of radioactive strontium is increasing in milk supplies all over the world, and therefore more and more human beings are putting more and more radioactive strontium into their bodies.

Since growing children concentrate calcium, they are likely to absorb more of this dangerous relative of calcium into their bones than adults. And any material incorporated into their bodies during childhood will have a longer time to act. An atomic laboratory worker dies from atomic rays:

Philadelphia (AP)--Exposure to atomic radiation in a government laboratory between 8 and 10 years ago has taken the life of a Philadelphia physician, the city medical examiner said.

Medical Examiner Joseph W. Spelman issued his finding after an inquest into the death last July 24 of Dr. Kenneth A. Koerber, 50, of Philadelphia. Dr. Koerber had worked in the Atomic Energy Commission's Brookhaven National Laboratories, Upton, N. Y., between 1946 and 1948. He inspected laboratories to protect workers from radiation.

"We presume," Dr. Spelman said, "that Dr. Koerber somehow got a dose of atomic radiation which now, ten years later, caused his death. We have conclusively proved that he was subject to atomic radiation or to the inhalation or to the eating of atomic compounds. At the present time his bones contain 1,000 times the maximum safe concentration of radiation."

We quote now from James Poling, In *Better Homes and Gardens*, May, 1957. The following is far from comforting, if not totally alarming.

"An H-bomb explosion at our Bikini test site, March 1st, 1954, blew a scientific concept, as well as an island, into smithereens. Fallout had previously been regarded as a hazard confined to the immediate vicinity of an atomic explosion. But a recording instrument at Rongelap, 100 miles to the east of Bikini, revealed that this bomb had sprayed alarming quantities of radioactive dust over that atoll. And we learned for the first time that fallout from a multi-megaton bomb was lethal over an area of several thousand square miles. Now we know that naked horror of the bomb. It poses as a potential threat to all mankind."

The Miami Herald prints the following:

DETROIT ATOM PLANT CALLED DANGEROUS: "Washington-In a memo <u>suppressed</u> by Atomic Energy Chairman Lewis Strauss, atomic scientists have warned sternly that the "fast breeder" power reactor he approved for construction outside Detroit may "risk the health and safety of the public".

Last November, a similar but smaller experimental reactor at Arco, Idaho, melted down into a hot radioactive heap that couldn't be touched for six months. Puzzled scientists still haven't found the cause.

Yet Strauss, ignoring the urgent advice of his own safety experts, okayed construction of the same design atomic power plant in Detroit's populous back yard." [Still feeling fine and that you can trust your "big boys"?]

The eminent scientist authority upon radioactivity, Dr. Ralph Lapp, upholds our contention that the upper stratosphere will not send in its full bill for our payment until the late seventies. There is no question but what the stratosphere is accumulating death rays for destruction of earth's oxygen at an increasing rate. The freely expressed belief that "the pull of gravity" will bring the fall-out to earth is costly to human survival. A small percentage of the higher potential goes toward Earth, but the LARGER PERCENTAGE IS OF A POTENTIAL WHICH IS LIGHTER THAN THE EARTH PRESSURES. These seek the upper levels and the stratospheres. It is possible that enough has already collected to take toll of millions of lives, or cause millions of defective births, even if we stopped the use of radioactivity now. We print Dr. Lapp's warning in full, as issued by *The Daily Oklahoman* of July 5, 1956 [45 years ago day after tomorrow]--and other papers.

Dharma, we are out of time for this writing. Let us just leave it right here and pick up right here when we next sit. This is serious, chelas, it is so much worse than you can imagine that WE know not how to best bring it to your urgent attention. I believe, however, that you probably are beginning to see what was meant by Soltec regarding the radiation from the stratosphere onto Earth within the next year or so. It is going to collect to a point where there will be widespread and massive fall-out as the accumulations build beyond saturation point.

With all the information available back half a century and brought public while other information was deliberately kept from you--you must see that you are in urgent circumstance for the planet is all but a "hot" ball of ready-to-detonate elements. You can continue to hide or you can come out of your hole and ask God to attend WITH YOU and meet His Laws and requirements and perhaps we can set this about reversal--if you do not--you can count your days very quickly indeed.

Germain to clear until we next sit to pen. Thank you, Dharma. I salute you and I am honored to serve with you. Salu.

85

#### CHAPTER 8

#### REC #2 GERMAIN

THURSDAY, JULY 4, 1991 10:34 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 322

## THURSDAY, JULY 4, 1991

#### **INDEPENDENCE DAY FOR AMERICA?**

Germain present in communion of the moment. I can not express the love and caring which I hold for your great nation. It is the primary purpose of my journey upon the waves of experience at this sequence. There was such hope for the birthing of a new concept of life and government of the people, by the people and for the people-that a new nation would be birthed where Man could live in freedom and pursue livelihood protected in that freedom and seek his happiness; that he might worship as he pleases, speak out in freedom, find truth and justice within the law and courts, write in freedom, find truth and freedom in the press and live as MEN--EQUAL ONE TO ANOTHER. May you see, and find your way back. Salu.

Let us continue the <u>JOURNAL</u>, for <u>until</u> we finish the <u>outlay</u> of the problems which are <u>uppermost</u> in your opposition to life-we cannot "fix" anything. It does not do good to place a splint on the arm if it be the leg which is broken. Your <u>enemies</u> are invisible--from the rays of radiation to the <u>elusive</u> "invisible government". I am "honored" to be allowed to bring forth this Word--I am not joyous over the assignment. <u>I</u> do, however, <u>hold knowledge which can bring</u> great change within the boundaries of that which I speak. So, allow us to move right ahead with all possible speed. I salute you beloved brethren who receive of us for we are in great attachment and need of one another. <u>May our work be</u> blessed in Truth with the seal of God upon our word.

## SCIENTIST SAYS H-TESTS NEAR DANGER LEVEL

When we had to take leave on the yesterday we were speaking of Dr. Ralph Lapp and I had just quoted an article from a press release. The last sentence needs information repeating: "Lapp said the NAS report, issued June 13, 1956, was `misleading' when it indicated that the testing of nuclear weapons could be increased 25 to 30 times above the 1950-55 average without endangering the world's health."

Dear ones, that testing has been increased by hundreds of times that level.

Now, there is a second angle: "He said in an interview that the NAS limit was based only on `external' radiation. He declared the safe maximum is far *lower for* `*internal ingestion'* of radioactive particles carried into the human system by air, food and water.

"The point I would emphasize," the atomic scientist said, "is that all of us already have measurable quantities of this bomb-generated radioactive material in our system.

"Although the quantities are not as yet dangerous in the cases where measurements have been taken, we now have enough information to determine definitely when the maximum safe level of radioactivity will be reached."

## FOURTH BLAST HINTED

Lapp, who has repeatedly disclosed information about the dangers of radiation, which were later verified by the atomic energy commission, said he believes that three super-bombs probably equal to about 10 million tons of TNT each had been set off in the current Pacific test series before Tuesday.

The Japanese central meteorological station announced evidence of a fourth super-explosion described as "possibly" an H-bomb Tuesday morning. If the total for the series is equal to 40 million tons of TNT, this would double the average annual rate for tests conducted from 1950 through 1955.

Lapp's warning concerned the effects of radioactive strontium, an element created when uranium atoms split. The element is chemically similar to calcium and tends to cause cancer and other ailments by concentrating in the human skeleton.

### CONCLUSION CITED

"Making a much more conservative assumption that test rates would slowly accelerate and would double by 1970", he said, "I concluded that by 1962 there will be enough radioactive strontium committed to the stratosphere to produce a 100 times `maximum permissible amount' in every person on the planet.

"Because of a hold-up of the invisible particles in the upper air--the particles fall to earth at a rate of about 10 percent a year--this radioactive strontium would not show up in full amount in the human body until after the late 1970's.

"However, by 1962 the die would have been cast *irrevocably*."

Instead of a slow acceleration, Lapp said, "The upward arc of bomb testing is proceeding out of control." With Russia, the U.S. and Britain

conducting H-bomb experiments, he declared, the total exploded by 1960 could exceed the equivalent of one billion tons of TNT.

### BATTLE NOT NEW

Lapp has been conducting a running battle against the AEC's secret policy which prevents announcements concerning most of the tests and, even at the public detonation May 21, withheld the explosion data necessary to calculate the exact amount of radiation.

"Education about the biological effects of nuclear radiation is an absolute prerequisite if the human race is to survive," Lapp said, adding:

"I think advertisement of the probable effects of war-borne radioactivity might also prove a valuable deterrent to the unlimited use of nuclear weapons."

Collier's was the first prominent magazine to vividly portray the tragic dangers of radioactivity. In around 1955 it published an article about the dangers of "ATOMIC GARBAGE" by Robert De Roos, which should have awakened every human to this dreadful way of exterminating the human race. I herein print copious extracts from his article-for you hear it, apparently, better from two-legged humanoids. This article was the first one ever to have been published to that date which discloses the true facts about plutonium as being the most deadly of the killer metals. Its greater importance as a killer lies in the fact that it loses only half of its radioactivity in 23,000 years. Its primal effect upon the human body is in its direct attack upon the bone marrow where human blood corpuscles are formed. Together with strontium, these super calciums could cause more defective skeletal birth and agonizing deaths than any plague heretofore known to have hurt mankind.

When you read these extracts have this thought in mind, that radioactivity has hardly begun as yet. This fuel is not intended for temporary use, but for permanent use. Think ahead, therefore, for a hundred years. If conditions are as they now are, after but a few experimental years, what would they be in a hundred years? We believe that there will not be one man on earth in a century or so even if so few as fifty reactors, such as Hanford and Oak Ridge, are erected. (This last portion was written in 1957!)

It cannot be said that the danger to human life is not fully realized, for the cost of the waste storage tanks in 1956 was \$278,000 each, and the Hanford plant had already purchased \$27,000,000 worth of these tanks. The fallacy of this tank plan was that the tanks themselves would disintegrate in a century or so at best, or become as radioactive as their contents in some twenty years, thus fully releasing these deadly rays for many thousands of years of destruction. Many of these tanks have been thrown into the deep sea. Your present generation is already reaping the first harvests of that devastation. Your next generation will pay dearly for what you have done to them. Is that not a dreadful thought?

The next idea for waste disposal was to lock it up in glazed bricks. Radioactive metals will destroy bricks as readily as they destroy granite and other rocky formations. It is a slow process but future generations will be the sufferers from it. There is no possible safe way of getting rid of radioactive waste beyond a few years. The deserts of the world offered the only chance, then and possibly now. By plowing very deep furrows for hundreds of miles, and distributing all waste and free metals in very small amounts over vast (thousands of miles) areas in MANY deserts, it might be possible to save more of your atmospheric damage. Otherwise, you will have no atmosphere in time.

So much time has elapsed since this very information came forth and you slept on, that the problem is so massive that transmutation is all but ruled out as a possibility.

Let us reprint from the article:

Far out in the desert wasteland of eastern Washington, at the Atomic Energy Commission's gigantic Hanford plutonium works, radioactive elements surge in vast underground tanks--a pent-up sea of useless energy which is a constant worry to the scientists who unwillingly created it. This deadly broth of fission products is the garbage of the atomic age.

And these highly active liquid wastes are only part of the story. Potentially dangerous atomic garbage comes in all forms: liquids, solids, gases and vapors. The ordinary defenses of man are powerless against all of them. Radioactivity is invisible and silent; it cannot be touched or tasted or smelled. And everything a radioactive element comes in contact with becomes contaminate: a wrench used in atomic installations, steel drums, a bit of waste-paper from a laboratory. Carcasses of experimental animals may contain small amounts of radioactivity; even the laundry water used to wash contaminated garments gets polluted.

The story of radioactive wastes is just being understood by the public. For years it was cloaked in the secrecy which surrounds all dealings with the atom. But the dilemma posed by the wastes has been with us ever since the first self-sustaining atomic pile was activated under the bleachers at Stagg Field in Chicago in 1942, for when the physicists pulled the switch on the atomic age, they also created something else: the world's first radioactive rubbish--the inevitable, lethal products of nuclear fission.

Ten years of production, which has seen the world-shaking atom bomb pale before the even more shattering hydrogen bomb, has left the AEC with an accumulation of millions of gallons of liquid radioactive garbage and tons of contaminated solid objects. And there's more every day.

\* \* \* \*

The problem facing the AEC--and a problem which it confidently asserts is being handled with great efficiency and success--is how to keep these new materials out of the environment--out of the air we breathe, out of our drinking water and food supplies. The garbage must be kept tightly under control because unbelievably small--often invisible-amounts can contaminate large areas.

\* \* \* \* \*

What makes the problem so serious is the fact that this radio-active garbage is building up at increasing rates--thousands of gallons every day.

And it's only the beginning. The atomic-energy industry, big as it is, is only an infant now, and today's rubbish can be handled by storing it in remote sections of the country. But under the provisions of new Congressional legislation, private manufacturers will be encouraged to develop the commercial uses of fission material. So, in the not-too-distant future, disposal of wastes will become a neighborhood matter.

Some of the best engineering brains in the country are grappling with this serious question, but unless they come up with workable solutions, constantly swelling stores of waste may hamper full development of such peacetime atomic projects as generation of electric power, heating of whole communities from central atomic "furnaces", propulsion of ships and planes, and thousands of undreamed-of new ideas.

\* \* \* \* \*

At Hanford, where the atomic refuse represents the greatest nonmilitary concentration of radioactive elements ever known to man, the scientists rely on CC to dispose of highly active wastes. The radiation level of the hot stuff is fantastically high: the tanks the trash is buried in contain several million times the radio-activity of the world's entire commercial supply of radium.

Just one element sloughed off in making plutonium--strontium 90--is over 60 times as radioactive as radium. How dangerous is that? An engineer at the General Electric Company, which operates Hanford for the AEC, figured out what would happen in the hypothetical event that you threw the element into the Columbia River--which no one would be likely to do. After covering a sheet of paper with computations, he came up with this answer: "It would take over eight hours of the full flow of the Columbia--fifty-three billion gallons--to dilute one gram of pure strontium 90 to the point where the water would be safe enough to drink according to the AEC's permissible limits. Or, putting it another way, if you dripped three grams of the element in the Columbia every day, the water of the sixth-largest river in the U.S. would be unfit to drink." (A gram is 1/28 of an ounce.)

In addition to strontium 90, the chain reaction spews out about 40 other radioactive waste elements with half-lives ranging from seconds to millions of years. A half-life is the time it takes half of the atoms in a

radioactive element to become disintegrated.

Storage of the really hot stuff is very expensive. A recent contract for six 1,000,000-gallon tanks was let for 1,724,000. Hanford has 27,000,000 worth of tanks with a storage capacity of 67,000,000 gallons.

\* \* \* \* \*

No one claims the tanks provide the solution to atomic rubbish disposal. "We are uncertain about the effects of these radioactive wastes," comments General Electric's Dr. Herbert M. Parker, director of the radiological sciences department at Hanford. "We are starting conservatively while trying to get answers which may modify the present program."

David E. Shaw, the AEC manager at Hanford, adds: "Meanwhile we keep building the tanks"--at \$287,000 each.

Meanwhile, most of the rubbish is stored. The only highly radioactive wastes being thrown away are those now sent out to sea to be dumped in very dccp water beyond the continental shelf. A federally sponsored committee hopes this system may provide the ultimate solution to the waste-disposal problem. On the other hand, oceanographers, sanitary engineers, marine biologists and marine geologists are already concerned about what will happen when large amounts of radioactivity are thrown into the oceans.

"The sea has the same topography as the land," says Dr. Abel Wolman, of the Johns Hopkins University, a consultant to the AEC and one of the top sanitary engineers in the United States. "Big as it is, it won't accommodate everything we want to throw into it."

How winds, waves and currents will affect the dispersion or concentration of radioactive materials is under very serious study. Dr. Wolman says: "One thing that makes me a little reluctant about using the ocean is the memory of the New York garbage mess--when New York dumped its trash far at sea only to have it drift back to the Jersey beaches. And what about international control of dumping at sea?"

\* \* \* \* \*

At Oak Ridge, Tennessee, in the vast silences of the Appalachian Mountains, stand the tremendous gaseous diffusion plants where U235 is made by the Carbide & Carbon Chemicals Company, a division of Union Carbide & Carbon Corporation.

Oak Ridge, a 60,000-acre site, also contains the Oak Ridge National Laboratory, which produces most of the country's radioactive isotopes for experimental work.

## HOW OAK RIDGE GETS RID OF ITS REFUSE

#### (AND REMEMBER, THIS WAS IN 1956) [OVER 35 YEARS AGO]

Although its waste problem does not compare with Hanford's in volume, Oak Ridge still pours 50,000 gallons of highly active refuse into its underground tanks every week. Another 5,000,000 gallons of less active rubbish also must be disposed of.

Because Oak Ridge is located in a remote region, the disposal of less active wastes is but a minor worry; but getting rid of the highly radioactive rubbish is harder. Teams of scientists, headed by Dr. Z.K. Morgan, director of the health physics division of the National Laboratory, believe they have an answer for final disposal of the dangerous, longlived refuse at Oak Ridge, if not in all other parts of the country.

Two huge pits were bulldozed out of a hillside above White Oak Lake and large amounts of very hot wastes were poured in. The theory was that the radioactive fission products would be trapped by the fine particles of shale underlying the pits; any small amounts of hot stuff that seeped through would be diluted in the waters of the lake.

Test wells were drilled to detect movement of the rubbish through the ground. At the end of two months, only one waste element had penetrated through to one well.

*McCalls Magazine* for January of 1957, had this front cover headline for a story by P. Lorentz, "RADIOACTIVITY IS POISONING YOUR CHILDREN". We now quote parts of his story which is indicative of the fear which is felt throughout the world of this threat to the human race. Again I ask you to harken up for this is also over 35 years ago!

#### OUOTE:

It is no secret today that a hydrogen war, no matter who starts it or who is attacked, will mean the destruction of most of the human race. One of our own high-ranking generals has stated publicly that a hydrogen attack by our forces might take the lives of three or four hundred million people--enemy or ally--"depending on the direction of the winds!"

\* \* \* \* \*

Here is a substance you can neither see, feel, hear, taste nor smell. You may be exposed to it unwittingly; you may inhale it, or absorb it by drinking polluted water or by eating contaminated food. You may not feel any immediate ill effects, yet some materials remain radioactive for years in the body, operating as so many infinitesimal but dangerous Xray machines. 1. No amount of man-made radiation, external or internal, is "good" for healthy, living things. Any amount of exposure does some harm, however slight.

2. Radiation is cumulative and irreversible.

To put it very unscientifically, you have just so much radiation tolerance, and every time you are subjected to X-rays or any other kind of man-made radiation, you have drawn against your total allowance. Some people have more tolerance than others, but, ideally, the quantity of total body radiation to which a human being is exposed during his lifetime should not be greater than that to which he is subjected from the sun, stars and planets and radiation arising from the minerals in the earth's surface.

3. There is no such thing as a peaceful use of atomic energy, if by "peaceful" you mean "harmless."

Even the by-products of a peaceful nuclear reactor could be used in one form or another for military purposes. Radiations inside atomic plants are dangerous. Air escaping from the plants can become contaminated. If water is used to shield or to cool the plant, it can become contaminated. The waste materials--the by-products of nuclear fission--are radioactive, some materials remaining highly dangerous for centuries.

4. The more people exposed to radiation, the more damage to generations yet unborn.

\* \* \* \* \*

For years, many groups of scientists in many parts of the world have issued appeals for a cessation of atomic explosions, on the grounds that the fall-out of radioactive materials gradually is poisoning the earth. Because of the cloud of secrecy surrounding the military facts of atomic energy and because some of these scientific groups are politically suspect, many of these appeals have been reported in the daily press as political rather than scientific discussions.

A careful study of the official reports of our own authorities, however, should convince anyone that sooner or later the atomic powers will have to stop releasing poisonous materials in the atmosphere. If they do not stop, and stop completely, they will have achieved mutual annihilation just as surely as though they had engaged in actual, all-out hydrogen warfare.

What is more, even if all bomb tests were stopped tomorrow, it is estimated that the main part of the poisonous materials that already have been released into the upper atmosphere will not have fallen on us until 1970, and there will be a continuation of this noxious rain long after that.

The following is quoted from the *Christian Science Monitor*--as written by its Science Editor, Robert C. Cowen:

A special study group of leading American natural scientists has concluded that there is no radiation danger to human life from the present rate of atomic weapons tests. This cuts the technical ground from under the repeated demands that such tests be stopped because of the radioactive materials they release into the atmosphere.

But, at the same time, these experts warn that the full world-wide development of peaceful uses for the atom could produce more of a radiation hazard in the form of radioactive wastes than would an all-out atomic war. In fact, this "hot" waste disposal problem is growing so quickly today that their report urges its immediate and urgent consideration at the international level to determine and set up adequate safeguards.

This report by responsible natural scientists should help to bring more balanced thinking than has been evidenced in the past to bear on the vexing question of whether or not the human race is endangering its own future by releasing atomic radiations into its environment.

The report was based on extensive studies by 145 natural scientists conducted under the auspices of the National Academy of Sciences and financed by a grant from the Rockefeller Foundation. The studies were set up specifically to help resolve the world-wide controversy over radiation hazards and to provide some useful data in a field that is beset with ignorance and uncertainties."

The following is from the Washington Daily News, Monday, September 10, 1956, by Gene Shumate:

## WE ARE BREATHING ATOM-AGE AIR HERE

(It's Radioactive Most of the Time)

The air over Washington has been radioactive more than 70 percent of the time since 1951, a Naval Research Laboratory Report said today.

In 1953, it said, Washingtonians breathed pre-atomic air for only 60 days.

## ATOMIC AGE

"We haven't had normal, clean air since before the atomic age--or since we started testing atomic weapons at Yucca Flats, Nev.," Dr. Herbert Friedman of the laboratory's Electron Optics Branch told *The News*.

Dr. Friedman is one of the authors of the report.

It said the navy has studied the air in a series of areas since 1949--Chicago, Washington, San Diego, San Francisco, Seattle, Memphis, Puerto Rico, Panama, seven scattered Pacific isles, North Africa, and Alaska.

## DOSAGE IS SMALL

Dr. Friedman said the average dosage present in the air here is only two-tenths of a Roentgen--far from being immediately dangerous--"but we're not sure what the accumulative effect on man will be."

"It takes about 500 to 600 roentgens to kill a man outright", he said.

"There's a lot we don't know as yet about what effect breathing even slightly radioactive air over extended periods will have on us," Dr. Friedman said. "We do know that certain isotopes up there are bad actors."

Yes, chelas, of all the cover-ups and secret actions perpetrated against mankind and life-forms of all earth beings--THIS IS IT! THIS IS THE FI-NAL EPITOME OF DESTRUCTION VIA THE SECRET ELITE. You have reached the point at which there is probably no return--<u>it</u> is time you turn your <u>attention to the possibilities of there being a God of Love who sends His Hosts</u> to collect you of <u>His flock</u>. Denying the facts herein, considering that these are conservative projections of your own species' experts and authorities almost half century past--where are you, beloved Man of Shan? Does not everything else in your lives pale by comparison? <u>AIDS</u>, precious ones, <u>is basically a simple created lifeform and acts as a deadly radioactive power plant-intended to kill!</u>

Part of the thrust to stop our writing is to "somehow" prevent panic among men. Panic? If you are not in a panic-you certainly DO NOT UNDER-STAND YOUR CIRCUMSTANCES!

Why don't we alien life-forms just drop in and "fix" things for you? Well, for one very good reason among many, we really don't want to get nuked! We understand the problem and don't really have any intent of committing radioactive atomic suicide. <u>Ours will likely be in service of getting as many off your "hot</u> rock" as will turn unto God within the next few years of your counting time. It does not generally bode well for the planet, however. If you stopped your foolish suicide mission today, you have such an incredible build-up that total reversal is highly improbable at any rate or effort expended. Ability to sustain some life-forms on the planet is possible but that, too, is getting to be a most dim probability in the long millenniums of perceived "future". Radioactivity is already seeping into EVERY aquifer on your globe. You have no means to counter or neutralize it.

Oh, God should fix it for you? WHY??

The greatest and most powerful expression of fear from the use of radioactivity which had yet been made by anyone among the higher intellectuals, up to 1957, is the following world-broadcast appeal by Dr. Albert Schweitzer to the Norwe-gian Nobel Committee, asking that "public opinion demand an end to nuclear tests."

The New York Times, April 24, 1957.

SCHWEITZER URGES WORLD OPINION TO DEMAND END OF NUCLEAR TESTS: Nobel Winner's Pleas Broadcast in 50 Lands Says Alternative is Catastrophe for Mankind.

OSLO, Norway, April 23--Dr. Albert Schweitzer has appealed to the world to end nuclear tests.

The appeal of the 82-year-old missionary, surgeon, philosopher and musician, addressed to the Norwegian Nobel Prize Committee, was broadcast today in about fifty countries, including most of those in Europe. It was broadcast in Swahili from Nairobi and Japanese stations carried it.

Dr. Schweitzer's message was read in Norwegian by Unnar Jahn, chairman of the Norwegian Nobel Committee, who in 1952 bestowed the Nobel Peace Prize on Dr. Schweitzer. Translations of the text were read in English, German, French and Russian on Norwegian short-wave stations.

The impact of the warning was heightened for Norwegian listeners because the broadcast followed by fifteen minutes a report of a recent radioactive rain over Norway caused by Soviet nuclear explosions.

The initiative for the broadcast came from Dr. Schweitzer himself. The Norwegian state radio planned to send a reporter to his hospital in Lambarene, French Equatorial Africa, where Dr. Schweitzer lives and works, to make a recording of the speech.

Dr. Schweitzer said he was too weak to read the appeal himself. It was, therefore, decided that the message would be read in translation and Dr. Schweitzer expressed the hope that it would reach the whole world.

Dr. Schweitzer said his aim was to awaken public opinion before it was too late. He warned that the human race was heading for a catas trophe if nuclear explosions were continued. This catastrophe must be prevented, he said.

"There can be no question of doing anything else, if only for the reason that we cannot take the responsibility for the consequences it might have for our descendants; they are threatened by the greatest and most terrific danger," Dr. Schweitzer said.

He emphasized that to fail to consider the importance of radio-active elements created by man and their consequences would be a folly "for which humanity would have to pay a terrible price." "We are committing this folly in thoughtlessness," he said.

## PUTS IT UP TO THE PUBLIC

Dr. Schweitzer asked why the United States, the Soviet Union and Britain did not come to agreement to stop the tests. He believed the reason was that there was no public opinion asking for it. Japan, he added, is the only exception.

He accused "official and unofficial sources" of evading the problem when they assured that the increase in radioactivity of the air did not exceed an amount the human body could tolerate without harm.

"Even if we are not directly affected by the radioactive material in the air we are indirectly affected through that which has fallen down, is falling down and will fall down," he declared.

He also stressed that not only was the health of the present population threatened by internal radiation but also that of future generations.

"The fact is that the cells of the reproductive organs are particularly vulnerable to radiation," he said.

Dr. Schweitzer concluded his warning by appealing to public opinion in all nations to demand an agreement to stop the tests. "The end of further experiments with atomic bombs would be like the early sunrays of hope which suffering humanity is longing for," he said.

## SCHWEITZER'S APPEAL TO END NUCLEAR TESTS

OSLO, Norway, April 23 (Reuters)--Following is the translation of excerpts from a letter issued by Dr. Albert Schweitzer through the Norwegian Nobel Committee, asking that public opinion demand an end to nuclear tests:

Since March 1, 1954, hydrogen bombs have been tested, by the

Americans at the Pacific island of Bikini in the Marshall Group and by the Russians in Siberia.

After the explosion of a hydrogen bomb...something remained in the air, namely an incalculable number of radioactive particles emitting radioactive rays. This was also the case with the uranium bombs which were dropped on Nagasaki and Hiroshima and those with which subsequent tests were made. However, because these bombs had smaller size and less effect compared with the hydrogen bombs, one hardly paid any attention to this fact.

Since radioactive rays of sufficient amount and strength have harmful effects on the human body, one started discussing if the radiation resulting from the explosions that had already taken place represented a danger which would increase with new explosions.

### RACE HELD ENDANGERED

In the course of the three and a half years that have passed since then, representatives of the physical and medical sciences have been studying the problem. The material collected, although far from complete, allows us to draw the conclusion that radiation resulting from the explosions which have already taken place represents a danger to the human race, a danger not to be underrated, and that further explosions of atomic bombs will increase this danger to an alarming extent.

I raise my voice, together with those of others who have lately felt it their duty to act, in speaking and writing, as warners of the danger. My age and the sympathy that I have gained for myself through advocating the idea of reverence for life permit me to hope that my appeal may contribute to the preparing of the way for the insight so urgently needed.

There are two kinds of atom bombs, uranium bombs and hydrogen bombs. To these two bombs has recently been added the cobalt bomb, a king of the super-atom bombs. The effect of this bomb is estimated to be many times stronger than that of hydrogen bombs having been made till now.

The explosion of an atom bomb creates an inconceivably large number of exceedingly small particles of radioactive elements.

#### PARTICLES HAVE LONG LIFE

Of these elements, some exist for hours, some for weeks, or months, or years, or millions of years, undergoing continuous decay. They float in the higher strata of air as clouds of radioactive dust. The heavy particles fall down first. The lighter ones will stay in the air for a longer time or come down with the rain and the snow. How long it will take before everything carried up in the air by the explosions which have taken place till now has disappeared, no one can say with any certainty. According to some estimates, this will be the case not earlier than thirty or forty years from now.

What we can state with certainty, however, is that the radio-active clouds will constantly be carried by the winds around the globe and that some of the dust, by its own weight, or by being brought down by rain, snow, mist and dew, little by little, will fall down on the hard surface of the earth, into the rivers and into the oceans.

Particularly dangerous are the elements combining long life with a relatively strong efficiency radiation. Among them strontium-90 takes the first place. It is present in very large amounts in the radioactive dust. Cobalt-60 must also be mentioned as particularly dangerous.

## WATER MADE RADIOACTIVE

The radioactivity in the air, increased through these elements, will not harm us from the outside, not being strong enough to penetrate the skin. But the danger which has to be stressed above all the others is the one which arises from our drinking radioactive water and our eating radioactive food as a consequence of the increased radioactivity in the air.

Following the explosions on Bikini and Siberia rain falling over Japan has, from time to time, been so radioactive that the water from it cannot be drunk. And not only there: reports of radioactive rainfall are coming from all parts of the world where analyses have recently been made. In several places, the water has proved to be so radioactive that it was unfit for drinking.

Wherever radioactive rainwater is found the soil is also radioactiveand in a higher degree. The soil is more radioactive, not only by the downpour, but also from radioactive dust falling on it. And with the soil the vegetation will also have become radioactive.

The radioactive elements deposited in the soil pass into the plants where they are stored. This is of importance, for as a result of this process it may be the case that we are threatened by a considerable amount of radioactive elements.

The radioactive elements deposited in the soil pass into the plants where they are stored. This is of importance, for as a result of this process it may be the case that we are threatened by a considerable amount of radioactive elements.

The radioactive elements in grass, when eaten by animals whose meat is used for food, will be absorbed and stored in our bodies.

What this storing of radioactive material implies is clearly demonstrated by the observations made when, at one occasion, the radioactivity of the Columbia in North America was analyzed. The radioactivity was caused by the atomic plants at Hanford, which produce atomic energy for industrial purposes, and which empty their waste water into the river.

Dharma, we must break here because very shortly the computer is set to "eat" the document. It is longer than we like for a chapter at any rate because of "overload".

You petition me to assure you that "things are better now because there is no longer much above-ground testing". No, I cannot tell you that for it is far worse now. You have myriads of countries all over the globe now using power plants and doing underground testing--constantly. Daily there is testing. The underworld is alive with nuclear radiation--now spread around the entire periphery of the globe. As these volcanos erupt and the fissures form and break at the fault lines and the massive heat buildup surfaces from the hot lava beneath the testing areas--the deadly material will spew forth as the deadly toxic material from all volcanic activity in addition to more and more of it being radioactive.

You have effectively allowed the murder by suicide and nuclear holocaust-an entire planet and planet life-forms. There may be no such thing as "time" nor "space" BUT THERE IS SEQUENCE OF EVENTS AND MOTION!

So, I know, John will lead the pack in "we have to do something" and "what do we do now?" What is different today than when you were told of this heinous death plot? Why do you come to us NOW wanting instant cure for your self-inflicted diseases? Why should God do anything? What have you done to prove unto God that you deserve anything? What would you change if all were made "right"?

What can you do to save your species? About all I see as a sure bet--is to get off the place while you still can--ah, but you can't, can you? You have been lied to about the transportation system also, have you not? Are you still in great enamorment and captivation of those leaders who have set this plague upon you? So be it.

God has told you exactly how it will be and what you as a people must do to change this thing come upon you--and what have you done? There are not enough yellow ribbons in the entire of the world to mourn this day, my chelas-not in all the entirety of the world. You sit squarely atop the time-bomb awaiting final detonation. OH YES, INDEED, INDEED, THERE ARE MANY ONES WHO WILL SACRIFICE AND DESTROY YOUR ENTIRE PLANET TO GAIN THEIR OWN PERCEIVED AMBITIONS--MANY!

I TRULY SUGGEST YOU PONDER THIS INFORMATION--FOR THE FACTS ARE LAID OUT BY ONES ON YOUR OWN PLACEMENT AND PERHAPS THEY CAN CAUSE YOU TO HEAR FOR YOU DENY OUR PRESENCE. HOW LONG WILL YOU DENY OUR PRESENCE WHEN THE MASSES BEGIN TO DIE IN DISFIGUREMENT AND HORRIBLE CATASTROPHE? I WONDER! "AIDS" WAS DELIBERATELY CREATED TO COVER THE REAL HEINOUS DEMISE COMING DOWN UPON YOU AND WHERE DO YOU GO FROM HERE? DO YOU MOVE TO REBURY YOUR HEADS IN THE SAND-POT? DOOM AND GLOOM HOSTS? SO BE IT! SALU.

### I AM GERMAIN

## CHAPTER 9

#### REC #3 GERMAIN/ATON

## THURSDAY, JULY 4, 1991 3:16 P.M. YEAR 4, DAY 322

Germain to continue. Thank you for joining me again--I know that I push my luck for it has already been such a long day of work. But, yes, chela--there is no better gift to give unto your friends, children and grandbabies than KNOWLEDGE and LIFE. As we make it through the complications, into enlightenment--then, and only then, can we know how to insure security--even if it be to lift you off this placement and allow man to realize his own reality of choices. So many of the very children you know have come forth specifically to bear their commission; Bryan, Brian, Conan, Ryan, Eli, Shawn, Michael, Jeremy, David, Angela, Allen, Laura, Rob--ah, so many that I cannot name them each herein, and yet they must await their service until we do our work-we shall not let them down for the youth has been forsaken too long. How can a young Captain fly his craft if we cannot get past your radioactivity? Yes, it is an interesting turn of thought process, isn't it? God went to prepare a place for you--and so He has! Ah, Dharma, that which you and your brethren in service unto God's Word shall give unto your lineage that which is beyond measuring-for the picnic and sparkler display will be but a brief and fleeting passage--their life-streams are infinite. Will not our Lady Stacey be a beauteous Commander? These children have come to bring you home--hold them in love and honor for the gift of service they bring to a battered and ungracious people.

I wish to allow Aton appointment to speak and remind you of His Truth before we move again into the mire of that which is so fitfully discouraging. It is in your perception and according to your perspective-how you look upon these days of glory and service. Life IS and it IS FOREVER--

#### THERE IS NO DEATH

Thank you Father/Mother, may we hear the Truth in wisdom and KNOWING that we be not disheartened nor allow the travails of a physical journey of restraint and boundaries to pull us from our appointed task. We would still that you might be heard.

#### \*\*\*\*\*

#### <u>ATON</u>

Aton present, for I am never from you. I am your breath and you are my thought made manifest upon the Mother's bosom. You must always seek unto the Light for him who seeks life without the Light will find death; but he who

seeks the Light will find eternal life even when he walks toward death.

He who knows not the Light shall die to find it, but he who knows the Light shall NEVER DIE.

In Man's inhaling there is life, and death trails his exhaling, yet must man breathe out to live again and deeply in that he may die.

Know you then that I alone LIVE. I DO NOT DIE, but out of Me comes both seeming life and death.

Life is but the inward flow of My thinking's divided pulsing, and death is its outward flow.

Know also that the divisions of My thinking are but equal halves of ONE; for I again say that I am One; and that all things which come from Me are One, divided to only appear as two.

<u>All things come and go from My divided thinking</u>. I have shared with you this knowledge before but perhaps you are more prepared and in readiness for the hearing thereof. I shall repeat it until you hear and KNOW Me for you are but children who have strayed and I desire you back within my wings.

All coming things are living things, and those which go are dead. All must pass the cycle into renewal and great gladness should be birthed in the renewal. Know that all creating things are resurrected from the dead, and dead things live again through My divided thinking arising from the seed of My thought and that which YOU ARE. Again I say that all things are bound as One through Light.

I am forever creating My living body and destroying it in seeming death that it may live in Me to go and come again.

The end of life in death is life's new beginning stripped clean and renewed in perfection of that seed in the rebirthing of that which is borned from that seed according to its own kind. Both life and death are one in Me.

All things are forever living and forever dying; and while they live they die; and also while they are in death they live.

Such is My decree, My universal law, from which there is no escape for Man, or star, or grain of sand; for all things flow from Me that they may appear to Man, and return to Me, that they may disappear from his senses in the cycle of My thinking.

I am the repetitive God. All things which flow to Me and from Me flow again both ways through Me forever in a cycle which ends not, nor has begun.

From My right hand life flows one way and returns to me full spent as death, while full death flows the other way and returns to Me renewed as life. Around My cycle both life and death wend their seemingly opposed ways, each seeking each until the twain meet balanced at maturity, where each gives half to each. But when they pass that halfway point on their separate ways to Me, each then gives thought to each, and then both know, as they return to Me, that each ARE both, and both ARE One in Me.

## Death is but the seed of life.

## Death rebounds from death as life.

From death life springs from the soil; and from life death flows even as the perfume takes leave of the rose.

Death gives of itself to life that life may live; and likewise life gives to death that death may die.

Life is regenerating death, and death is life degenerating.

Light leaves your sun as death and comes to you as life; and when your death leaves you it likewise becomes new life to whom or in what, its impact quickens with your death.

Two ways there are of breath, the inward-charging breath of life and the outward-discharging breath of death. All opposed pairs of My divided thinking pass in opposite ways along these two paths in their traversing of My cycle.

All things which I have divided into pairs of opposites have within them both life and death, but one of these is greater than the other until they meet as equals halfway round My life-death cycle. When once they meet, and pass, they then exchange these qualities, the greater growing lesser and the lesser growing greater.

Even though life is full when life is born, death emanates from life itself as death, and takes the opposite path toward death.

Likewise, does life emanate from death to weaken it when death is strong, until life conquereth death to make death live as life.

Verily I say, life cannot live without dying as it lives. Nor can death conquer life and gather aught to it but death.

Life is My multiplying breath of compressive action; and death is My dividing, opposed breath which expands as life's reaction.

Hear Me when I again say that life and death are opposites which pass each other on My cycle going opposite ways. Life attracts life to life by its compression and death repelleth both death and life by its expansion.

I am the interchanging point of life and death. I balance life and death; and never in their changing can either death or life outbalance death or life.

Write that <u>death</u> and life are one, as the swinging pendulum is one, even though it oscillates two ways in its incessant swinging.

He who travels East in My curved universe arrives at West as surely as he who travels West.

Likewise, life trails the eastern road to arrive at death, while death takes the western road where life awaits to quicken death as life.

So also does death trail the road of life to interchange with life, while life likewise trails the road of death to find itself through death.

Hear Me say there is NO DEATH IN ALL MY IMAGINED UNIVERSE. IN IT IS NAUGHT BUT LIFE, FOR NAUGHT BUT LIFE AND LOVE IS IN ME AND MY KNOWING.

Naught is there in My thinking which is not My KNOWING, and naught but Life and Love are in My thinking.

Take Man's death away from him in this new day of Man. <u>Give him eternal</u> Life in Me by KNOWING ME IN HIM!

Let every projection of that which is <u>Man come into KNOWING that which I</u> <u>AM</u>, that he might find solace in his knowing that I shall send unto him that which he needs to bring him again into My houses. But I repeat: He who seeks only after life without the Light will find death; but he who seeks the Light within Me will find life eternal even when he walks toward death. So be if for Man is given into his free-will that he may grow into KNOWING and I shall force him not.

# GERMAIN

ف بد به به به به

## SCHWIETZER'S APPEAL, CONT'D

The radioactivity of the river (Columbia) water was insignificant. But the radioactivity of the river plankton was 2,000 times higher, that of the ducks eating the plankton 40,000 times higher, that of the fish 150,000 times higher. In young swallows fed on insects caught by their parents in the river, the radioactivity was 500,000 times higher and in the egg yolks of the water birds more than 1,000,000 times higher.

From official and unofficial sources we have been assured, time and time again, that the increase in radioactivity of the air does not exceed the amount which the human body can tolerate without any harmful effects. This is just evading the problem.

Even if not directly affected by the radioactive material in the air, we are indirectly affected through that which has fallen down, is falling down, and will fall down. We are absorbing this through radioactive drinking water and through animal and vegetable foodstuffs, to the same

extent as radioactive elements are stored in the vegetation of the region in which we live. Unfortunately for us, nature hoards what is falling down from the air.

None of the radioactivity of the air, brought into existence by the exploding of atom bombs, is so unimportant that it may not, in the long run, become a danger to us through increasing the amount of radioactivity stored in our bodies.

What are the diseases caused by internal radiation? The same diseases that are known to be caused by external radiation.

They are <u>mainly serious blood diseases</u>. If the cells in the bone marrow are damaged by radiation they will produce too few or abnormal, degenerating blood corpuscles. Both cases lead to blood diseases and, most often, to death. These were the diseases that killed the victims of X-rays and radium rays.

It was once of these diseases that attacked the Japanese fishermen who were surprised in their vessel by radioactive ashes falling down 240 miles from Bikini after the explosion of an hydrogen bomb. With no exception, they were all saved, being strong and relatively mildly affected, through continuous blood transfusions.

## DAMAGE TO DESCENDANTS

In the cases cited, the radiation came from the outside. It is unfortunately very probable that internal radiation affecting the bone marrow and lasting for years will have the same effect, particularly since the radiation goes from the bone tissue to the bone marrow.

Not our own health only is threatened by internal radiation, but also that of our descendants. The fact is that the cells of the reproductive organs are particularly vulnerable to radiation. To the profound damage of these cells corresponds a profound damage to our descendants.

To find out how the existing radioactive radiation has affected posterity, comparative studies have been made between the descendants of doctors who have been using X-ray apparatus for years and those of doctors who have not. Among the descendants of radiologists, a percentage of still births of 1,403 was found, while the percentage among the nonradiologists was 1,222.

In the first group, 6.01 per cent of the children had congenital defects, while only 4.82 per cent in the second.

It must be remembered that even the weakest of internal radiation can have harmful effects on our descendants. The total effect of the damage done to descendants of ancestors who have been exposed to radioactive rays will not, in accordance with the laws of genetics, be apparent in the generations coming immediately after us. The full effects will appear only 100 to 200 years later.

We are forced to regard every increase in the existing danger through further creation of radioactive elements by atom bomb explosions as a catastrophe for the human race, a catastrophe that must be prevented under every circumstance.

There can be no question of doing anything else, if only for the reason that we cannot take the responsibility for the consequences it might have for our descendants.

They are threatened by the greatest and most terrible danger.

That radioactive elements created by us are found in nature is an astounding event in the history of the earth--and of the human race. To fail to consider its importance and its consequences would be a folly for which humanity would have to pay a terrible price. When public opinion has been created in the countries concerned and among all nations, an opinion informed of the dangers involved in going on with the tests and led by the reason which this information imposes, then the statesmen may reach an agreement to stop the experiments.

A public opinion of this kind stands in no need of plebiscites or forming of committees to express itself. It works through just being there.

The end of further experiments with atom bombs would be like the early sun-rays of hope which suffering humanity is longing for.

\* \* \* \* \*

New York Times, April 21st. 1957.

## EUROPE'S NUCLEAR FEAR

An Analysis of Changed Sentiment Toward Danger of Atomic Warfare.

PARIS, April 20--Europe is growing alarmed about nuclear bombs. The mood today has markedly changed from that of the late decade, when the United States' monopoly or predominance in nuclear power was widely regarded as assuring peace and the security of this Continent.

Nuclear weapons are no longer considered a beneficent invention. At the very moment when the United States officially promised nuclear arms to its European allies, eighteen West German physicists joined in declaring they opposed the use of such arms by their country and would do nothing to further nuclear armament. They said current tactical nuclear weapons were as destructive as the original atomic bomb dropped on Hiroshima and that their acquisition by West Germany might increase its danger.

Europeans are becoming convinced that nuclear weapons are a menace even if there never is a nuclear war. A committee of the Atomic Scientists Association in Britain has reported that as a result of the hydrogen bombs exploded so far one person in 50,000 is likely to get cancer in the next few decades from the strontium entering his bones. This is an unproved estimate but represents a scientific judgment based on the assumption that the likelihood of cancer is proportionate to the radioactivity in the bones.

Pending more conclusive evidence and fuller agreement among experts, many Europeans favor suspension of the bomb tests that produce radioactive "fall-out" of greater or lesser malignancy. British statesmen find it more difficult to defend their nuclear bomb tests, which are only beginning.

Soviet bomb tests have led to disturbing atmospheric results in Japan. After measuring the radioactive fall-out this week, Japanese scientists warned of the danger and opinion grew in favor of a ban on all nuclear tests by all nations. An official Japanese protest to Moscow brought the reply that the Soviet Union was willing to suspend the tests if the Western powers agreed.

Thus a new effort was made, in keeping with years of Soviet propaganda, to put the blame on the West.

Western scientists were the first to develop the atomic bomb. A Western power, the United States, was the first to use it in war. The Western alliance, the North Atlantic Treaty Organization, has based its strategy on the assumption it will use nuclear weapons to meet an aggression. This decision was reasserted on Thursday by Field Marshal Viscount Montgomery, Deputy Commander in Chief of the Atlantic Forces in Europe.

Thus the Western powers are faced with a moral and strategic dilemma that troubles the consciences of many in Europe.

If the West foregoes use of nuclear weapons it will be hopelessly inferior on land to the Soviet Union in Europe and to Communist China in Asia. Both these powers have enormous armies that the West cannot match. The West is not even trying to match them but, as the recent British defense decision showed, is reducing armies in favor of nuclear weapons.

#### THE CONTAMINATION PROBLEM

But if the Western powers adhere to their policy of basing their defense on nuclear weapons in the hope of thus preventing war, they will risk playing into the hands of Soviet propaganda and causing the vast uncommitted Middle East and Far East to believe the West is responsible for a nuclear arms race.

At the same time the Western governments probably will face growing criticism from their own peoples, who fear not only a nuclear war but even the periodic nuclear bomb tests that contaminate the atmosphere that people breathe and the plants and animals they eat.

Western leaders have sought to limit armaments, including nuclear armaments, but have been unable to find any system of inspection to insure enforcement of any agreement. But it is urged in Europe that no such system is needed to drop bomb tests, since all such tests by the Soviet Union are immediately detected and announced in Washington.

\* \* \* \* \*

I would like to now share with you the concern which was felt throughout the country in July, 1956 by the testimony given by Lt. General James A. Gavin before the Senate subcommittee Investigation of Air Power. Lt. General Gavin was asked by Senator James F. Duff of Pennsylvania what, in his opinion, would be the effect of hydrogen bombs dropped on Russia.

Gavin replied that deaths would run into several hundred millions and, depending on which way the wind blew, would extend well into the Japanese, and perhaps the Philippine Island areas, or well back up into Western Europe.

About that time it became very obvious that the U.S. was seriously thinking and planning on such a war. The Russians and other nations got busy immediately and prepared shelters for their citizens.

That Gavin testimony brought forth this reply from Senator Mike Mansfield, of Montana: "The horrible conclusion given by Lt. General Gavin should make us realize that in this difficult era, with the world's scientists running riot, we are faced with an uneasy peace based on the idea of mutual terror."

Let me give you a little picture of terror which is planned by your Elite United Nations' Global police force--the intent is to drop a nuclear bomb on an area designated as a nuclear weapons center (supposedly hidden) in Iraq. You can watch the plan build daily as they chase about the barren desert sands looking for those elusive weapons placements which originally you were told "could not exist". The proof will be in the blasting and the follow-up with "...Saddam deserved it and did this to his own people"! NO, no, no--and if the world sits still for this heinous atrocity--you deserve that which befalls you! But I tell you now--THAT IS EXACTLY WHAT IS PLANNED FOR THE IMMEDIATE FUTURE. What is more painful and will not be allowed publicity world-wide

(unless caught somehow in the act), the bomb and bombers will be of the doing of the U.S. and delivered by the Israelis.

The reports we have shared with you readers are "old" for I need not speak of this day for even your non-news, controlled media have done many recent displays of toxic waste problems, etc., and we have written <u>JOURNAL</u> after <u>JOURNAL</u> pointing out the deadly escapades and plans. I felt you could look with better perspective back on 40-50 years of outlay of this deadly game at point. After reading them do you feel assured that you and your children are safe? Are you willing that it shall be tried out, knowing as you do, that the human race would be the guinea pig for the most dangerous experiment ever tried by man, AND HIS LAST ONE.

In reading these statements you probably noticed that the small experimental plant at Arco, Idaho, blew up. It could not even be *approached* for six months afterwards. Accidents happen to a big plant as well as small ones--i.e, Three Mile Island, Chernobyl, etc.--and many you NEVER HEAR ABOUT. The Yankee power plant will stay on line while all in charge KNOW IT IS DEADLY DEFICIENT IN ALL SAFETY AREAS.

Does it make you feel comfortable to think that a plant like the Hanford one, or the one near New York, or Detroit, might blow? How about Chicago? Los Angeles? San Francisco? You can wipe out the entire population of New York in one blast and contaminate the entire area for thousands of years--and that is "peaceful" use of nuclear power. What are you going to do with the "nonpeaceful" war fall-out? How many good, safe fall-out shelters do you have, America? The ignorant "innocents" of the world are without any kind of shelter system--"0", zilch, minus nothing! You are the planned expendables!

When you think of the world concern--if you think of the world concern--and care given to protect people from the two pounds of radium, which was all the world had 60 years ago, does it make you feel comfortable to know that over 8,000 tons of much more deadly uranium salts are produced each year from a present stock pile of 600,000 tons of uranium ore? Also, do you feel that it is quite safe to continue multiplying the effects you have read about for a hundred, two hundred, three or four hundred years, which you would have to do if radioactivity is to be the next world fuel? Do you realize that the government, back in 1957, was spending \$2,000,000,000 a year in atomic experiments and the amount has continued to rise astronomically--even massive sums which are hidden from you. Private industry is spending an equal amount, or more, for a dangerous and costly fuel when it could quite easily have a perfectly safe and inexpensive fuel in abundance for not more than \$100,000 and a little knowl-edge of the true nature of electricity. Actually, the technology is perfected--it is just hidden from you.

Before making your own decision whether or not you would vote in favor of radioactivity, read once more what Dr. Ralph Lapp said about the atom bomb tests distribution of strontium in the atmosphere. He said: "That, at the present rate of H. bomb tests, if continued and probably accelerated (above or below ground), by 1962 (it is now 1991) there would be enough radioactive strontium committed to the stratosphere to produce a 100% maximum permissible amount in every person on the planet." Do read his report with great mental concentration--or go back and reread it a couple of times--get it and read it in full several times. No other report gives much concern to what he calls "hold up". Again I say that your primary danger is in that stratosphere "hold up", and not in the "fall out". Dr. Lapp estimated that this "hold up" will fall at about 10% a year. If this is true the human race could not survive, at this point, beyond another decade at the rate you are building up that level in the stratosphere. It will start falling down at great magnitudes within the next year.

You don't have to be in agreement with Dr. Lapp concerning the 10% fall to earth, for the potential of that "hold up" is lower than the potential of a pressure ten miles up, and it is slowly expanding to still lower potential. The already too heavy "hold up" blankets your atmosphere layer and is eating into it, irrevocably, and thus thinning your life-giving and life-protecting blue envelope--oh, and you thought it was ozone depletion? "They" always give you something in the lies, do they not?

Education about the biological effects of nuclear radiation is an absolute prerequisite if the human race is to survive. Is it already too late? Look at your diseases--look at your cancer rates. You ask us for cures to "prove" who we are. We have nothing to prove to anyone--most especially Man of Earth Shan! Nothing! I do, however, suggest you start proving your intent to change, unto God, for you are at your midnight hour! We are come to bring OUR people home to safe, secure places--WHERE WILL YOU BE?

So what of a bridge between Man and God?

Well, the next step in the spiritual nature of man is God-Consciousness and cosmic awareness of the Light of the Divine Presence within every Man. Thousands--and then more thousands--are beginning to come into comprehension of that Inner Voice of one's own Mind coming from within each. The reason for that is because the human race is still in its intellectual infancy--but it is time to awaken and grow, lest Man dies in his infancy. The Dawn of Mind-Consciousness is too recent for all Men to THINK with their Mind.

<u>Man-in-the-mass still senses with his body</u>. <u>His desires are still dominated by</u> <u>his senses</u>. <u>His concepts are still sense-based</u>. He hurts himself with his own acts and calls it evil. He conceives a personal God with vengeful human emotions.

All that the Master Teacher told the world about the unity of God and Man, and the location of the Mind-Kingdom within every man, has no meaning except for the very few illumined ones and the very many who now so deeply desire that illumining.

Yes, chelas, <u>God-Consciousness</u> is slowly infiltrating the human race as Man knows more and more how to THINK with his Mind instead of his SENSING with his physical body. We, who know God in us, are desirous of illumining the path for you to find that Light of Inner Knowing--and when you do find it, you will then be able to say--as we have told you before--I and my Father are truly ONE--AND YOU WILL BE GIVEN INTO KNOWING ALL THINGS. But the bridge must be constructed. The last enemy that shall be destroyed is death, precious ones. The first and last great mystery of Creation is its Creator. Second to that mystery is the eternally asked question: "From where did we come to live and where do we go when we die?" This very simple question is quite easily answerable to the spiritually unfolded one who knows that which he cannot see. It has always been unanswerable to sense-dominated Man to whom the invisible universe where God dwells and rules, has no meaning, for he has no knowing beyond his sensing.

Do you think you have heard this before? Ah so--if you only "think" you have heard it before--THEN YOU HAD BETTER HEAR IT AGAIN UNTIL YOU KNOW!

There is a very definite bridge between God and Man. It is invisible in the vacuum of the zero stillness of God's Kingdom, but it has a visible link at every point where that bridge touches the shores of the action-universe of motion. That is something which every man can understand, for he can hold the symbol of that great reality in his hand in the form of a simple seed. He has never known, however, that in the imperishable seed within that perishable acorn, which he holds in his hand, is the whole answer to where the oak trees comes from to live, and where it goes when it dies.

Remember these words of Creator: "Know then that I alone live. I do not die, but out of Me comes both seeming life and death.

"Life is but the inward flow of My thinking's divided pulsing, and death is its outward flow.

"Know thou also that the divisions of My thinking are but equal halves of One; for T again say that I am One; and that all things which come from Me are One, divided to appear as two."

So let us relook with a bit of renewed perception. It will be well to simplify your thinking as to what Creation really is by putting it into simple words. Creation consists of the invisible universe of Mind, which the one you called Jesus called Heaven and Man calls space, and the visible universe of motion, which Man calls matter and substance.

There is a vast, vast difference as we have pointed out in hundreds of pages herein recently, however, in the meaning of the omnipresent "heaven", which was referred to as being "within" Man and within all things, and the meaning of "heaven" which Man holds up as being a place up above and apart from the earth where dead bodies and souls somehow ascend. Literature and art on your place are replete with symbolism which very vividly pictures that primitive concept. If you but enlarge your concept of the meaning of the word "heaven" to be that zero omnipresent vacuum, which is everywhere within and without all things, perhaps then the ages-long idea that you somehow go to "heaven" when you die becomes literally true. The difficult thing for Man to imagine, however, is the fact that he returns to "heaven" non-dimensionally, just as the dimensioned oak withdraws its huge dimensions into ultra-microscopic nothingness. That is Man's difficulty. If he would but realize that his body is but the projected image of an Idea, and that Idea has no measure, it would help him greatly to understand.

## NON-CONFORMITY

## THE LEE-YANG THEORY

In 1957 a most important piece of information came forth and we will herein look at it in detail. An experiment at Columbia University conducted upon theories promulgated by two young Chinese physicists--Professor T.D. Lee and Professor C.N. Yang--affords an excellent example of how easily the senses can be deceived into arriving at wrong conclusions. I think it will give clarity to this whole dissertation to outline even though we have touched on it prior to this. There are still some misconceptions but the discovery was revolutionary.

The essence of what made this discovery so revolutionary that it upset many fundamentally believed in facts of physics lies in the conclusion that all atoms spin in the direction of their motions (meaning the direction of their axis). Now I suggest that all of you ponderers of great scientific breakthroughs--give serious attention hereto.

What that means is that atoms or particles ejected from the north end of a "decaying" atom, such as cobalt, spin in a right-handed (clockwise) direction, and those which are emitted from the south end spin in a left-handed (anticlockwise) direction. This discovery led to the possibility that atoms acted like right and left-threaded screws, and that might eventually explain how matter is held together by some mysterious force within matter and solve the mystery of Creation.

This cannot be "briefly" explained because every single premise upon which the experiment was founded is wrongly assumed to be what it is believed to be. These wrong conceptions must first be clarified. We will then explain why cobalt has given an entirely different result than carbon would give, and that sodium would have given another effect of unbalanced ejections, while sodium chloride would give a balanced effect, and tantalum would have given another effect from the one produced by cobalt. In other words, when it is shown WHY cobalt emitted a large electron from one end and a small one from the other, and it can be clearly explained WHY every single unit atom and every paired one will give different, and predictable results, it will then be easy to comprehend why the conclusions arrived at by this experiment are invalid. To begin with, the experiment itself should not have been necessary. With a true knowledge of the Nature of electricity the right results would have been pre-dictable. To substantiate this statement we will predict other results from the same experiment with full knowledge that they will be as stated.

I am going to give you a very "earthly" explanation as is already presented upon your place and as we have already discussed. Do not become bored or irritated with me, for I warn you that <u>YOU HAVE OVERLOOKED TINY ELEMENTS</u> IN YOUR WORK WHICH HAS DEPRIVED YOU OF SUCCESS THUS

## FAR. MOVE CAREFULLY WITHIN PETITION FOR UNDERSTANDING AND YOU MAY WELL BE GIFTED WITH INSIGHT BEYOND THAT WHICH YOU CAN IMAGINE.

## STEP BY STEP EXPLANATION

Step No. 1. <u>A crystal</u> containing cobalt nuclei was placed in a magnetic field created by current flowing through a wire coil. It was already known that the cobalt nuclei would line up in the magnetic field.

Figure 69 indicates the wire coil, the direction of the electric current, and the position within it that the cobalt crystal is placed. The first wrongly assumed premise is that the wire coil creates a magnetic field. It creates an electric field, not a magnetic one. There are no magnetic fields in Nature. There are electric fields of curved motion, which are bounded by magnetic planes of non-motion and zero curvature. It must be borne in mind always that any expression of motion anywhere, is omnipresently repeated everywhere. The human consciousness has not quite acquired that sense of omnipresent repetition as yet but familiarity with it through TV and radar is developing it. This cobalt experiment is, therefore, not a local happening which is taking place in Columbia University and nowhere else. The electric field provides for it to happen there but the magnetic geometry of the zero universe provides for it happening universally by Nature's radar system of extensions from zero points of stillness, which become mirror planes of stillness invisibly formed in space to repeat the divisions and multiplications of motion in any part of the universe to every part of it.

The wire coil of the Columbia experiment has given no thought to the basic fact that electricity divides for the purpose of multiplying. Otherwise, the coil as made for its electric field, would be like the Fig. 70.



Section of the second s

FIG. 69. This is the way man divides stillness to produce motion.

FIG. 70. This is the way Nature divides stillness to produce motion.

I cite this fact for any experimental work done in a laboratory is valid only if it conforms with the electric current of Nature, which alone creates the universe. Any experiment, whatsoever, which DOES NOT fit within the principles of the electric current is invalid, for nothing outside of Nature can be valid.

Step No. 2. The cylindrical coil made for the creation of an electric field does not, in any respect, conform with the electric current, which divides the stillness of cathodes into moving pairs, for the purpose of multiplying the motion of those moving pairs to create the heat and compression necessary to simulate the IDEA, which concentrated electric Mind-thinking desires to give objective expression to. The Einstein Equation properly defined this principle by the words which say that fast motion multiplies electric potential, but that principle has not been applied to the mechanics of coil making. For that reason the loops of force which cylindrical coils create, are not focussed as they would be if they followed the crystalline shape of the balanced electric current as shown in Fig. 70.

If you will study the corner reflectors of radar, as shown in Figures 62-63, and their relation to ring projections from inert gases, and observe their spiral formation, as shown in Fig. 64, you will better comprehend the wave, which controls the construction of all matter.

## SUMMARY OF STEPS ONE AND TWO

The two essentials omitted for the perfect carrying out of this experiment, up to this point, are 1-failure to conform to the working principles of the electric current, and -2--failure to conform to the omnipresence of Nature by making electrical fields to conform with the mathematics of dividing and multiplying pressures.

Step No. 3. (I again quote from the original source of the announcement): "The test was based on the previously proven fact that the nucleus of the atom `decays'. In the process it emits one electron and one electrino (an uncharged particle even smaller than an electron)."

It was not necessary to prove that cobalt "decays". To decay means to disintegrate, depolarize, discharge and die. All matter does that, whether atom or man. This experiment, however, did not assist in the decay process, for it lined up the gravity shaft of cobalt with the gravity shaft of the electric field. That is a process of polarization, which divides any one electrical condition into pairs. The process of decay is an opposite effect. It ejects rings from equators, as clearly shown in Saturn--Fig. 4--and in Jupiter, Fig. 3. (See Page 40 & 41.)

Also the statement that uncharged particles are ejected from one end is not true to Nature (good persons--some of you already picked up this little deficiency in the experiment--I jest not, I am very proud of you who are coming into recognition of KNOWING). There are no "uncharged" particles in Nature. Wherever there is matter there is motion. Motion is an electric effect, which charges all matter.



Matter begins by division of stillness in the inert gases and its projection by twoway motion into pairs of octave wave tones, which we call elements. The principle of projection is the same that man uses in projecting the concept of his idea into the moving form of the idea. It is the dual radar principle of Nature. Reduced to its ultimate simplicity, Nature is a series of echoes.



The cube projector, shown in Fig. 62, is repeated in the cube receiver, shown herein. Motion which has been divided into pairs and thrown out into space by the projector, is multiplied in the vortices of the receiver, which corresponds to the corner reflectors of radar. Forms and sounds which are born in space are thus echoged back to space.



Every form of matter which is projected into space has its anti-matter image within space, which ultimately voids it and reborns it. Anti-matter concepts have their own balancing relation to their material images in space geometry.

Step No. 4. According to parity, as they spun half of them should have emitted their electrons from the "north" end of the magnetic field and the other half toward the "south". Actually far more electrons came out of the "south" end of the nuclei. By repeating the test under varying conditions, it was verified that cobalt nuclei emit electrons from one particular end. This shows that one end of the nucleus is different from the other, something never known before.

Let us just analyze these statements a minute to see if there is right reasoning in them in accordance with the electric current. In the diagram given with the description of the experiment, large particles, labelled electrons, are being ejected from the south pole of the cobalt atom and small ones called electrinos, are being ejected from the north end. Fig. 69 is an interpretation of the diagram just mentioned, excepting that we are using only one particle. The other diagram shows three cobalt particles, oval shaped, and their respective small and large ejected particles. The names of these particles is of no import here, but the fact that one end of cobalt atoms ejects big particles, and the other ejects small particles, is most important. Also, the statement that it was never known before that one end of an atom is different from the other end is also important for it is NOT TRUE. It has been known as long as electricity has been known that each end of a polarized body is different, and all matter is polarized. Each end of a balanced atom-which means equally paired-will emit the same sized particles from each end, because polarized, or divided pairs, are male and temale and belong to the red and blue sides of the spectrum. The important fact that has been OVERLOOKED IS THE FACT THAT AN UNBALANCED PARTICLE OF MATTER CANNOT EMIT EQUAL POTENTIALS FROM BOTH ENDS !

To demonstrate this fact put a cobalt, or steel needle in the position given to the cobalt particle. You will see that both ends are different, and are not interchangeable, unless repolarized in reverse. You might better comprehend this if you lower two needles toward the center of the coil. You will find one reaching out for the north and the other reaching out for the south. Now try again with a steel or cobalt rod as long as the field. By placing it in the conical coil shown in Fig. 70, you will now see that not only are both ends different, but also the middle is different. Both ends are polarized gravity centers for high electric potential, and the middle gives no evidence of gravity, for the electric potential is zero in the middle. (In an unbalanced metal, like cobalt, the middle is a little off-center.) The reason for that is that the middle is the cathode dividing point, and the ends are anodes, which unite as one. In other words, the reason both ends are different is because one end is red-or male end--and the other is blue-or female end. Cobalt is preponderantly blue, or female. The red end of the spectrum is weak in it. Under such conditions of unbalance the polarization process could not possibly eject equal potentials.

To better understand this take the cobalt out entirely. Only the zero of equilibrium is now there. Now <u>turn on the current and you immediately divide that</u> equilibrium, <u>balanced zero into four opposite and equal pairs</u>, all of which units are in perfect balance with their mates. The cathode is also in the exact middle instead of being off-center. That is the way Nature creates atoms. Cobalt is an unbalanced unit of a pair. It cannot be divided into equal pairs when used as a cathode.

Now, if we place a piece of the metal cobalt between two coils like the one in Fig. 70, the middle will become the plane of highest potential and its center will "attract" a needle if held toward any point of its circumference. If cobalt is thus placed in the anode position, instead of in the cathode, there will be no ejection of electrons and neutrinos from its polar ends. Instead of that, there will be ring ejections from the equatorial plane of maximum high potential, maximum heat and maximum density. We now have the decay process instead of the polarization process.

<u>Step No. 5.</u> One should now be able to fully comprehend that if one attempts to divide an unbalanced element like cobalt, by polarizing it, one will obtain an unbalanced result. Carbon, for example, is a balanced dual element. It is true cube and is white, while cobalt is a distorted cube and is blue. The same experiment tried with carbon, or sodium-chloride, or potassium-bromide, would give balanced results. The ejections from both ends would be the same. If, on

the contrary, sodium-iodide, or potassium-chloride is used the results would be as unbalanced as these latter pairs are <u>unbalanced</u>. Each of these <u>pairs crystallize</u> in <u>distorted cubes</u> while the evenly <u>mated pairs crystallize</u> in true cubes, like carbon.

The familiar bar magnet, created by the electric current, will serve as a clarifying example of balance in the elements, which are all created in pairs, but are as often united as unbalanced pairs as balanced ones.

Step No. 6. In further statements made in the description of the experiment, it is claimed that the discovery of different ends to atomic particles, and emissions of other particles from opposite ends, gives to each emitted particle "a spin in the direction of its motion". As the motion of these ejected particles is claimed to be in opposite directions, the result of the discovery has "proved" that motion is two-way "which means right-handed and left-handed."

TO EXPLAIN TO YOU HOW UTTERLY IMPOSSIBLE IT IS FOR THIS TO TAKE PLACE IN NATURE, AND AGAIN TO SHOW HOW EASILY THE SENSES CAN BE PERSUADED TO BELIEVE AS FACTS THE VERY OP-POSITE OF WHAT IS FACTUAL, WE HAVE TO GO BACK TO THE UT-TER SIMPLICITY OF THE FUNDAMENTALS OF OUR UNIVERSE AND LEAD UP TO A COMPREHENSION OF SUCH AN IMPOSSIBILITY. We will do this as simply and briefly as possible. In other words we will return to the electric current and compare this experiment to just one cycle of it. We, therefore, first postulate the basic fact that, in all this universe, there is only one direction to motion, but that one direction produces two opposite series of effects.

Rain falls to the ground and rises as a vapor. That seems to be two directions. A cyclone is anti-clockwise in the Northern Hemisphere and clockwise in the Southern Hemisphere. Right-handedness and left-handedness, up and down, in and out, hot and cold, life and death, expansion and contraction, and a hundred other opposite pairs of effects are produced by one direction of motion in this pulsing universe. If we had to clarify this idea for a teenaged boy we would tell him to take a pencil and a large piece of paper, then begin drawing a closing spiral, clockwise, starting slowly from way out into space, and increasing his speed continually until he got way out into blank space again. We would tell him to keep on repeating that operation over and over again, without changing direction.

Let us now look at this drawing, Fig. 71. Two effects have been produced in this opening-closing universe of compression-expansion--life-death--and inbreathing-outbreathing sequences. Density has been created in the direction of the center and potential has lowered in the direction of the circumferences. So, also, has heat, and speed, and high potential been created at the center and their opposites out in space. Fig. 71 is the demonstration of this fact as drawn by a child for simple understanding.

Fig. 72 demonstrates this one direction for a two-effect principle in small scale matter. Figures 73 and 74 demonstrate the same principle in large scale matter. Nature does not have one law for atomic scale, and another for stellar scale.

She has only one way of constructing matter, and that is fully covered in the electric current and the octave wave.

<u>Step No. 7.</u> There is no right-handedness nor left-handedness in Nature, but its every effect causes the ILLUSION of right-handedness and left-handedness. That illusion belongs to the senses, therefore, and not to Nature. Your senses have become so fixedly accustomed to dual direction that it is difficult to explain it away, for the human understanding of omnipresent Oneness has not sufficiently unfolded as yet to make it easily comprehensible. We will endeavor to do so, however, by the use of child-primer simplicity.

As a first step we again remind you that Nature creates everything in pairs, and that all pairs unite to form masses. The hemispheres of a sun are united pairs, for example. Try, therefore, as a first mental exercise, to image the uniting of two hemispheres of the sun, which are spinning in opposite directions. The fact that you, yourself, are right-handed and left-handed, adds to the difficulty of the subtle thing which we must explain about our universe, which has led these observers to form such conclusions. What we mean by this is that <u>Nature is bilateral</u>. Everything which is created is equally extended in pairs from a cathode dividing equator. The equator acts as though it were a mirror. It reflects each extended unit as two hemispheres of a sphere, which is also divided by an equator.

Dharma, I had hoped to finish this tonight but it is so late and I have had you at this keyboard for over ten hours--I can ask no more of you today. I am in great appreciation, chela. Be at peace, for we shall get it done. When we return we shall take up with the same consideration but a second mental exercise considering your own body in light of the above. Good evening, precious ones. May the Light ever surround you in Peace and Life.

TAM GERMAIN



FIG. 71. Nature's one direction of motion produces her two opposite effects.



 $-{\rm Ere}/72$  . This drawing exemplates the electric effect of two seemingly opposite directions and opposite pressures from one direction of motion, as demonstrated in Fig. 71.



FIG. 73. This same principle, as demonstrated in Figs 71-72 is also remonstrated by the atomic and nebular systems, which form where two anodes are mined by collision. This figure demonstrates the one way of motion, which produces both effects of life and death in Nature.



FIG. 74. A familiar spiral nebula in the heavens, seen in the direction of its poles instead of the direction of its equator, as in Fig. 67. It has always been believed that two directions of motion have been responsible for this effect.

CHAPTER 10

**REC #2 GERMAIN** 

FRIDAY, JULY 5, 1991 8:14 A.M. YEAR 4, DAY 323

### FRIDAY, JULY 5, 1991

Germain to continue:

Please allow us to move directly into our subject exactly where we left it last night for I want no other thoughts inserted. We were in the middle of an experiment and I wish to continue while the thought is orderly.

We were to the second mental exercise and there is where we will pick up this work.

#### SECOND MENTAL EXERCISE

As a second mental exercise consider your own body in this light. The equator of your body is a plane extending through it between your eyes, which divides your body into right-hand and left-hand units of pairs. During the millions of years of your unfolding, your senses have translated unitary facts as dual effects. Let us demonstrate this idea. Imagine that you can reach out with your right hand and grasp the right-hand end of the earth's pole of rotation. With your left hand you reach out and grasp the left end of that pole. If you stand there, as rigidly as steel, the equator of the planet and the equator of your body are in the same plane. This being true, one of your eyes is on the right side of the equator and the other is on the left. In this position both of your eyes see only the one effect of the planet's spinning in the same direction. Now bend your body so that both of your eyes can see what the right side of the planet is doing. You now see a clockwise direction to the spinning of the planet. Now bend your body so that both of your eyes can see what the left side is doing. You now see an anti-clockwise spinning. In other words, you see opposite directions of motion where there is but one direction.

We will again demonstrate this by having you hold a pencil in each hand in such a manner that both touch the spinning planet at points to the right and to the left of its equator. As the earth spins you move both pencils slowly toward the stillness of the pole of rotation. If it were now possible to remove these two pencilings from the planet and lay them flat before you, you would again see them as oppositely directioned, right-hand and left-hand, clockwise and anticlockwise spirals, as shown in Fig. 66. Your senses have told you that, because your senses, and your body, are dual. Mind-knowing is not divided, however, so if you unite that divided pair of drawings you will see that both opposite directions are one. If you fold Fig. 66 at the horizontal line, you would find that both opposite spirals follow the same direction.



FIG. 66. Exemplifying the perpetual interrelationship of matter and anti-matter as shown in Fig. 65, which gives and regives to each other for perpetual sequences of rebirths into each other. The outstanding characteristic feature of Nature is repetition. Life and death are other names for it. Remeanation is still another name for it.



FIG. 75. A right-hand and left-hand spin in the direction of the oppositely projected particles, would require two extra shafts of gravity, at 90 degree angles from the gravity shaft of polarity. This is a violation of <u>Nature's gyroscopic principle</u>.

This is exactly what the Lee-Yang experimenters have done. Their coil of motion, which caused the division, turns but one way, just as the sphere which you have held between your hands, turns but one way. <u>The particles have been</u> ejected from that coil in an angle of 90 degrees from their plane of motion, yet it is now held that these particles turn right-handed from one end to turn in the direction of its motion, and particles ejected from the other end turn left-handed for the same reason. *This creates the utterly impossible condition of giving matter two shafts of gravity, which are at right angles with each other*, as shown in Fig. 75.

Nowhere in Nature is there a precedent for projected masses spinning in the direction of their motion. A bullet from a rifle spins around its axis of direction. Rifle barrels are spirally grooved to accentuate this spin. Even if bullets are spherical, like cannon balls, they would still spin around their axis of direction, for their equators must necessarily be at an angle of 90 degrees from their gravity shafts, and no mass in Nature spins in any other direction than that of its equator.

It is a commonly known fact by every physicist and laboratory worker that electricity runs only in the direction of the turnings in a solenoid coil. Every such worker is also perfectly familiar with the effect of polarization which evidences its effect at 90 degrees from the direction-and plane-of the electric current. These two seeming directions, and effects, are confusing to him for the idea of polarization, as an extension of stillness, has not yet entered his thinking. It is new thinking but it must some day be realized that a three dimensional universe is only an illusion caused by polarization, and that there is no motion, whatsoever, in the direction of gravity shafts, which contribute to the three-dimensional illusion. This leads us to the final step.

<u>Step No. 8</u> is the last of the wrongly assumed premises which we must explain away. This last premise states, in essence, that as matter spins in the direction of its motion, and as there are two opposite directions of motion in which particles are projected from opposite cobalt ends, it is henceforth to be a law that : "Particles will now be referred to as `right-handed' or `left-handed' contrary to what the principle of parity held."???

This is again difficult to explain in this early stage of Mind-unfolding. To attempt to explain it requires combating what your senses sense, and what your Mind KNOWS. Again we attempt it by child primer simplicity. This is not to insult you--it IS hard to override those physical senses.

The fallacy of this entire statement lies in the belief that the two opposite directions, which the projected particles are following, are directions of motion. Herein lies the cause of the misconception, for which pure illusion of motion is accountable. These two opposite directions in which the cobalt particles have been projected are not the direction of motion, they are points or shafts within the stillness of the zero universe which have become identifiable by motion. The one direction of motion is that of rings which encircle that projected direction within stillness in planes of ninety degrees from it.

The human Mind has not quite progressed to that point where it can separate illusion from its cause, and our difficulty in clarifying the illusion is due to the aeons in which you have seen boats, planes, clouds, people and countless other expressions of energy move from place to place within the omnipresence of gravity to simulate that energy, which they are but expressing. Your senses have accustomed you to believe that the direction of motion is the direction in which you see an object change its position. Your KNOWING Mind, however, attributes that seeming change of position to gravity division of omnipresent Oneness, and attributes its cause to the direction of motion, which spins around this direction at an angle of ninety degrees from it. To clarify this new thinking we shall go back to *the electric wave within which all of the secrets of Creation are hidden*. Bear in Mind that the electric wave is the divider of ONE into four pairs which constitute ONE. As we explain this thought, turn back to figures 17 to 29--to give objectivity to them.





This drawing shows the method and process of interchange between the zero universe of Mind and the multiple universe of motion. <u>Study all other drawings</u> and ulting them to these two. The more your comprehend them the more your will device instehend that hig is but tast motion and that death is a cessation of motivar



A study of Fig. 18 together with the bar magnet diagrams and other polarity diagrams shown in Figs. 11 to 16 will prepare you for a better understanding of the nature of electricity and the electric current.



This shows how the heartbeat piston operates between the vacuity of the Creator's Magnetic Light universe of Mind-energy and the potential of the electrically pressured universe to create cycles of two way motion. <u>The more you can compre-</u> hend the secret of God's Mind control over this Greation, which is this universal body, the more you will be able to control your body, for you will then know that God's Mind and yours are ONE.





#### FIG. 19.

FIG. 19 illustrates the entire process of creating—and recreating matter. The Father-Mother electrically divides His ONENESS into pairs of father and mother bodies. The electrical strain of separation is equalled by an opposite strain, or tension, of desire for ONENESS. Unity thus attained is repeated in similar electrically dividing and uniting pulsations. forever.

#### ANOTHER WAY OF STATING THE SAME THING.

God, the Creator, divides His one white Light by extending its ONENESS into electrical tensions of vibrating red and blue pairs. The tensions of this electrical division are equalled by a desire for unity, which is attained at the point of white incandescence in matter. Unity thus attained is repeated forever by the same dividing, uniting process of electrical action-reaction pulsations. Reproduction cannot take place until the red and the blue lights of sex-divided motion are voided in the still White Light of the Creator. Man alone, of all Creation, ever knows of his Omniscience.



The nine zeros which bound the three projection mirrors to cause the illusion of a three dimensional universe.





tion is thrown.

Fig. 26. The six mirrors which form the screen of space upon which the cosmic drama of Crea-



Fig. 28

Every polarized action-reaction counts up to nine-never morenever less. The wave octave formula for the elements of matter and the color spectrum is nine-being eight, centered by zero, as follows:

Fic. 27. The whole wave-field projection machine of nine Magnetic mirrors, which create the illusion of form and motion in this zero universe of electrically recorded Mind-imagining.



Nature creates sex-conditioned bodies by polarizing an equilibrium condition. Nature destroys bodies by depolarizing them. Nature repeats bodies through interchange between their opposite conditions. All bodies are eternally repeated.
Now vision the universe as all cathode--which means all zero--as visualized in Fig. 6. All motion begins at a cathode point in space, which is all cathode. It cannot move out of that omnipresent position, however, without dividing its seeming energy into four radar-acting pairs in the wave, which it is beginning to construct, nor can it do so without measuring out its own desire-energy into countless billions of other cathodes throughout all omnipresence.



#### CAUSE

Fig. 6 symbolizes the uncreated universe, the zero vacuum universe of rest, from which the objective electric universe of motion emerges to manifest eternal life by simulating it in cycles of motion. This is God's omnipresent universe of Idea, and Desire for the expression of Idea, by moving forms which symbolize Idea. This is the universe of The Imaginer Who builds forms in the image of His imagining for giving and regiving in cyclic intervals, which unknowing man calls life and death.

This is the omniscient universe of eternal MIND-QUALITIES from which transient electric QUALITIES emerge to simulate the qualities of Mind-Magnetic Light-Knowledge-Idea-Energy-Life-Soul-Love-Truth-Beauty-Rhythm-Balance-Law-Silence-Rest and Stillness.

This is the abiding place of eternal MAN who is ONE with GOD. It is God's kingdom of heaven within man, which the Nazarene bade men to seek.

At this point turn back to the two cyclone drawings, figures 51 and 52. You will see there <u>a zero</u> which <u>centers</u> the cathode of that hurricane, which we call the eye. There is no object there, such as a mouse, or man, or thousand ton boat, or a crystal of cobalt, but there could be. it would make no difference as long as they are still and have not expressed a desire to move the whole universe, which <u>must automatically move when they move</u>. <u>Electricity divides</u> stillness. <u>Motion then begins</u>, but not until. It seems platitudinous for me to say that when we start a boat from that point, or a bullet, that neither of them are moving in the direction that your senses tell you they are moving, and it seems quite ridiculous to go beyond that and say that neither of them are moving at all in any direction, yet it is necessary to utterly change your knowing from what your senses tell you in this respect if you desire to comprehend the illusions of your three-dimensional mirrored universe and its very deceptive

illusions of your three-dimensional mirrored universe and its very deceptive ways.



The polarizing principle. This diagram represents the <u>multiplication</u> of power by the <u>multiplication</u> of <u>motion</u>. Electricity "creates" gravity in this <u>manner</u>.



Electric compression principles. Analysis of the relation of stillness to motion, and of energy to the expression of energy.

Note what your senses tell you as you look at the spoked wheels of an automobile, especially as projected on the motion picture screen--it appears to your senses that the wheels of a forward moving vehicle are turning backwards. You cannot trust what your senses tell you.

When your senses tell you that a speeding bullet is not a direction of motion, it is difficult to think of it as stillness which is centering fast moving motion. It might help to remold your concept by imagining a motionless, floating cloud which changes its position because of a wind. The direction of motion is not in the cloud. It is in the spiralling of the wind. The cloud is still in the same position in relation to gravity even though its position has been changed by motion, which is outside of itself, for it is still floating at rest. Even the slightest change in its position of stillness causes a spiral motion to encircle it and spin around it at an angle of 90 degrees from its gravity shaft, which extends from the earth. It may be quite an effort to comprehend that stillness cannot change, but can seem to. When you have fully grasped this fact, however, much that is complex will become simple. If these sincere young physicists had that Mindawareness they would not have reasoned as they did in relation to an experiment, which they have mistaken to be something other than the simple, basic polarization process of Nature which extends the two-dimensional thoughtring universe into a three-dimensional, dual action universe.

Nor would they have come to the conclusion stated by them had they observed the majestic example in the heavens of all the planets, suns, spiral nebulae and galaxies which, without exception, turn in planes which parallel their equators, and always at 90 degree angles from their polar shafts.

Every planet and sun in the heavens spins in the same direction that a speeding bullet spins. That direction is 90 degrees from the direction of the speeding bullet, which is always the eye of the cyclone its motion is producing.

Their particles are similar to speeding bullets, or equators of planets and suns which always spin in spiral rings around their gravity shafts, and never in the direction shown in their explanatory drawings.

To aid in making such new thinking clear we will endeavor to express our thoughts by using the language of diagrams and familiar examples, which we will confine within one cycle of the electric current in principle. In this confining our description of this new thinking within the demonstrable effects within one cycle of the electric current we sincerely hope that future thinking and reasoning will have a better basis upon which to form conclusions, which are not affected by the illusions of motion, that have for so long, and so disastrously, affected human reasoning.

There is, in this universe, an underlying principle which has always eluded mankind. If we try to put this principle into words they would read as follows: *Every effect of motion is voided as it occurs, is repeated as it is voided, and is recorded as it is repeated.* Your *senses* deceive you in this respect. They see the pendulum swing one way, but the Mind knows that an equal force simultaneously swings the invisible one the other way. That which is divided on one side of the cathode is equally divided on the other side. Likewise, that which is multiplied as it approaches the anode on the red side multiplies equally on the other side. Even time has its backward flow to make time stand still on its zero mark. The pendulum well illustrates this duality in Nature, which makes so many things seem to be other than what they are and to be moving when their moving is voided by an opposite moving. Nature is continually moving to the senses but within Mind-knowing it stands perfectly still as but a thought-picture of Idea. See Fig. 76.



You can readily see why it is difficult to find adequate words to explain a so seemingly universal paradox, and why we must use another language than words. This we shall do step by step very briefly--but sufficient to explain why both ends of the cobalt atom in the experiment emit different sized particles around a center.

1. We must know why this universe is bilateral instead of radial. This means that we should know why mass spins upon a shaft instead of around a center. This also means that we should know why the inward explosion, which basically causes motion in this zero universe, is a centripetal spiral, and why it is returned by radar to the zero of its source as a centrifugal spiral. If we first grasp this one idea we will then know why electricity explodes from the inside outward to divide stillness into pairs of spinning rings, and we shall also know why electricity compresses inward from the outside to form solids. Let this be our first lesson in CAUSE.

If you should cause an explosion in the very center of a perfectly spherical room you would form spherical layers of increasingly dense pressures with maximum density at the surface of the sphere. The center of the sphere would be maximum in vacuity. The explosion would be symmetrically radial. The reaction to that explosion would also be its reverse. The reflections which would return by radar from the spherical walls of that room would collide at its very center. Compression would then be exerted from the outside and density would increase in the direction of the center. Nature does not work that way, however Nature causes her explosions to take place as though they were confined within the flat walls of a room of four or many walls of such shapes as we see in crystals. If you caused such an explosion in your six sided room the outward expansion would no longer be even. It would not even be spherical because of the four corners, which would have to be filled. The outward explosion could no longer produce straight radial lines, which would reflect back in straight radial lines. Every radial line would have to curve in the direction of its corners, and as they approached those corners their curvature would twist and increase in speed as they approached the corners. In a sphere all radial lines are equal, but in a cube the diagonals are longer than the diameters. This fact accounts for the curvature, the spin and the shaft. It also accounts for the disappearance of all curvature.

If you study earlier given figures for better comprehension of this effect, then realize that Nature does not allow any explosion anywhere without repeating it all over her universe, you will soon become familiar with her simple processes. The eight explosions shown in Fig. 77 are in cube relation to explosive charges placed out in open space in a cubic relation to each other. If they expanded into spheres, such as you see in Fig. 78 there would be a lot of empty space between them which Nature does not allow, so they continue to expand until they fill all space. Curvature then disappears and so, also, does motion-as shown in Fig. 79. Every point on every face of those resultant cubes is zero in potential and motion, for they are planes of magnetic Light. They are also mirrors which reverse all direction of motion which impact against them to extend them into the next wave-field and radar them back to their point of beginning. When the world of science realizes that radar and polarization are one and the same effect it will greatly advance its mechanics, for it is by this principle that any

happening anywhere in the universe happens everywhere. This principle is the whole basis of the telephone, radio, television, etc.



The outward pressures of radiation and centrifugal force lose all spherical form and curvature by disappearance into the six planes of zero curvature, which bound all cubic wave-fields.

I have briefly described this principle which makes polarization and a bilateral universe not only possible but imperative. Likewise, it makes extension imperative. Now we shall apply this principle to very familiar simple effects.

2. Man makes a big gun by making a long tube which he seals at one end and places an explosive there. He even puts a twist in the bore of the gun to accelerate the spin of motion around the still shaft which centers that tube. That motionless explosive occupies one still position in this zero universe until he ignites it. What then happens? A two directional explosion takes place. *The recoil is equal to the discharge*, so he might just as well have left both ends of the gun open as far as the effect of polarization is concerned. The recoil was the opposite direction of polarity, as that explosion began its division of stillness throughout the entire universe, at the speed of 186,400 miles per second.

Let us analyze what has happened. The center of the explosion is an unchangeable point of stillness in the Magnetic Light of Creation, but we will call it gravity because we are seemingly dividing it into a shaft. Because of the tube the explosion cannot expand symmetrically and radially from the point in space which it occupied while still, for it is not enclosed in a sphere. It is enclosed in a shaft. Its spinnings encircle the walls of the tube at ninety degrees to the still shaft, which is developed because the explosion can no longer be centered as one point in space, and, therefore, have but one center of gravity instead of many. It becomes a series of points in space which form a shaft. If you can now comprehend that if the explosion within that tube is obliged to change position and move its centering point of stillness, the projectile which moves is, likewise, a sequence of points of stillness. You cannot see a projectile being ejected from the other end, but its equivalent is in that recoil.

Can you not see that this same thing applies to an airplane? The plane moves for the same reason. An explosive is placed at one end of a tube, which is made up of an engine and a propeller. The engine is sealed at one end because there is no opposing propeller there. If equal propellers occupied both ends of the engine the plane would not move. Spinning rings then move around a center, instead of an extended shaft of gravity, however, caused by the motion of the propellers. The plane itself would then occupy a position of stillness. Can you not see that it would always occupy a position of stillness. Can where it seemingly moved? And can you not see that the spinning rings are the cause of that seeming motion? And can you not further see that the direction of motion is not in the projectile, or the plane, or of gravity, but solely in the diyided pressures which cause that spinning motion?

3. Now let us take the plane and the projectile out of the tubes, which they centered. We refer you to the two cyclone diagrams again--Figures 51 and 52. (See page 134-35) There is nothing there, whatsoever, which is materially objective at their center. There is only the stillness which we call the eye. There is but an explosion of hot air there, which causes expansion from the inside outward where cold air compresses if from the outside to inner density. Nature has made her two-way "gun" that way-a measure of desire-energy is at its center. The eye is a shaft of gravity. Gravity is omnipresent. What difference whether there is a plane, or bullet there, or not? If there is a plane there, its changed position in one direction is voided by an equal change in the opposite polarity direction.

4. If we go into the machine shop we will see a long shaft with many wheels upon it. They are all turning in the direction of motion yet they are not changing their positions. They perform as much work, or can do as much damage, as the plane or bullet, without changing their gravity position. Which is it, then, which demonstrates power? Is it the direction of motion around stillness, or is it the shifting point of stillness?

5. We now go into the laboratory. The physicist makes a two-way gun, which he calls <u>a coil</u>. He does not seal one end of it for he cannot. His electric current goes both ways and spins around its extending shaft in equality of potential. In this way he divides gravity and extends it in such a manner that both of each pair of mates, thus divided, are equal.

We shall now apply this principle to the Lee-Yang experiment. In the coil, above described, there is no material body occupying the cathode position as there is when a plane, or bullet, starts to move. In the Lee-Yang experiment a material body is placed there to be polarized. Cobalt is not a balanced, mated pair, like carbon, however. It is but one of a pair, although it is very close to the balanced amplitude point of its wave. When the current is turned on the resultant effect is as though a steel rod was inserted in the shaft of the coil, which is a half inch in diameter at one end and a quarter of an inch at the other end. Every physicist knows that both ends would then be different, for the equator of the rod would not be in the middle. It would be nearer the small end. The rod would not pick up an equal weight at its opposite ends, for the electric potential which does the lifting, would be unequal. The small end would pick up a greater weight, for its rings would be smaller and spin faster.

Another example will help clarify this one. The gun maker builds a two-way gun but does not seal either end. If the tube is of the same dimension from one end to the other, the projectiles ejected from both ends could be the same size, but if he made one end larger than the other the projectiles ejected from one end would be smaller than those ejected from the other end. For this reason we say that carbon, sodium-chloride, or potassium-bromide would give equal projections at each end, for they are mated pairs, whereas sodium or potassium alone would give as unequal results as unequally mated pairs, and sodium-bromide, or potassium-iodide would give as unequal results in such an experiment as their cube crystals are distorted, and for the same reason.

### **CONCLUSION**

As my last words in concluding this explanation of the experiment in point, and in trying to explain the universe as a whole, we will use a picture which should make it more clear even to the unimaginative.

The universe is made up entirely of electric thought-waves. Thought-waves are nature's two-way guns, which are loaded with the energy of Mind-desire to give out from its centering Self to all the universe. That is the explosive which motivates the universe. That is what makes Creation appear and disappear. If you can imagine these two-way spiral guns, which are shaped like the spirals shown all through this book, and if you can imagine them placed muzzle to muzzle all through the universe, you have one part of the picture clearly in Mind. If you also imagine these two-way spiral guns to be of both atomic and stellar dimensions, you will clarify the picture somewhat. The only thing now to complete the picture is in <u>discharging all</u> of these cosmic guns right into each other's muzzles so that the explosive, which is projected, collides as hot bodies, which are frozen into solids as they are ejected from the muzzles of those polarizing guns. That is the way that paired units become mated systems, which complete the purposefulness of the universe by regiving to the Creator all that the Creator had given to them.

Thus it is that The God of Love manifests love to the fathers and mothers of Creation, who, in turn, manifest love by their equal givings and regivings of each to each other as united pairs, and they, in turn, regive of love to their Creator to become One with Him.

Thus it is that matter is created by the process of heating it by fast motion. Thus it is, also, that the cold of space freezes it to imprison it until it is enabled to generate enough heat for its liberation. This fact is not known by man. He BELIEVES that matter is held together from the inside. Because of this belief he does not know that matter is a powder keg which desires to blow up the universe. I KNOW THAT MAN WILL DESIST FROM HELPING MATTER TO BLOW UP THE UNIVERSE WHEN HE IS MADE AWARE OF THE NATURE OF MATTER AS IT IS, INSTEAD OF THE WAY HE "THINKS" IT IS. THE SAD PART IS THAT MAN MOST OFTEN REFUSES TO AL-LOW HIMSELF TO BECOME "AWARE". As long as Man continues in his foolish adherence and bowing to the incorrect projections simply because they are foisted off on him by some idiot or another-he will continue just as he is and take the whole planet with him in his stupidity. Define these terms? Stupid-is one who continues to deny, refuse and remain egotistically uninformed. Ignorani-one who simply has not had ability to come into knowledge. Wise-one who realizes his ignorance and learns KNOWLEDGE.

In the long-run what means it to the planet or mankind? It means that if Man does not come into KNOWING and acting accordingly, within the laws of God and Creation--there is the piper to be paid in completion of the cycle.

We are here and available to take God's children off your orb and into safety within the places prepared for you. Those who continue on the path as laid forth will remain on the planet and move right through the cycles as laid forth for you from the onset of experience. For that which is CAUSE will always produce its proper EFFECT and what you do on your planet is its sure demise as a manifested place for life-forms to experience. So be it. God doesn't HAVE TO DO SOMETHING, either--He of all, does not have to do a thing! You made your bed and if you like to wallow with radioactivity killing you, in that bed, along with all the other broken laws, so be it--who are we to alter your chosen path? I can guarantee you that Mother Nature will take care of her own needs and she has all the time in the universe to do so--she will shake you off like fleas from the pooch. Nature IS and she is neither kind nor hateful--she will do that which is balanced within the Laws of the Creation and you will have nary a word to say about it which will carry one iota of impact. And, brothers, God WILL LET YOU DESTROY YOURSELVES--THIS IS HIS PROMISE: HE WOULD SEND THE WORD OF TRUTH UNTO YOU AND YOU WILL DO WITH IT THAT WHICH YOU WILL--AND WE WILL RE-MOVE, UNTO HIS PLACES, THOSE WHO CHOOSE HIS WAY! NO

## MORE AND NO LESS-IT IS UP TO YOU, WORLD.

Your devoted brothers have come to help you--THEY DO NOT HAVE TO REMAIN, NOR DO THEY HAVE TO DO A THING. THEY CAN LEAVE YOU AND RETURN TO THEIR OWN LOCATIONS FOR THEIR LESSONS ARE TO OBSERVE THAT WHICH MAN DOES ON A PLANET WHEN INFECTED BY EVIL. OH, YOU ARE GIVING MANY LESSONS TO YOUR BROTHERS FROM THE COSMOS! THEY DON'T HAVE TO DO ANYTHING FOR YOU--AND MOST OF THEM WILL TIRE OF YOUR STUPID ACTIONS AND LEAVE YOU TO YOUR CHOSEN FATE. Of course we know that you know not that which you REALLY CHOOSE--but you see, with the denial of this word comes the deliberate refusal to KNOW and that, dear ones, is the catch!

And what of all of you who say, "...but I can't leave Uncle Harry..."? I say can't you? It is Uncle Harry's decision to deny your offer of truth--why would you stay and keep the foolish man company? If Uncle Harry loves and respects YOU so little as to insult you in that which you believe and KNOW to be Truth--then you have perhaps misplaced your loyalty--GOD MUST BE YOUR FO-CUS AND NO MAN MAY TAKE PRIOR DEVOITION OR CHOICE. IF UNCLE HARRY REFUSES YOUR SHARING--LEAVE UNCLE HARRY TO HIS CHOICES AND PAIN HIM NO MORE WITH YOUR NAGGING. YOU MUST ALL REALIZE THAT IT IS YOU CONCERNED WHEN ONES WILL NOT LISTEN--EVEN YOUR CHILDREN, WHOM YOU BLAME SELF FOR THEIR LACK OF KNOWLEDGE--HOW SO, IF THEY DO NOT ACCEPT--LEAVE THEM TO THEIR LESSONS FOR THEY SHALL BE LEARNING THOSE LESSONS! INDEED, INDEED!

You will do exactly that which we do with you--lay it before you and respond to every petition for more. You will lay the information before them, making it available, and then you respond if they petition for more-you will not bind them and force anything upon them. What of their fate? What of your fate? If you have done that which is required and move within the laws of God and Creation so that you are suitable to move within the higher children--then you will come home right aboard our craft. Those ones who choose other and to remain in the actions of physical earth plane--will perish by their own actions. If they are not atomized by atomic murder or suicide, they will simply make transition to continue experience elsewhere after death of their present "body". If caught in chain reaction of atomic destruction, it is going to be a long, long soul energy recovery period. Either way it is NOT YOUR BUSINESS after you have offered--and that is a lesson YOU MUST LEARN!

THERE WILL NOT, HOWEVER, BE A RAPTURE OF THE TYPE YOUR EVANGELISTS TELL YOU OF ON THE RADIO WAVES. THERE WILL BE A RAPTURE BEYOND YOUR IMAGININGS IF YOU ARE ON THE LIST TO COME HOME.

We are giving the word and thrusting it out to the world. We reverently launch it out upon the world with the hope and deep prayer that it will give you ability to save the earth from becoming a barren thing, which it will most surely become if you continue playing with the killer blue metals. It is, for all practical expectation--over--for the only thing left is in the playing out the play for you have been at the destruction build-up for such a long sequence of experiments and toying that reversal is unlikely. So, there needs to be a remnant and there needs to be the effort to reverse the actions to the extent of making the passage easier and longer in duration. After man has perished from the earth it will only be on your souls, this experience--for there will be no future generations to experience. You see, you have become a species who cares not for the generations which might come--Man only wants that which is HIS PHYSICAL GRATIFICATION--RIGHT NOW AND THAT WHICH COMES AFTER HAS NO IMPACT ON HIM WHATSOEVER!

Dear ones, you reached the time in the last generation and the present one, in which there is no way to turn back, for the doom of organic life would then be inevitable.

### DOOM AND GLOOM? AH SO--IT MOST CERTAINLY IS! IT IS AS DOOMY AND GLOOMY AS ANYTHING I HAVE EVER EXPERIENCED IN MY LIFE-STREAM.

By the way, don't get crazy, you scientists, over the Lee-Yang work for the validity of the conclusion that the Law of parity is now overthrown, and that a right and left direction must henceforth be recognized as a part of Natural law. However, we intentionally left you authorities to ponder another point or two to see WHO would catch the very same error in my projection????? If you caught it, then you move to the head of the class and you please, get busy for you may hold the key to changing this scenario from the way it is now headed.

Lee and Yang made a mistake and we left it. We offer Fig. 80. (See page 146.)

At the left of the drawing TWO PARTICLES are turning upon their gravity shafts which could be electrons, planets or suns. Around these spinning masses are circles with arrows which show the direction of their turning. Naturally these circles show as an ellipse because they follow equators and are shown in perspective.

At the right of these two spinning masses a mirror has been erected to show that if these two masses were reflected in the mirrors of Nature, such as radar, the spinning would be reversed. Upon this evidence, and similar evidence containing the same fault, a great conclusion of science is now added which upsets the old concept of parity which allowed for no distinction as left and right hand turnings. We have marked this mirror by the letter A.

The great error of this drawing is that pressure mirrors of Nature, such as radar, are NOT erected upon planes which follow the direction of polarityor gravity shafts. On the contrary, they are erected in planes of 90 degrees to polarity, or gravity shafts.

I ask you to print another drawing, Fig. 81, (See page 147) which shows three mirrors which are placed where Nature places them. These we have marked A--A. If you now note the reflections of the turning masses, which we have

indicated upon these mirrors, you can plainly see that the one direction of Nature is upheld.

To help you visualize this effect more clearly consider how impossible it would be to have a ball rebound into your hand if you threw it against a plane which parallels the direction of your ball. Or consider how impossible it would be for a cliffside to echo your voice if the plane of its face followed the direction of your voice, instead of in a plane of 90 degrees from the direction of your voice. Once more consider how impossible it would be for radar instruments to detect the presence of a sheet of steel much bigger than a ship, if that sheet of steel was placed the way the mirror in Fig. 80 is placed, instead of being turned around so that its entire face could echo back to the radar instruments.

Nowhere in Nature do pressure walls exist which are not 90 degrees from the direction of polarity. For this reason, the conclusions arrived at in subsequent studies done to support the Lee-Yang theory are invalid.

Now, I want to give Dharma a rest break at this point and then I shall have some observations to make before we close this <u>JOURNAL</u>. But it is time that you think most rapidly about your situation.

You are locked onto a planet in atomic suicide at this very moment. Whatever you WISH to believe is fine-even if in total error.

To come again into the path to safety you will have to realize that you now have come half a cycle wherein you represent the very opposite in the reflection of God. You will basically take that which appears to be, from scientific "belief" to religious "belief" and reverse it in action if you wish to change a thing. It matters not to me, other than as a compassionate brother who loves you and offers a hand to a less knowing friend and relation. You can spit in my face if you so choose, the way Mankind has done with God's messengers from the onset of your planetary experience--but we will remain on call until those who truly desire, in Godliness, to choose to become informed. Then, brethren, those who turn us away--will be left to that which they have chosen and you of the remnant will come home for new assignment.

You want more? Oh, you will get more--but this is the <u>foundation</u> of TRUTH UPON WHICH YOU HAVE TO WORK AND DECIDE. THERE ARE GO-ING TO BE NO MIRACLES BY GOD TO TURN THIS INTO HAPPY EVER-AFTER LAND--FOR THE EVER-AFTER LAND OF GOD'S MAN-SIONS HAVE NO SUCH PROBLEMS. SO BE IT.

I AM GERMAIN



FIG. 80. A mirror placed parallel in plane with the direction of the shaft of gravity, would. naturally, show a reverse direction of spinning. But radar, or echo mirrors of Nature are not placed that way. They are placed at angles of 90 degrees from gravity shaft. See Fig. 81.



FIG. 81. This is the way Nature places her pressure mirrors which retain the same direction of spinning in the mirrors that they spin in the mass which acts upon them. There is no exception to this law throughout all Nature.



EFFECT

FIG. 7 symbolizes the transient, created quantities of divided pairs of units of electric motion which emerge from the vacuum zero universe to manifest its qualities for timed intervals, and are then dissolved into its equilibrium for reemergence. These seeming quantities are Electricity-Compression-Form-Light-spectrum-Expansion-Sex-Sound-Heat and Motion.

These multiple quantities seem to exist. They appear and disappear to again reappear, to simulate the qualities of life, energy and idea which they seem to be, but are not. This is the "motion-picture" universe of simulation and illusion which dramatizes the idea of REALITY by electrically projecting the thought-imagedforms of Mind-Idea upon the imagined-screen of space, which Nature is.

There is no life, energy, knowledge, idea, truth, intelligence or any other quality of Mind or thought, in the motion which man calls matter and substance, and mistakes for reality. It is time that man realizes that there is nothing, whatsoever, in this visible universe but motion, and that REALITY exists only in the vacuum from which motion emerges as heat to simulate the Light of Reality.

#### SIPAPU ODYSSEY Dorushka Maerd

The Sipapu is the opening (gateway) through the Kiva to the "nether" lands of the ancient Anasazi Indians and their decendants in the southwest. This sensitive love-story of the "end-times" brings together a returning tribe of the Ancients from the past, a Pleiadian Space expedition from the "future", and some "awakening volunteers" from Earth's present. The plot climaxes with a "Gathering" at which many "Masters" from the higher realms speak about the Prophecies and Revelations in these end-times. This manuscript was written in early 1987 as a movie and is being published at this time to protect the copyright.

#### AND THEY CALLED HIS NAME IMMANUEL - I AM SANANDA by Sananda and Judas Iscarioth

The story of the life of the one commonly known as Jesus of Nazareth as told by Jesus and the disciple Judas Iscarioth. Absolute clarification of the numerous falsifications, misrepresentations, lies and misconceptions concerning that time period and Jesus' teachings are presented. Mary seeded by Gabriel, Guardian Angel of the Sons of Heaven. The actual teachings of the Master are given as spoken at that time. Clarification regarding God and The Creation. The Laws of The Creation and The Commandments are given in clear definitive language. The name of Judas Iscarioth is cleared as not being the one who betrayed Jesus. Statements by Jesus are provided, as spoken at that time, concerning falsification of his teachings over two thousand years. Strong warnings regarding false teachings. Words of great strength, power, light and healing at a soul-level.

### SPACE-GATE: THE VEIL REMOVED--by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Facts are provided concerning the governmental cover-up of extraterrestrials visiting our planet, and crashing on our planet, as early as the late 1940's/early 1950's. Historical perspective of the period from the late 40's to present is put forth with many surprising, startling and troubling details of secret actions by governmental agencies and representatives. Disclosure of various "secret" agencies and societies, such as the "above top-secret" MJ-12 (Majestic 12), The Jason Society, The Bilderbergers, the secret government, the "grey-men" and details regarding their stretegies and operating methods. Past cover-ups are exposed. Clarification of the ongoing peaceful intent and involvement of the beings from space. Signs of the times, prophecies and the involvement of Satan and Christ in these "end times" are clearly stated. The correlation between Christ and extraterrestrials is clarified.

#### SPIRAL TO ECONOMIC DISASTER LIFEBOAT MEASURES - IF YOU ACT NOW by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Waking-up to some economic realities. Exposing the "grey-men" and the secret government, their manipulations from a historical perspective, the degree of their diabolical capabilities, and the perfection of their plan on the unsuspecting "masses". Depression imminent. Get ready, it is coming down fast. New currency and some solutions for not getting caught in the new money and debit card system. Get your hands on cash (under 50s) and stash it (not in a bank). Financial strategies across the board. The solution of Incorporation (for everyone). The Nevada secret. Prophecies of these times previously given. Sananda and Aton state 'how it will be'.

#### FROM HERE TO ARMAGEDDON--by ASHTAR

A multi-dimensional perspective, offered in precisely clear language. Some noteworthy cautions to "receivers". Clarification of the Ashtar energy, of etherian beings and of the difference between space people and spirit people. Earth as a school of learning, of the lower grades. Great insights into the purpose and state of "man", of the planetary condition and the governmental attitude toward "higher" beings. Demystification of the planetary cleansing and evacuation process. Turning the cards on evil through understanding their methods. The true origin of the species of man. The "dark brotherhood" is real. Pitfalls are plentiful, the path steep. There's no turning back. Christ's teaching gave us example. The nuclear threat is real. The powerful forces of Spirit at work within man during this 'end-time' where final choices must be made. Closing statement by Jesus Christ.

#### SURVIVAL IS ONLY TEN FEET FROM HELL--by Ashtar

Ice-water thrown in the face of nuclear misconceptions. Clearing the air for some true understanding. We (U.S.A) have no defense. The China nuclear threat and example. The Russian nuclear threat and example. The Switzerland model. Shelters, shelters, shelters...where are our shelters? Nuclear war not likely, probable. While there's still time. Tunnels, plan ahead and store. What of the rebuilding? More hard realities on Russia. God's involvement in this entire process. Earth changes and shelters. If you don't do it, it won't get done. The nuclear deterrent once available to the U.S. has been abrogated by the failure of the U.S. government to protect its citizenry with bomb/radiation shelters. The Russians and Chinese have access to organized and maintained shelters, leaving only the Americans unprotected. The United States is wideopen for nuclear blackmail. It may not be too late, but action must be taken.

#### THE RAINBOW MASTERS, "THE MAGNIFICENT SEVEN" by The Masters

A manual for living the life blessed of God. Insightful to the heart, offering hope, direction, promise, guidance, love, discipline, clarifying long clouded issues and illuminating concepts of higher reason. Stilling troubled waters with penetrating clarity. Cutting to the core of the nature of man, yet offering such gentle direction filled with compassion beyond measure. Words which resonate as musical chords within the very soul essence. Each energy uniquely powerful, yet in accordance, together they form a team of One. Offering insight into the planet, our purpose, God's involvement and will, our journey here, our process as a collective, the Greater vision. Unbending in strength, these words renew hope, instill love, and give 'trust in God' a deeper meaning.

#### AIDS - THE LAST GREAT PLAGUE by Sananda, Hatonn, Ashtar, Nikola Tesla & Walter Russell

Assessing the situation. The World Health Organization (WHO)'s involvement. Virus review. T-Cells and HTLV-1 through HTLV-5. The African Green Monkey. Animal retroviruses in humans/bovine leukemia cattle virus/visna virus (brain-rot) of sheep. Viruses jump through condoms. Asian Tiger Mosquito. Forget the vaccine option. Recombinant retroviruses replicated at 9,000 to the 4th power, minimum. It's all around you and spreading fast. Safe sex? And you thought the common cold was easy to get. Will AIDS naturally die out? Viruses are crystalline structures and are therefore affected by sound vibrations and light. Dr. Royal R. Rife. Electromagnetics. SEM waves. Antoine Priore's machine. Sir Walter Russell speaks on the `sccret of light'. Electricity. Octaves. Atomic structures. John Crane. Mr. Cathie. Nikola Tesla speaks on `light and applications'. There will be assistance from Divine Source to bring forth a cure, but man must do the work with the tools and "clues" provided. Start work now.

#### SATAN'S DRUMMERS--THE SECRET BEAT OF EVIL--SATAN IS ALIVE AND WELL by Sananda

In this deeply troubling book Satan is revealed bluntly, not as an abstraction. Satan's presence is documented with specific cases, examples of evil, control, power, death and murder, and the sacrifice of babies, children and animals by the Satanic cults.

Satan's "commandments" are exactly opposite those of God and the Creation, he is the Master Liar of the Universe. It is time to wake up to the LIE and know your enemy. These are the "end times" when each soul makes a choice of "dark" or "light"; guidance is offered in this book.

# PRIVACY IN A FISHBOWL--by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

It's a lot worse than you thought, they really are watching, everything. The government's thirst for information on its citizenry is unquenchable. Is privacy possible? This document contains very pragmatic 'how-to' and tactical suggestions to help you legally "fade into the background". The financial collapse is imminent. Preparing for financial melt-down. Commentary on a variety of related topics including: S&L's, the real estate market, oil, bonds, precious metals, interest rates, money laundering, home security systems, the Internal Revenue Service, and the new (traccable) currency. As the screws tighten. You the consumer. Credit card nightmare. The War on Privacy. Putting your affairs in order. And what of drug screening, lie detectors, on the job surveillance, medical history, credit history, the public mail system, your telephone records? Incorporate citizens, incorporate. The Right to own firearms, for how long? What are the ways to conceal money? This document is more important than you may realize. Reading it is your decision, of course so are the consequences of not.

### CRY OF THE PHOENIX DEATH RATTLE OF FREEDOM THE PLAN "2000"--by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

The four horsemen of Revelations have been loosed and are ravaging the populations of the world TODAY. If, as told in Revelations, two thirds of the population will be killed by wars, pestilence and plague, some four billion people will "die prematurely" in the next few years.

Most of us already wear the Mark of the BEAST; the BEAST will be recognized in 1990. The government of the United Staes of America is now firmly in the hands of the elitist Cartel, including the world bankers, who are dedicated to the collapsing of all nations into a One World Government by the year 2000.

The Constitution and the Bill of Rights are to be "abolished" in favor of the Soviet-Constitution-based United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights. The hour is late but perhaps not too late to preserve those precious freedoms guaranteed by our Constitution and Bill of Rights. As in the Communist nations there will only be two classes, the ruling elite and the "workers". If you are not guaranteed a place among the elite this book describes your future and how you might help change it.

### CRUCIFIXION OF THE PHOENIX by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

God promised Mother Earth that she will be cleansed, this time by fire. Out of those ashes will rise the Phoenix, a renewed earth born into a "Time of Radiance".

But first the "ashes", the trials and tribulations, the destruction and carnage of the Plan 2000. Will humankind somehow "be forgiven" and avoid the atonement? No, the raft is in the river and Satan has the helm; the Apocalypse is <u>now</u>. But the fate of each soul is the choice of that soul and no other---free will---remember? And the WORD will go forth..... And the WORD is going forth, herein.

SKELETONS IN THE CLOSET by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

"I scatter things from extra low frequency beams to counterfeit money via German Nazis in the Antarctic funnelled through Japan and flooding your markets because I desire to shock you into attention--and then we can take the events in sequence that you can recognize the truth of the Journals."

"The twilight of the United States is guaranteed that it is humanly impossible for the U.S. either to turn aside or to win a war with the Soviets, for instance--and that is only for starters. Only a miracle could do that--do you deserve a miracle?"

"You simply cannot believe the incredible weapons available for your annihilation---." "--YOU ARE NOT FREE, YOU HAVE A POLICE STATE AND ARE <u>COMPLETELY CONTROLLED!</u>"

"The Kremlin has committed itself to a step-by-step clearing of the decks for war and so have your government participants who work with them under the covers. They have left you without even the ability to have a shelter system in which to survive--YOU OF THE U.S. HAVE BECOME THE EXPEND-ABLES. "THEY" CANNOT GET RID OF THE AMERICANS AS THEY ARE GETTING RID OF MANY AFRICAN AND THIRD WORLD COUNTRIES, THROUGH FAMINE AND DISEASE, <u>AND</u> WEATHER AND DISASTER CONTROL. OH OH! HATONN HAS DONE IT NOW--WEATHER AND DISASTER CONTROL?"

### R.R.P.P.\* \*RAPE, RAVAGE, PILLAGE AND PLUNDER OF THE PHOENIX by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

In truth there is Hope. "The truth will set you free." Do not turn away-join together and find truth and come into community and demand a return to Godness and your Constitution as given forth by your forefathers for protection of your wondrous freedoms.

----As America falls so falls the world for the Plan was well laid and the Plan includes the whole of the globe.

The takeover is so insidious and deadly that man does not even realize he is being enslaved in mass. If this Satanic cartel is allowed to continue and fulfill their mission, it will be the start of the darkest ages your planet will have ever witnessed--there will be mass annihilation of mankind by the billions and YOU have no recourse.

God, my petition is that you of the masses be given into the hearing and seeing, for you can stop this thing if you want to do so. If you act not, then I bless you and pray for mercy for, as free people, you will be finished!

### RAPE OF THE CONSTITUTION; DEATH OF FREEDOM RRPP-VOL. II by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

As you journey through this passage, this may well be the most important single Journal you will ever read. It is of physical importance and impacts your soul growth tremendously, that which you do in this cycle of experience. This book is not pleasant--it was not written for entertainment; you are on the edge of the abyss in your nation and the "anti-Christ", of which you have waited, is upon you. Rarely are things as you expect or at first perceive for it is the way of the enemy of Godness.

You ask and again ask, "What can I do?" Herein we tell you that which you can do. The time for letting "someone else" do of your work is finished--you will stand forth and participate in the journey of God or you will be passed by. Your Constitutional rights as written by the Founding Fathers are being replaced by the New Constitution which is already in operation without your realization of same.

You have a right and obligation to know that which is in store for you at the hands of the conspirators for The New World Order, and further obligation as a citizen, to act. You have been people of the lie far too long, my friends, and it has all but cost you every vestige of freedom. What you do now can change your world. Do nothing, and you had better increase your prayer time, for it is serious indeed. The projected prophecies are at your door and it is time you recognize your enemy!

### THE NAKED PHOENIX HOW, WHO, WHY, WHERE, WHAT AND WHEN THE BIRD WAS PLUCKED A GUIDE TO DO-IT-YOURSELF FEATHER GROWING by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

The subject of this Journal is the Federal Reserve System and the Federal Reserve banks. This is the one most important deception and subterfuge ever foisted upon the world. It actually is only the conduit through which the Conspirators have perfected their "PLAN". The Journal would be ten times this length if we unfolded details but while we would be unfolding you would be consumed. Let us please take the information, confirm it if you will, and allow us to move into action.

Let us quote Congressman Louis T. McFadden in a speech before Congress June 10, 1932:

Mr. Chairman, we have in this country one of the most corrupt institutions the world has ever known. I refer to the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Reserve banks. The Federal Reserve Board, a government board, has cheated the Government of the United States and the people of the United States out of enough money to pay the national debt. The depredations and the iniquities of the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Reserve banks acting together have cost this country enough money to pay the national debt several times over. This evil institution has impoverished and ruined the people of the United States; has bankrupted itself, and has practically bankrupted our government. It has done this through the defects of the law under which it operates, through the maladministration of that law by the Federal Reserve Board, and through the corrupt practices of the moneyed vultures who control it.

Some people think the Federal Reserve banks are United States Government institutions. They are not government institutions. They are private credit monopolies which prey upon the people of the United States for the benefit of themselves and their foreign swindlers; and rich and predatory money lenders. In that dark crew of financial pirates there are those who would cut a man's throat to get a dollar out of his pocket; there are those who send money into states to buy votes to control our legislation; and there are those who maintain an international propaganda for the purpose of deceiving us and of wheedling us into the granting of new concessions which will permit them to cover up their past misdeeds and set again in motion their gigantic train of crime.

Yes, there are things you can do to take action and we have laid them forth. Will it be easy? NO! You will need to start at "home" in the community and unify and get rid of the thieves and conspirators which you continually send back to be wardens of your prison and robbers of your property. They, too, are vulnerable to the nuclear bombs and confiscation--they just have forgotten as much. Your Senator is as physically mortal as are you and will die as quickly and suffer as greatly from the collapse which is coming. Preparation? You have all but waited too long, but you still have time, while the elite vie for position to see who will outdo who and gain the ultimate control--the messages, unfortunately, of the prophecies tell you who that will be and those ones will bring devastation of physical nature--not just glean all property and wealth.

In for a hard time? Yes! But also a wondrous time of unity, brotherhood and freedom from boredom and degradation as fed to you by the silver spoons of the puppet masters.

Which will it be, citizens of World Earth? Freedom or enslavement? The choice is yours, for God so loves this world that he again sends his Hosts and his being to show you the way! Who will see and hear?

#### BLOOD AND ASHES YE SLEEPING CHILDREN OF THE LIE, WHO NOW HEARS THE PHOENIX CRY? by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

You are sitting upon the bomb ready to be burst and you hide within the lies. This book is truth and we are now writing in sequence so that you might see the correlation between the lies of one decade heaped upon the next--but the play is the same. Satan intends to win or pull as many with him as is possible--there will be many, dear friends.

To understand the lies given unto you this day in your "Middle East" you must know of the lies told you by your government during the decade past. The traitorous Zionist plan to win world domination through an American nuclear first strike on Russia has not been abandoned, even though Russia has thwarted several attempts.

The "Biblical Prophecies", written not by God but by Satan, are being played out by a mankind brainwashed and blinded to believe them to be "inevitable". They are not. Mankind, hearing God's WORD, can re-write the script to fit God's plan, a much more wholesome scenario.

We come forth as the Hosts of Heaven, sent to bring you truth and show you the way for God would never leave his children in darkness. We come with instructions for your journey--who will receive? Who will walk with us into the light?

Know this, in thine truth--BEFORE THE PHOENIX CAN RISE-FIRST MUST COME THE ASHES. GOD ONLY PROMISED THAT THE WORD OF TRUTH WOULD GO FORTH IN THE ENDING TIMES--HE DID NOT SAY YE HAD TO PARTAKE OF IT. HOWEVER, IT WOULD SEEM OF GREAT WISDOM TO DO SO.

### FIRESTORM IN BABYLON THE TIME IS COME by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

History is repeating itself--in ever shortening cycles. It is he who can learn from history who will prevail.

This book is a review of the several attempts to start Nuclear War I during the past ten years and how that relates to the current (September, 1990) Middle East "Crisis in the Gulf"

The world teeters on the Abyss of total all-out nuclear war, the military bases of the U.S., foreign and domestic, have been stripped of men and equipment, and the news media (controlled by political and financial cartels) work diligently to obscure the truth.

FOR YOU WHO STAND IN TRUTH--THERE SHALL BE PEACE IN THE VALLEY FOR YOU! GOD EXTENDS HIS HAND; HE HAS AGAIN SENT HIS "SON" AND THE "HOSTS" AFORE HIM. WHO WILL TAKE OF HIS HAND? WHO WILL THEN TAKE OF THINE BROTHER'S HAND?

#### THE MOSSAD CONNECTION Hotfoot for the Phoenix By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Americans, to understand how their Constitution, and Nation, are being stolen from them (and who is doing the stealing) must understand the MOSSAD CONNECTION.

The "Thirteenth Tribe" of Israel, now self-designated as "ZIONISTS", is in control of both Israel and, through its political influence over some sixty percent of the U.S. Congress and its working relationship with the White House, the United States of America.

This book identifies those connections and clearly outlays the only potentially successful course of action open to the people of America to regain control of their Nation.

### CREATION, THE SACRED UNIVERSE THE INCUBATION OF THE PHOENIX By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

In this latest "JOURNAL" we are given day by day information of important events going on in the world and especially about Russia, Iraq, Israel, the Middle East and the U.S. and how these tie into the major prophecies of the end-times.

We are given information about the history of this planet and origins of the humans here.

We are also given a response to the "Middle East Prayer Alert", put out by many well known "Christian" leaders, by Jesus Sananda.

Many other topics are covered including: Our origins -- The moment of "no time" -- Cities of Light -- Pres. Bush and the "New World Order" and its consequences -- The geological processes involved in Vulcanism -- Learn how water (Babylon's Achilles' heel) will play a major role in the starting of Armageddon -- The "Global Agenda" and how oil control is of key importance -- More about Noriega -- Why doesn't Saddam give up? -- Russia's real role with Iraq and the Middle East -- Russia's superior weapons determines what we can do in space -- The POW's we abandoned -- The origin and purpose of the Bird Tribes -- Some history of Earth and the settlers that came here 70,000 years ago and the consequences.

### PLEIADES CONNECTION, RETURN OF THE PHOENIX VOL. I By Hatonn

This Journal continues the practice of keeping you updated on major world events while giving you much other information about many topics.

You can learn the <u>truth</u> about the origins of humans upon this planet, our purposes here and why the truth has been hidden from us.

We have help to overcome all of our major difficulties  $\underline{IF}$  we will return to living under the Laws of Creation and God.

Many other topics are covered, such as types of dwellings best for our use from now on (patterned after Pleiadian dwellings). - Future Revelations and Earth changes - The Constitution of the United Nations Industrial Development Organization under which Pres. Bush is operating our country instead of the Constitution of the United States - What **TRUE** love is - Spacecraft -Types of metal used in them - About 666 and its significance - How the planet Venus got into our solar system and details about its surface (not as some have told us) - The danger of certain comets in our past and <u>immediate future</u> - The truth about <u>robotoids as our world leaders</u> and <u>MUCH, MUCH MORE</u>.

#### BURNT OFFERINGS AND BLOODSTAINED SANDS PSYCHOPOLITICS AND THE SACRIFICE OF THE PHOENIX BY Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

This is the 24th book in the *Phoenix Journal* series that has been published in the last eighteen months. They include detailed topics from all walks of life, including current information on the Middle East War as of January 28, 1991.

These books, which are entered into a computer by "Dharma", ARE THE WORDS OF TRUTH WHICH GOD PROMISED HE WOULD SEND FORTH AT THE ENDTIMES TO GIVE MAN ONE LAST CHANCE TO CHOOSE TRUTH OVER THE LIE.

Hatonn gives us an excellent background coverage of why the world is on the downward path to ONE WORLD GOVERNMENT, the "NEW WORLD OR-DER" that President Bush mentions many times and how the present Middle East War is the beginning of the Battle of Armageddon, the greatest battle to ever be fought on this planet. This is the battle that has been predicted for several thousand years and THE TIME IS NOW HERE.

He gives us details of what hardships even the Americans must be prepared for (INCLUDING INVASION, DESTRUCTION OF OUR TROOPS, STARVA-TION, TERRORISTS AND EVEN CONCENTRATION CAMPS HERE IN THE UNITED STATES) if we do not DEMAND that our Constitution be restored and start living under the LAWS OF GOD <u>VERY SOON</u>.

### SHROUDS OF THE SEVENTH SEAL--THE ANTI-CHRIST WHORE OF BABYLON by Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

This book is MUST reading for anyone who desires to know the TRUTH about the causes of the war in the Middle East and what the DRASTIC "HELL ON EARTH" results will be if the peoples of the world do not put a stop to it VERY SOON.

We are given information on the following very important topics: Mental health among your U.S. troops -- Is U.S. sending soldiers to the Persian Gulf in chains? -- What is Baker hiding? -- This is another NO-WIN WAR. -- Israel: `Vengeance is mine' -- Support our troops--get us out of the Middle East! -- Political Zionism is born -- Weakness in Israel's military -- Israel's racists policies and arms industry -- The role of Communism in Israel -- Zionists simply eliminate opposition -- Doubles, robotoids and replicas -- Executive Orders and The Protocols--how they are already controlling our lives today -- Blood and destruction behind the curtain of American sponsored censorship.

#### THE BITTER COMMUNION ALTARS OF HEMLOCK "....AND A NEW RELIGION SHALL SWEEP ACROSS THE LANDS AND THE PEOPLE WILL BE DECEIVED...." By Hatonn:

The subject of this Journal is an ongoing outlaying of that which has come upon you--it is our "commission" given forth by God Creator and our commitment unto Him and that unto Creation to set the records to straight so that the truth is known in the final days. But oh, blessed brothers--it needs not be the "final days" for that is the BIGGEST LIE OF ALL AGAINST YOU DECEIVED ONES OF INNOCENCE--YE WHO HAVE TRIED TO FOLLOW THAT WHICH YOU PERCEIVED AND ACCEPTED AS TRUTH FROM YOUR TEACHERS AND LEADERS--HOW COULD YOU KNOW THAT THEY WERE DISINFORMED FROM EVIL SOURCES? MAY GOD GIVE HELP TO ALLOW YOUR VISION TO CLEAR THAT WE MIGHT WALK TO-GETHER IN TURNING ABOUT THIS BEAST AND CLEAR IT FROM THE LANDS. AHO!

# ATON:

...AND YE HAVE GIVEN HEMLOCK UNTO MY CHILDREN IN THINE COMMUNION CUPS--IN MY NAME HAVE YE CORRUPTED THE LAWS OF GOD. AND IN THAT CORRUPTION SHALL YE BE GIVEN TO KNOW THAT WHICH YE HAVE DONE FOR YE HAVE DEFILED MY NAME AND SHED BLOOD OF THE INNOCENT UPON MY PATH OF GODNESS AND THEN YE ASK GOD TO ALLOW YOU TO PREVAIL. YE HAVE STOLEN THE CHALICE OF GOD AND FILLED IT WITH THE BITTER POISON AND GIVEN IT UNTO MY CREATIONS--AND THIS YE HAVE DONE IN MY NAME. GREAT SORROW SHALL PREVAIL UPON THE LANDS IN THE FINAL DAYS OF THE CLEANSING.

WHO WILL COME WITH ME? WHO WILL WALK WITH ME? WHO WILL SHARE OF THE SWEET COMMUNION WITH ME? YOU WHO HAVE PATIENTLY OBEYED THE LAWS OF GOD DESPITE THE PERSECUTION, THEREFORE WILL YOU BE PROTECTED BY ME, FROM THE TIME OF GREAT TRIBULATION AND TEMPTATION, WHICH WILL COME UPON THE WORLD TO TEST EVERYONE ALIVE. LOOK, I AM COMING, SO YE OF LIGHTED TRUTH HOLD TIGHTLY TO THE LITTLE STRENGTH YOU HAVE--SO THAT NO ONE WILL TAKE AWAY YOUR CROWN.

#### COUNTERFEIT BLESSINGS THE ANTI-CHRIST BY ANY NAME: KHAZARS"....AND THEY WERE LIARS FROM THE BEGINNING!" By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

In this book Hatonn brings us up to the minute on world events, but more importantly he gives us the **TRUE** history of the diabolical masterminds that have led the world into all of its major problems and most of its minor problems, for their own selfish and greedy aims.

We are also given the actions we MUST take if we are going to stop these wellorganized groups from putting together the final pieces of their <u>WORLD</u> <u>WITHOUT FREEDOM (the NEW WORLD ORDER)</u>.

Hatonn especially stresses the history of the Khazars, Judeans and the Jews and how the Khazars have labeled themselves as Zionists and Jews to deceive our planet and to take total control of it in the <u>NAME OF THE ANTI-CHRIST</u>, and how knowing and exposing these forces can preserve freedom for all of mankind.

### PHOENIX OPERATOR-OWNER MANUAL By Jesus Sananda, Lord Michael & St. Germain

For eons of time in your history, mankind has experienced and existed in blindness about his **DIVINE SPIRITUAL HERITAGE**, that is, his **ONENESS WITH GOD AND THE CREATION**. Since the time of the "FALL" from "GRACE" of God, many ones have continued to struggle with what is "their" purpose, and why is it so difficult to find and know **THE TRUTH**. Many ones, in their ignorance and confusion, have asked themselves why GOD allows the seemingly unending ruthless and merciless inhumanity of man to continue; why HE allows suffering of children and wars and disease and pestilence and corruption. Often ones simply decide there is no God, which only keeps ones ever "separate" from KNOWING HIS PRESENCE WITHIN.

This volume, Phoenix Operator/Owner Manual, is GOD'S deliverance of Truth to YOU, His blinded fledgling creatures. HE is offering YOU the instructions for reaching the "Lighted" path back home to HIM, AND THUS TO ONENESS. You will learn <u>HOW</u> to recognize the Anti-Christ, (that which is AGAINST GOD and therefore AGAINST LIFE) within YOU and why through your gift of free-will YOU allowed the Anti-Christ within your temple of God. You will learn about what are the "Deadliest" Sins (errors) committed by you and also about the nature of YOUR Personal Responsibility for ALL consequences and experiences within this manifested physical "illusion".

And in addition, God is NOW, within these pages, bringing forth the EIGHTEEN Logical Cosmic Laws of Balance of God and The Creation, written in explicit detail with MANY examples given for YOUR careful consideration and recognition of Truth. Why? To let there be NO misunderstanding of HOW and WHY you, of humanity have lost your inner as well as planetary BALANCE. You ones have broken EVERY Law set forth herein and have, therefore, suffered the consequences of your errors against GOD and against LIFE. You each now have before you YOUR "roadmap" back home to spiritual wisdom, knowledge and Truth which is GOD. Will YOU see? Will YOU hear? Each ONE of you, being fragments of GOD and of THE CREATION must and will make this choice: To wisely learn your lessons in Truth, abide by the Laws and thus EARN your Spiritual UNITY and Freedom within God's Kingdom OR continue in the darkness of deception, ignorance and spiritual poverty which will keep you bound in the Anti-Christ's "illusion" of separation. THIS cycle is about to END. The new cycle will BEGIN anew in the GLORY and Celebration of cleansing within and without of ALL fragments of ANTI-LIFE. WILL YOU JOIN OUR FATHER/MOTHER CREATOR GOD in His Divine Holy Kingdom of LIFE? God awaits your decision. So be it.

## END OF THE MASQUERADE LET'S PLUCK THE CUCKOO BIRD By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

TO ALL WHO WOULD HEAR GOD'S WORD IN THIS TIME OF TOTAL MASQUERADE. IT IS TIME TO PULL OFF THE MASK ALONG WITH THE BLINDFOLDS AND EAR-PLUGS. THE TIME IS AT HAND TO GAIN TRUTH AND INSIGHT AND TAKE ACTION FOR YOUR WORLD IS IN GRAVE DANGER.

That which is called the "Anti-Christ" is at hand and has deceived most of the world. You are surrounded by multitudes of replicas and man-made humanoids who have basically gained control of your planet.

Our intent in these Journals is to give you proof of that which we project-by documentation of history, origins and other boring information. But the information will get far less boring as we move along, dear ones--and so, let us move along rapidly.

I repeat again and again--the evil brotherhood of darkness cannot stand the focus of the light of Truth, just as it requires only the tiny spark of light to cause a place to no longer be in darkness.

Hatonn includes the PROTOCOLS and also continues to keep us current on world affairs.

### MATTER, ANTI-MATTER & WHAT'S THE MATTER By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Hatonn gives us much more information on a large number of topics in this JOURNAL and again he keeps us updated with the <u>**TRUTH**</u> about the latest news.

He includes many interesting comments about spaceships including certain specific frequencies pertaining to them and specific manifestations at certain areas of the earth grid system. Descriptions of their exterior and interiors are also given.

Some of the other topics he covers are: The importance of the new Challenger shuttle replacement - Robotoids, Synthetics and Neutrals - Little Gray Aliens -Continual Update on the Middle-East Situation - Bush and the trip to Paris which he denies - The purpose for the reported alien visit with Bush at Camp David - The history of money and why and how it has to be changed before economic and social problems can be solved - The plans for a new Central American canal using atomic explosions--SOON--and the severe consequences - 666 and the Bar Codes - An explanation of Creation, etc., etc.

### GOD SAID: LET THERE BE <u>LIGHT</u> AND CREATION BECAME PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL.II By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

The thought of God is LIGHT.

LIGHT is all there is. ALL springs from, and returns to, LIGHT, the thought of God.

The "War in Heaven for Men's souls" between God and Lucifer, the Light and the dark forces, cannot be comprehended without an understanding of the "physics" of the Universe.

Returning to God requires rising above the physical so dark forces' thrust is ever to ensnare man in the physical, fleshly, "things" of "wealth" and "power" through man's ego.

Shedding our attachments to those physical things, and "highs" associated with sex, drugs, alcohol, thrill/life-risking sports (including war), etc., requires KNOWING that there is more--something better.

This book, a primer, provides the basic understanding of what we are, where we come from and return to, why we are where we are and for what, and how to get the most from this experience.

And, it will help you begin to free yourself from the density and negativity of this experience to take that next step to your oneness with GOD/ATON, the ONE LIGHT.

Hatonn also keeps us up to date on critical National and World Events.

### I AND MY FATHER ARE ONE SECRETS OF UNIVERSAL ORDER; ETERNAL QUEST OF MAN

### PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL. III

By Violinio Germain & Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Jesus, Esu, Sananda gives us many corrections to part of His life story, as written in the Bible. He includes the truth about His crucifixion.

Sananda gives us details of the deceptions of the "New Age" even to the point of staging a simulated second coming of Christ. If their script is successfully staged even the very elect could be deceived. **BEWARE!** He tells how to recognize the real Christ when he appears.

We are given a very important lesson on holography and its use for deceiving the seekers.

Soltec gives us updated information about the volcanos, earthquakes and other earth changes and how they are tied into the political and economic situation.

Germain continues with his detailed description of how God creates all from His sex-divided Light.

He gives us details about what electricity, magnetism, gravity, heat and cold actually are. If our scientists would put this knowledge to use for the world's benefit we could have <u>IIEAVEN ON EARTH</u>.

It is explained how the Creator uses electricity to create.

Germain helps us to understand God by defining God, and explaining in detail how God creates.

Details of the equipment Rife used for medical purposes is described.

This text contains many drawings and some charts to help everyone understand creation much better.

### THE PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS, VOL'S I & II <u>\$15</u> 220 PAGES 8 1/2 X 11"

The first two volumes (26 issues) of our newsletter made into a book. This is excellent for reference since every heading is indexed (8 pages).

A few of the topics covered are: What really happened to Hitler and his and Germany's role in the Antarctic area.- How sodomy depresses the immune system - Sodomy and AIDS - Comets and Wormwood - Russian grain deal - Mexico Free-trade Agreement and many more up to date topics.

### THE PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS, VOL'S III & IV <u>\$15</u> 220 PAGES 8 1/2 X 11"

This book is a compilation of the Phoenix Express Newsletters with <u>11 pages of</u> indexed headings (this is great for those who want to find a particular topic).

Many topics are covered including: The Hubble telescope fiasco - privacy -Bolshevik/Thatcher use of the Falklands - John F. Kennedy's murder - the Warren Commission - Jordan's King Hussein's message to George Bush - the Khazars - the Zionist Protocols - <u>Pres. Bush and the New World Order</u> and much more.

### THE PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS, VOL'S V & VI <u>\$15</u> 220 PAGES 8 1/2 X 11"

TEN PAGES OF INDEXING to make it easy to find that topic you want to reread.

This is book number 3 of our series and is packed with many current topics and the Truth of what is going on behind the scenes in the world today.

Just a few of the topics covered are: Revisiting of Babylon - Divorce--moral and spiritual lesson of Truth - A lesson on volcanoes - Assassinations and attempts -Noriega - What happened to the Drug War? - Why doesn't Saddam just give up? - Bull's (Iraq's) super artillery (over 5,000 mile range) - Angels and extraterrestrials - Future creation - An outline of the plan unfolding - New type of weapon (face wall of fire) - Why doesn't God just give you free energy and solve everything? - The New World Order - What can a company do - Gold and the Middle East - George Washington's farewell address - Nine-foot aliens?/robotics - The new constitution under which the U.S. is operating <u>NOW</u> - Causes of the planets major "natural disasters".

This is just a very small sample of the topics covered; topics which you must know to sanely adjust your life patterns to make it through the chaos settling very fast upon this planet.

#### BOOK LIST

THIS BOOK IS PART OF A SERIES PRESENTED THROUGH "dharma" BY ENTITIES FROM HIGHER REALMS TO ASSIST HUMANKIND IN UNDERSTANDING HOW TO MOVE THROUGH THE "TIMES OF TRIBULATION"

THE OTHER BOOKS IN THE PHOENIX JOURNAL SERIES ARE:

- 1. SIPAPU ODYSSEY ISBN 0-922356-11-4
- 2. AND THEY CALLED HIS NAME IMMANUEL, I AM SANANDA ISBN 0-922356-06-8
- 3. SPACE-GATE, THE VEIL REMOVED ISBN 0-922356-03-3
- 4. SPIRAL TO ECONOMIC DISASTER ISBN 0-922356-07-6
- 5. FROM HERE TO ARMAGEDDON ISBN 0-922356-08-4
- SURVIVAL IS ONLY TEN FEET FROM HELL ISBN 0-922356-11-4
- 7. THE RAINBOW MASTERS ISBN 0-922356-10-6
- 8. AIDS, THE LAST GREAT PLAGUE ISBN 0-922356-04-1
- 9. SATAN'S DRUMMERS ISBN 0-922356-09-2
- 10. PRIVACY IN A FISHBOWL ISBN 0-922356-12-2
- 11. CRY OF THE PHOENIX ISBN 0-922356-13-0
- 12. CRUCIFIXION OF THE PHOENIX ISBN 0-922356-41-9
- 13. SKELETONS IN THE CLOSET ISBN 0-922356-15-7
- 14. RRPP\*

\*RAPE, RAVAGE, PLUNDER AND PILLAGE OF THE PHOENIX ISBN 0-922356-16-5

- 15. RAPE OF THE CONSTITUTION ISBN 0-922356-17-3
- 16. YOU CAN SLAY THE DRAGON ISBN 0-922356-21-1
- 17. THE NAKED PHOENIX ISBN 0-922356-22-X
- 18. BLOOD AND ASHES ISBN 0-922356-25-4
- 19. FIRESTORM IN BABYLON ISBN 0-922356-27-0
- 20. THE MOSSAD CONNECTION ISBN 0-922356-28-9
- 21. CREATION, THE SACRED UNIVERSE ISBN 0-922356-29-7
- 22. PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL. I ISBN 0-922356-31-9
- 23. BURNT OFFERINGS ISBN 0-922356-33-5
- 24. SHROUDS OF THE SEVENTH SEAL-- ISBN 0-922356-34-3
- 25. THE BITTER COMMUNION ISBN 0-922356-37-8
- 26. COUNTERFEIT BLESSINGS THE ANTI-CHRIST BY ANY NAME: KHAZARS ISBN 0-922356-36-6
- 27. PHOENIX OPERATOR-OWNER MANUAL ISBN 0-922356-43-2
- 28. OPERATION SHANSTORM ISBN 0-922356-39-4
- 29. END OF THE MASQUERADE ISBN 0-922356-40-8
- 30. MATTER ANTI-MATTER ISBN 0-922356-41-6
- 31. LET THERE BE LIGHT PLEIADES CONNECTION. VOL. II ISBN 0-922356-42-4
- 32. I AND MY FATHER ARE ONE PLEIADES CONNECTION VOL. III ISBN 0-922356-46-7
- 33. MURDER BY ATOMIC SUICIDE PLEIADES CONNECTION

VOL. IV ISBN 0-922356-47-5

- 34. PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS VOLUMES I & II (BOOK) ISBN 0-922356-23-8 \$15.00
  35. PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS VOLUMES III & IV (BOOK) ISBN 0-922356-29-7 \$15.00
  36. PHOENIX JOURNAL EXPRESS VOLUMES V & VI (BOOK) ISBN 0-922356-32-7 \$15.00

FOR INFORMATION WRITE OR CALL:

- America West Publishers

  - P.O. Box 986 Tehachapi, CA. 93581 1-805 822-9655

ORDERS ONLY, PLEASE 1-800 729-4131